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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Pang (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 October 2022)
Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 17 October 2022)
Mr. ZOU Gebing
Mr. SHEN Zhidong (resigned on 9 November 2022)
Mr. WU Yueming (resigned on 9 November 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Hok Kan (appointed on 17 October 2022)
Ms. WU Xiangfei (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (appointed on 17 October 2022)
Prof. LEE Chack Fan (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Ms. CHEN Jianhua (appointed on 17 October 2022)

Ms. WU Weixia (@appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022 and

resigned on 9 November 2022)
Mr. LIU Haifeng (resigned on 16 May 2022)
Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)
Mr. CHU Guodi (resigned on 16 May 2022)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DEEMGE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman of committee,
appointed on 17 October 2022)

Prof. LEE Chack Fan (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Ms. CHEN lJianhua (appointed on 17 October 2022)

Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. LIU Haifeng (resigned on 16 May 2022)

Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)

Mr. CHU Guodi (resigned on 16 May 2022)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman of committee,
appointed on 17 October 2022)

Prof. LEE Chack Fan (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Ms. CHEN Jianhua (appointed on 17 October 2022)

Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. LIU Haifeng (resigned on 16 May 2022)

Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)

Mr. CHU Guodi (resigned on 16 May 2022)
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DRIER(E)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (Chairman of committee,
appointed on 17 October 2022)

Prof. LEE Chack Fan (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Ms. CHEN Jianhua (appointed on 17 October 2022)

Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. LIU Haifeng (resigned on 16 May 2022)

Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)

Mr. CHU Guodi (resigned on 16 May 2022)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai
Mr. LAM Hoi Lun

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
DRIER(E)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

No. 258, Shengli Road, Magiao Street
Haining City, Jiaxing City
Zhejiang Province, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

No. 52, Fu Hang Road
Tuen Mun
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Bank of Jiaxing Company Limited

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Taishin International Bank

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Bank of Ningbo Co., Ltd.

China Citic Bank Corporation Limited

Zhejiang Haining Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Bank of Huzhou Company Limited

STOCK CODE

1575

WEBSITE

www.morrishome.com.hk
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBHE
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Revenue decreased by approximately 73.8% to approximately
RMB132.0 million in 2022 (2021: approximately RMB502.9

million)

Gross profit decreased by approximately 98.0% to
approximately RMB2.0 million in 2022 (2021: approximately
RMB99.7 million)

Loss for the year increased by approximately 64.2% to
approximately RMB202.6 million in 2022 (2021: approximately
RMB123.4 million)

Basic loss per share was approximately RMB13.99 cents in
2022 as compared with basic loss per share of approximately

RMB13.15 cents in 2021

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2021: RMBnil) for the year ended 31 December 2022

MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFHRE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Morris Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“2022" or
the “Reporting Period”) to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

2022 was a challenging and dramatic year for the Group. The tense
supply chain resulting from the outbreak of pandemic in Mainland
China, coupled with tariff continuously implemented by US for China’s
export products, imposed tremendous stress to the Group’s operation.
In 2022, the Group has experienced significant capital problem, but
fortunately through the completion of placing and subscription of
new shares, introduced investor and completed the re-composition
of the domestic Company’s liabilities so that the Group could resume
business. Although the Group was going through challenging times,
but as the leading enterprises in the PRC continuously engaged in
sofa export business, Morris Home has possessed a vast domestic sales
network and solid business foundation, committed to maintaining
relationships with customers for the year, launched diversified high-
quality products as well as continued to develop the domestic brand
of sofa.

Through the committed efforts of the whole group, the worst time
has passed and the Group reviewed the operation model by this time
to inject new impetus for management team. | am grateful to be
the chairman of Morris Home to stay abreast with the Company to
seize the opportunity in future market. Morris Home has over 20-year
development history, experienced many difficulties, but was acclaimed
among international customers with high-quality products. It is also
based on cultivating to foreign market and the full understanding of
overseas customers, so that the Group has advantages to develop.
Under the positive attitude for the Group’s future development, |
joined in Morris Home's management team to lead the Company to

optimize operation and better future plan.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EREHE ()

In the new year, the market environment is still unpredictable, the
Group will operate in a light asset model to reduce operational
pressure and operational risk, and will continue to expand the existing
markets, including the United States, Europe and the Mainland.
Through the change of management team, | am confident that we
can bring more positive benefits and possibilities to the Company,
and lead the Company to focus on effective cost control to realize
maximum operational benefits and enhance shareholders’ confidence
in the Company’s future prospects.

Tse Kam Pang

Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Kam Pang, aged 68, is the chairman of the Group and
was appointed as an executive Director on 17 October 2022. He is
responsible for providing leadership to the Board.

He is a founder, the chairman of the board of directors and an
executive director of Royale Home Holdings Limited (“Royale
Home"), a company the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1198). He is also a controlling
shareholder of Royale Home who is deemed to be interested in
approximately 74.86% of the issued share capital of Royale Home.
He held the position of Deputy Managing Director at Ultronics
International Holdings Limited (currently known as DreamEast Group
Limited), a company the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 0593), from 1993 to 1995. He has over
30 years of experience in the international trade and China trade
business.

Mr. Tse Kam Pang is a vice chairman of Hong Kong Furniture
Association and has extensive experience in the manufacture and sale
of furniture business. Mr. Tse Kam Pang is the father of Mr. Tse Hok
Kan, a non-executive Director and the father-in-law of Mr. Chong
Tsz Ngai, an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Mr. Tse is the sole shareholder and sole director of Century Icon,
being the beneficial owner of 1,300,038,000 Shares, representing
approximately 47.27% of the issued share capital.

Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai, aged 34, is the chief executive officer of the
Group and was appointed as an executive Director on 17 October
2022. He is responsible for the overall management of the operations
of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he was a director of debt capital markets
(DCM) at United Overseas Bank Limited, Hong Kong Branch from
2021 to 2022. He was a vice president of DCM of CNCB (Hong Kong)
Capital from 2019 to 2021 and was previously a vice president of the
fixed income, currency and commodities department of GF Global
Capital Limited from March to December 2019.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEREBE(B)

548 B -
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Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai has over ten years of experience in the corporate
finance industry. Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai holds a Master’s Degree in
Finance from Imperial College London and was awarded a Bachelor’s
Degree in accounting and finance with first-class honour by Lancaster
University. Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai is a son-in-law of Mr. Tse Kam Pang,
the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and a controlling

shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director
on 18 March 2016. He was the chairman and chief executive officer
of the Group from 2016 to 2022. He is now responsible for the sales
and marketing of the Group.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd., and was deputy
general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July 1997 to
March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002, respectively, and
had been mainly responsible for exploration and development of
overseas markets of sofas and other furniture. He joined Morris Group
Co., Ltd. (“Morris PRC") as part of its management team in May
2002, served as its vice chairman and general manager since February
2005, and became the chairman of Morris PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’'s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a master’s
degree in business administration for senior management from
Zhejiang University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
in March 2007. He had also served as a corporate tutor for MBA
postgraduates in the Management School of Zhejiang University
from April 2007 to March 2012. Mr. Zou was accredited as a senior
economist by the Senior Economist Qualification Committee of
Zhejiang Province in December 2007.

With over 20 years of industry experience as mentioned above, Mr.
Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing related
businesses. Mr. Zou's spouse, Ms. Wu Xiangfei, a non-executive

Director, is a cousin of Mr. Shen Zhidong's spouse.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEReREEERERE (&)

Mr. Zou is the sole director of Morris Capital, being the beneficial
owner of 666,500,000 shares, representing approximately 24.24% of
the issued share capital of the Company. Morris Capital is owned as
to 85% of its shares by Mr. Zou Gebing and as to 15% of its shares
by Ms. Wu Xiangfei.

Mr. Shen Zhidong, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director
on 6 July 2017 and resigned on 9 November 2022. Prior to his
resignation, he was a senior vice president of the Group. He was also
a director of Masia Industries Limited, a subsidiary of the Company in
Cambodia. Mr. Shen was the head of administrative operations and
human resources matters of the Group.

Mr. Shen had served in the government sectors in Haining for over
ten years. From February 1999 to June 2010, Mr. Shen had served
in the Organization Department of Haining Municipal Committee of
the Communist Party of China in many positions including, among
others, as a section member, a deputy section leader, a section leader,
a committee member and a deputy bureau level coordinator. From
June 2010 to January 2014, Mr. Shen served as the deputy director of
the General Office of the People’s Government of Haining. In January
2014, Mr. Shen was employed by Morris PRC as its vice president. He
was employed by the Group as the senior vice president immediately
after completion of the transfer of the furniture division of Morris PRC
to the Group in December 2015.

Mr. Shen graduated from the Party School Open College of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in the study of

economic management in December 2002.

Mr. Shen'’s spouse is a cousin of Ms. Wu Xiangfei, a non-executive
Director and the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEREBE(B)
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Mr. Wu Yueming, aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director
on 6 June 2018 and resigned on 9 November 2022. Prior to his
resignation, he was the general manager of the administrative
department of the Company and was mainly responsible for
coordinating and managing back office support works and public
relations of the Company. He was also a director of Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co.,
Ltd., each a subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Wu joined Morris PRC in 2005 where he worked as a technician
of semi-finished sofa production. He was subsequently promoted
to manager of the logistics department in September 2010, deputy
office director in April 2012 and standing deputy office director in
August 2014 at Morris PRC. He was then employed as the general
manager of the administrative department of the Company in January
2017. He obtained the qualification of assistant economist issued
by the Haining City Human Resources and Social Security Bureau in
November 2014. He also obtained the graduation certificate from the
Normal College of the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics

in administration management through distance learning in July 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tse Hok Kan, aged 39, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 17 October 2022.

He holds a Master of Science degree in Accounting from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree — joint major in accounting and finance from Simon Fraser

University.

Prior to joining the Group, he had held the position of executive
director of Royale Home from 2016 to 2019. He has extensive
experience in production, development, marketing of furniture and
Hong Kong and China trade businesses. Mr. Tse Hok Kan is a son of
Mr. Tse Kam Pang, the chairman of the Board, an executive Director
and a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Ms. Wu Xiangfei, aged 45, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 9 November 2022.
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She has vast experience in the furniture business. Ms. Wu Xiangfei
has been the vice chairman of the board of directors of Morris Group
Company Limited since 2018, during which she has accumulated
experience and gained knowledge in manufacturing and sales of

sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing, an executive

Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 October 2022. He is mainly
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgement to
the Board. He is also the chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.

He served as the vice president of the Hong Kong Shipping
Department (F 78 EMAAEL) of Citibank (fEFEERTT), the vice president
of the Asia Pacific Elevator Department of United Technologies
Company (B4 £4i7 2 &), the managing director of Hintful Capital
Group ( 2 %} g& & ££ @), professor of Beijing Normal University —
Hong Kong Baptist University (1t AT R ZE —H B Z & AE) United
International College, executive dean of the HKU Zhejiang Institute
of Research and Innovation (& 7 K 2 4 /T &} £ K 1l # 7T bx ). He
is currently a member of the Executive Committee of Hong Kong
Economic Association (/&AL EE @), the chief advisor of the think
tank of Qingshanhu Scitech City in Hangzhou, Zhejiang (37 I #7 /M
WA R ), the president of Zhuhai Chuangke Yinlian Business
Consulting Co., Ltd (2K )8 & EL 5| Bt 75 75 3% 380 B R 2 7)), the vice
chairman of Shanghai Qiaoyue loT Technology Co., Limited (1% (_E
&) e AR B R A R)), a Director of Hong Kong Economic Trading
International Association (B/EBIF 4 E A EH ) and the chairman

of the Education and Training Committee (M B IZFHIZ 8 &).
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Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent is an independent director of China
Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601916) and the Stock Exchange (stock code:
2016). He was the chief financial officer of Yew Chung Education
Foundation in Hong Kong from 2001 to 2013. From 2010 to 2015,
he served as an independent non-executive director of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1143). Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent was an
independent director of Jiangling Motors Corporation Limited, a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange from 2008 to 2012
and a non-executive director of Finet Group Limited (stock code:
8317), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange from
2002 to 2008. Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent is a Certified Practicing
Accountant of CPA Australia. Dr. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent obtained
a Doctoral Degree in Business Administration from the University
of Western Sydney in Australia in May 2004, a Master’s Degree in
Commerce from the University of Hitotsubashi in Japan in March
1981, and a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from The University
of Hong Kong in November 1973.

Professor Lee Chack Fan, G.B.S., S.B.S., J.P., aged 77, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 9 November
2022. He is mainly responsible for supervising and providing
independent judgement to the Board. He is also a member of each
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration

Committee.

He taught at the University of Western Ontario and the University of
Toronto, before starting a long career with Ontario Hydro in Canada
more than 20 years, where he worked on a variety of projects that
included water resources management, hydropower and nuclear
power. He joined the University of Hong Kong in 1994 as a professor
of the Department of Civil Engineering, and successively as chair
professor of geotechnical engineering, Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Vice-
President) and Director of the School of Professional and Continuing
Education (HKU SPACE). He has also served as a specialist consultant
or an advisor to many international bodies such as the United Nations
Development Plan, World Bank and Asian Development Bank on
numerous energy and infrastructure projects in many parts of the

world.
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Professor Lee Chack Fan is an internationally renowned expert in
geotechnical engineering. He served as a consultant and technical
adviser to numerous energy and infrastructure projects in China and
overseas, including the construction of the Three Gorges Dam of the
Yangtze River. Professor Lee Chack Fan’s eminent achievement in civil
engineering has been highly recognised. He was awarded the K. Y.
Lo Medal in 2001 by the Engineering Institute of Canada, was elected
a Fellow of the Canadian Academy of Engineering and a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Science in 2001, and an
Academician of the Chinese Academy of Engineering in 2003.

Professor Lee Chack Fan is also the Chairman of the Board of the
Hong Kong Institute for Promotion of Chinese Culture; the Jao
Tsung-I Academy Management Board; Director of the Jao Tsung-I
Petite Ecole, University of Hong Kong; member of the Commission
on Strategic Development; etc. He previously served as the Chairman
of the Council of the Lord Wilson Heritage Trust; the Harbourfront
Enhancement Committee and the Veterinary Surgeons Board and
was a member of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District

Authority and the Culture and Heritage Commission.

Professor Lee Chack Fan was appointed a Justice-of-the Peace in
2003 and awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star and the Gold Bauhinia
Star in 2005 and 2013 respectively. He was also a recipient of the K.
Y. Lo Medal of the Engineering Institute of Canada in 2001; Fulbright
Distinguished Scholar in 2005; Gold Medal of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers in 2008; Queen Elizabeth II's Diamond Jubilee
Medal in 2012; as well as honorary Doctor of Science degrees from
the University of Western Ontario (2006), Plymouth University (2012),
Edinburgh Napier University (2012) and the University of Macau
(2014).

TIESHRRHABEANENE I TEER

BB E RGNS B IR R B R
EAMERREMER  SFERIZEX
BOER - TESHEBRT L ARIENGD
Rt E SR ERA ° 200146 © HEMEX
TEBTEEK Y. LoEE - 2001 F & 2 hN
EXRTIRERRTRESTERSMRE LT
2003F B R TSR L o

FIREBYBRINEEEERELRER D
BEeXR  BarEXEETEZESE
& BEANBEREAMNERER KB
BREEEKESE - HEAHEEBEXY
ERREEEXF HEHKBEZEGRES
BREERIFE WAANANXIEERERR
EERLEEEZEE -

IR S HIR 2003 F ER T A KL

I3 BIA2005 2013 F ERRRAEZ N
SEHEE - HITR2001FENE AR TE
PTAEIRK. Y. LoBEE ; 2005F EEBEME
B HE A SE 2008 FEE BT RMES

SE20NFEELZEFFN DA _MEE
HE AR INE KL K KE (2006

F)  EREEFFHAEQ012F) - BETER
N RAER (201249 ) ROBFIRE(20144F)
MR aE L a -

.
RAKX

FERARAR 2022 4 15

P78 BN\ e e WY




PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEREBE(B)

548 B -

-

Professor Lee Chack Fan is currently a non-executive director of
Zhaobangji Properties Holdings Limited (stock code: 1660) and
an independent non-executive director of Hui Xian Real Estate
Investment Trust (stock code: 87001), both of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange. He also served in the following companies the shares
of which are or were listed on the Stock Exchange, as an independent
non-executive director of South Shore Holdings Limited (stock code:
577) from 2005 to 2021, AID Life Science Holdings Limited (known as
8088 Investment Holdings Limited when it was delisted in 2022) (stock
code: 8088) from 2015 to 2017 and Shimao International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 649) from 2004 to its withdrawal of listing in
2007.

Professor Lee Chack Fan graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a Bachelor’s degree in Civil Engineering in 1968, and a Master’s
degree in 1970. He received his Doctor of Philosophy degree from
the University of Western Ontario in 1972, in the field of geotechnical
engineering.

Ms. Chen Jianhua, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 17 October 2022. She is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
She is also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination

Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Chen Jian Hua has vast experience in the furniture and household
business. Ms. Chen Jianhua has held management positions in
Nantong Eastern Yisidun Furniture Co., Ltd.* (@& 57 FHER A
BBRA&]) since 2000, during which she has accumulated experience
and gained knowledge in operations and sales and marketing fields.
Ms. Chen Jianhua specializes in franchising operations and has
represented various furniture brands in the PRC. She has gained deep
knowledge and understanding in retail distribution and business
management and valuable insight in the furniture industry.
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Mr. Liu Haifeng, aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 6 July 2017 and resigned on 16 May 2022.
Prior to his resignation, Mr. Liu was mainly responsible for supervising
and providing independent judgement to the Board. He was also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Liu has been a tutor to master students in public administration
of faculties of humanities of Donghua University since 2011
and a deputy manager of Donghua University Master of Public

Administration Center since September 2014.

Mr. Liu obtained his master degree in education from Shanghai
Normal University in June 2004. Mr. Liu later obtained his doctoral
degree in management science and engineering from Donghua
University School of Business and Management in June 2009. He then
later completed his postdoctoral study in applied economics at Fudan
University and obtained his certificate of postdoctoral in May 2014.

Mr. Chu Guodi, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 28 May 2019 and resigned on 16 May
2022. Prior to his resignation, Mr. Chu was mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
He was also a member of each of the Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. He has over 18 years
of experience as a practicing lawyer in China. He is currently a partner
of W /EMEAESFT (Zhejiang Haixiang Law Firm*). Mr. Chu has
been an independent director of #T/TE & ZELT 2RI RMH B R
A 7] (Zhejiang Huatie Construction Safety Science And Technology
Co., Ltd.*), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange with a
stock code of 603300, since June 2014 and an independent director
of BRI & B R A Al (Brother Enterprises Holding Co., Ltd.*),
a company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with a stock code of
002562, since April 2017.

Mr. Chu is a member of # % 2 & 2 £ 1 & (All-China Lawyers’
Association*). He graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor
degree of law.
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Mr. Qian Jun, aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 31 July 2020 and resigned on 14 April
2022. Prior to his resignation, Mr. Qian was mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He
was also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

Mr. Qian is a practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since 2012 with 9 years extensive practising
experience in accounting field. He obtained Bachelor of Economics
degree from Fudan University, Shanghai, China in 2007. He is
currently the department manager of Zhejiang Zhengjian Certified

Public Accountants Co., Limited in China.

Ms. Wu Weixia, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 April 2022 and resigned on 9 November
2022. Prior to her resignation, she was mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. She
was also the chairlady of the Audit Committee and a member of each
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

Ms. Wu holds a master’s degree of Professional Accounting from
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics. She is a practicing
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
joined Shanghai D&M Baychine Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Limited since 2010 and is currently served as the chief accountant. Ms.
Wu has over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, finance,
auditing and taxation.

Mr. Tan Tianhong, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 April 2022 and resigned on 9 November
2022. Prior to his resignation, he was mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.
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Mr. Tan holds a bachelor’s degree of Electronic Engineering and
Instrumentation from Xian Shiyou University. During the period from
May 2015 to December 2017, he was the Managing Director of
Zhejiang University Environmental Engineering Co., Limited. During
the period from January 2018 to December 2021, he has been
the Sales Director of Shanghai AEGIS Industrial Safety Co., Limited
("AEGIS"). The shares of AEGIS (Stock code: 430234) have been
guoted on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System
during the period from 2 July 2013 to 11 March 2021.

Ms. Zhao Hongyan, aged 60 was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 14 April 2022 and resigned on 9 November
2022. Prior to her resignation, she was mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board. She
was also the chairlady of the Nomination Committee and a member
of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree of Economics from Xinjiang
University of Finance & Economics in 1985, a master’s degree of
Economics (Finance) from Xiamen University in 1998 and a Doctor of
Management Science and Engineering from Donghua University in
2008. Ms. Zhao initially served as a professor in Donghua University in
2012, and was employed as a Doctoral advisor in 2013. Ms. Zhao is
currently the executive committee member of China Society of World

Economics.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chen Meijuan, aged 44, has over 19 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Ms. Chen joined the Group
in June 2002 and resigned on 10 November 2022. She served as
Deputy General Manager of Finance Department of the Group before
her appointment as the CFO. Ms. Chen was accredited as a senior
accountant by the Assessment Committee of Senior Accountant
Qualification of Zhejiang Province in December 2019.

*  For identification purpose only
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2022, the Group continued to develop new
markets and establish and expand sales channels. As a result of the
economic downturn, the impact of epidemic and the tariff issue,
market demand in sofa industry has correspondingly reduced. We
have introduced higher value product line in response to market
demand with more emphasis on the quality and innovation of
products. We have also explored new markets to expand the sale
volume of products, and focused on communication and collaboration

with customers to increase sales.

As a commodity, sofa has been put under pressure of protectionism.
We have made adjustments by investing in product design and
research and development to improve our competitiveness in the
market. We created multilevel trust product line to meet the needs of

various customers through different prices and function of sofa.

Cost savings can be achieved by appropriately reducing some
unnecessary labor costs, such as layoffs and overtime expenses.
In terms of procurement, the Group will continue to optimize the
procurement process to save procurement costs. At the same time,
we will control production costs by improving production efficiency
and applying automation technology, while ensuring product quality
and customer service stability.

Business development in North America

As our revenue was mainly derived from the U.S., the Sino-US tension
and the COVID-19 epidemic had material impacts on the Group,
leading to a significant decrease in our results in North America as
compared to the same period of last year. Due to the partial sharing
of tariffs with our US customers, the profit margin of our exported

products was also affected.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Retail business development in China and Hong
Kong

As of December 2022, the Group had a total of 1 flagship showroom

and 1 self-operated retail store in Mainland China.

In Hong Kong, the Group had a total of 6 self-operated retail stores in
Central, Sha Tin, Tsuen Wan, Kowloon Bay, Tseung Kwan O and Tai
Kok Tsui, respectively and 7 points of consignment sales in Kowloon
Bay, Kwun Tong, Yuen Long, Wan Chai, Tsuen Wan, Fo Tan and Lai
Chi Kok. The Group also introduced auxiliary decoration services to
establish one-stop services including decoration and furniture setting,

instilling its stylish home design concept into Hong Kong market.

Business development in other countries

The COVID-19 has an ongoing effect on the consumption sentiment
on a worldwide basis. To cope with these challenges, we have
continued to make efforts to maintain the relationship with customers
and will continue to leverage on our resources in growing the
business with these customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year of 2022, the principal business activities of Group
comprise the manufacturing and sales of sofas, sofa covers and other
furniture products.

During the year, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB132.0 million (2021: approximately RMB502.9 million),
representing a decrease of approximately 73.8% as compared with
last year, which was mainly due to the impact of COVID-19 epidemic
globally. Affected by the prolonged effect of COVID-19 on worldwide
basis, we experienced reduced sales volume of products and
decreased revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture

products.
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The net loss of the Group amounted to approximately RMB202.6
million during the year, as compared with the net loss of RMB123.4
million in last year. The increase in net loss were mainly attributable
to decrease in sales volume in export business after the suspension of
the factories in PRC.

The Company’s basic loss per ordinary share was RMB13.99 cents
for the year of 2022 (2021: RMB13.15 cents) based on the loss for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company of
approximately RMB199.7 million (2021: RMB121.5 million), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,427,475,671 for
the year of 2022 (2021: 924,188,000).

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately 67.8%
from approximately RMB403.3 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB130.0 million in 2022, which was primarily due to the decrease in
sales volume.

Gross profit

The Group’s gross profit for the year was approximately RMB2.0
million (2021: approximately RMB99.7 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 98.0% as compared with last year. The
gross profit margin decreased from 19.8% in 2021 to 1.5% in 2022
primarily due to the increase in clearance sales and impairment of

inventory.

Other income and gains

The other income and gains of the Group increased from
approximately RMB23.9 million in 2021 to approximately RMB34.6
million in 2022. Such increase was primarily due to the gain on
termination of lease and compensation on factory relocation in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (E)

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 46.5% from approximately RMB67.8 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB36.3 million in 2022. Such decrease was primarily
due to the decrease in export after the suspension of factories in PRC.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group increased by approximately
33.8% from approximately RMB112.7 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB150.8 million in 2022, which was primarily
attributed to the redundancy payment due to the suspension of
factories in PRC.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group decreased by approximately 66.7%
from approximately RMB22.5 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB7.5 million in 2022, which was primarily due to the decrease in
interest on bank loans.

Income tax credit/(expense)

The income tax credit of the Group was approximately RMB0.8
million in 2022, as compared to income tax expense of approximately
RMB3.1 million in 2021. The reversal of income tax expense in 2021
to income tax credit in 2022 was mainly attributable to the over-
provision in prior year and deferred tax expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings amounted to approximately RMB69.2 million, of
which RMB44.9 million were matured and repayable on demand.
Subsequent to the reporting period, amount of RMB35.7 million
had been extend the maturity date to 2030. The bank and other

borrowings’ interest rates ranged between 4.5% to 6.6% per annum.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is total debts (comprised of
amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities, convertible loan
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company as at the end of the year
and multiplied by 100%. The gearing ratio of the Group was not
applicable as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31 December
2022 and 2021.

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022.

Trade receivables

The trade receivables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB33.1 million (2021: approximately RMB39.9 million) as at
31 December 2022, primarily due to the decrease in sales to the
Group's customers in the fourth quarter in 2022 as compared to the

corresponding period in 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (E)

Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group decreased to approximately
RMB143.9 million (2021: approximately RMB179.1 million) as at 31
December 2022, primarily due to the decrease in purchases from the
Group's suppliers in the fourth quarter in 2022 as compared to the

corresponding period in 2021.

Foreign exchange exposure

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from the Group’s operations are generally settled
in RMB. As a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollar against
RMB could adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During
2022, the Group did not experience any material difficulties or
impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange
fluctuation. The Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange
rate risk arising from its existing operations and new investments in
the future. The Group will further implement the necessary hedging
arrangement to mitigate any significant foreign exchange risk if and

when appropriate.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures in the course of the year
ended 31 December 2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments as at 31 December
2022 save as those disclosed in this annual report.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

There was no plan authorised by the Board for material investments
or additions of capital assets at the date of this annual report.

GOING CONCERN

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB199,679,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 and as at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of approximately RMB120,228,000
and RMB131,459,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities
in the normal course of business. The Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements based on going concern on the
assumptions and measures that:

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the Company
have given careful consideration to the future liquidity and financial
position of the Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial resources to continue
as a going concern. Certain plans and measures have been taken to
mitigate the liquidity position and to improve the Group's financial
position which include, but are not limited to, the followings:

(i) The ultimate holding company of the Company, Century Icon
Holdings Limited which is wholly owned by the substantial
shareholder of the Company, Mr. Tse Kam Pang, is willing to
provide financial support to the Group to enable the Group to
continue as a going concern and to settle its liabilities as and
when they fall due;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (E)

(i)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, two of the indirect (i) #Z2022F12A31HILFE * &%

wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group formulated pre- EMREEZEWNBATIEHEE
restructuring plans to resolve their debt positions and filed such AR EI AR BB BRI K F
plan with the People’s Court of Haining City (the “Court”). The Mt BliER TaEm ARER ([
restructuring proposal has been sanctioned by the Court in the Bel) o EHTREN2022F8A5H
PRC on 5 August 2022. According to the restructuring proposal, BEHREUE M - IRIBEHETER -
the trade and bills payables and other payables and accruals BHAMNZMRIBABMNE S EMNR
of those two subsidiaries under pre-restructuring are expected T8 % AN SR 4R DA B L Ath & A~ SR TE % g
to be discharged by approximately 80%. The maturity date for STEREEIEEL80% © FTERT A
all of the interest-bearing bank borrowings will be extended to RITERNH A HERE20305F 0
2030 and reclassified as non-current liabilities. Subsequent to BB AERDERE - RIREER
the end of the reported period, the process of the restructuring 1% BHET{EEERTH

has been substantially completed;
(i) The Group will take steps to obtain external funding in order to (i) AEBFRIVEHESIITES @ LA
improve the working capital and liquidity and cash flow position WEREEHNEEES  RBEER

of the Group; RemEhn

(iv) The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls with an  (iv) A& EREUEEMNRAARELES - 5
aim to attain positive cash flows from operations; EERFBEHIERRESIR

(v)  The Group is currently re-negotiating the repayment schedules  (v) ZA%£EEAIEEE TEBAEZTHE

with certain of its debtors and endeavouring to request them BREHE  BOREREERRER
to repay the trade receivables, other receivables and amounts EMECERLZHERE HEKK
due from related companies in accordance with the repayment I8 - FEofth FE WK IE K FE IS ARG A RIER
schedules agreed with them; and B &

(viy The Group has actively negotiated with stakeholders for (v AEBRBGEZDERE  UWEEH

the purpose of obtaining further financing when necessary, ZERESE—FTRE  BEETRR
including but not limited to shareholder’s loan, equity financing, BREER - RIERE - |RITERLE
bank borrowing and issuance of new convertible bonds to THMAIRRES  ReASER
improve the liquidity of the Group. FES o
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The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above-mentioned plans and measures, the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations and to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due within twelve months from the
date of approval of the consolidated financial statements. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above plans
and measures are in progress, material uncertainties exist as to
whether management of the Group will be able to achieve its plans
and measures as described above. Whether the Group will be able to
continue as a going concern would depend upon the Group'’s ability

to generate adequate financing and operating cash flows.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments
may have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may need
to be realised other than at the amounts at which they are currently
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position. The effect
of these adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (E)

The views of the management and the audit
committee on the material uncertainty opinion
relating to going concern

In view of the net current liabilities position, the Directors have
carried out a detailed review of the cash flow forecast of the Group
covering a period of not less than twelve months from the end of the
reporting period based on certain underlying assumptions including
(i) the Group succeeding in taking measures to tighten cost control;
(i) the Directors succeeding in strengthening the capital base of the
Company including but not limited to, seeking new investment and
business opportunities; (iii) the shareholder of the Company, Century
Icon Holdings Limited, providing financial support to the Group to
enable the Group to continue as a going concern and to settle its
liabilities as and when they fall due; and (iv) the Group succeeding in
re-negotiating the repayment schedules with certain of its debtors and
endeavouring to request them to repay the trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related companies in accordance
with the repayment schedules agreed with them. Taking into account
the above assumptions, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within the twelve months
from 31 December 2022. The Directors will continue to negotiate
with banks and other financiers, financial institutions and potentially
interested investors with the view to obtaining new funding whether
by way of equity or debt financing to improve the Company’s
financial position and/or liquidity, with the objective of removing the

material uncertainty on going concern.

During the audit process, the audit committee discussed with the
management during which the management presented the financial
highlights and conveyed the key audit matters expressed by the
auditors. After considering the circumstances surrounding the
key audit matters and the management’s presentation, the audit
committee concurred with the management’s judgements regarding

the going concern basis of the financial statements.
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PLACING OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On 18 January 2022, the Company and Silverbricks Securities
Company Limited (“Silverbricks”) entered into the placing
agreement (the “First Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Company appointed Silverbricks to place, on a best effort basis,
a maximum of 200,000,000 shares to not less than six independent
placees at a price of HK$0.175 per share, raising net proceeds of
approximately HK$34.65 million which are intended to be used to
repay debts and replenish the working capital of the Group. The
First Placing Agreement was terminated on 11 February 2022. On 25
February 2022, the Company and Silverbricks entered into another
placing agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 28 February 2022) (the “Second Placing Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company appointed Silverbricks to place, on
a best effort basis, a maximum of 200,000,000 shares to not less
than six independent placees at a price of HK$0.12 per share, raising
gross proceeds of approximately HK$24 million and net proceeds
of approximately HK$23.71 million which are intended to be used
to repay debts and replenish the working capital of the Group. The
closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
Second Placing Agreement was HK$0.088 per Share. The aggregate
nominal value of the maximum number of placing shares was
US$200,000 and the net placing price was approximately HK$0.119
per placing share. The Second Placing Agreement was completed on
23 March 2022 and a total of 200,000,000 Placing Shares have been
successfully placed by Silverbricks to not less than six placees who are

independent third parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEENWRD T (E)

SANCTION OF RESTRUCTURING PROPOSAL FOR
TWO SUBSIDIARIES IN THE PRC BY THE COURT

On 19 January 2022, two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group, Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (3 ST B )% 28 &7
ZEFARAT) (“Apollo Leather”) and Zhejiang Morris Fashion
Home Co., Ltd. CINTI R A B M K/EHBRAF]) (“Fashion Home")
(collectively, the “Relevant Subsidiaries”), filed pre-restructuring
applications (the “Pre-restructuring”) with the People’s Court of
Haining City (the “Haining Court”) to request the Haining Court to
allow the Relevant Subsidiaries to formulate pre-restructuring plans
to resolve their debt positions. On 13 May 2022, the Haining Court
accepted the restructuring application of the Relevant Subsidiaries
on a consolidated basis (the “Restructuring”). The restructuring
proposal was approved by the requisite number of creditors
representing the requisite amount of debt at the creditors’ class
meetings and was sanctioned by the Haining Court on 5 August
2022. Further details of the Pre-restructuring and the Restructuring
were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 19 January
2022, 13 May 2022, 5 August 2022 and 18 August 2022.

SUBSCRIPTION AND PLACING OF NEW SHARES
UNDER SPECIFIC MANDATE

On 26 May 2022, the Company entered into the share subscription
agreement (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement dated 5
August 2022) (the “Share Subscription Agreement”) with Century
Icon Holdings Limited (the “Offeror”), a company controlled by
Mr. Tse, pursuant to which the company conditionally agreed to
allot and issue 1,300,000,000 shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.063 per share for the total consideration of HK$81,900,000
(the “Share Subscription”). On 5 August 2022, the Company and
Forwin Securities Group Limited (“Forwin"”) entered into the placing
agreement (the “Third Placing Agreement”), pursuant to which
Forwin agreed to place, on a fully underwritten basis, 250,000,000
shares to placees for the total consideration of HK$27,500,000 or
HK$0.11 per share (the “Third Placing”). The net Share Subscription
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Price, after taking into account the estimated expenses of the Share
Subscription, is approximately HK$0.61 per Subscription Share. The
aggregate nominal value of the Subscription Shares under the Share
Subscription was US$1,300,000 based on the nominal value of
US$0.001 per Share and the aggregate nominal value of the Placing
Shares under the Placing will be US$250,000 based on the nominal
value of US$0.001 per Share. The net Placing Price, after taking
into account the maximum placing commission and the estimated
expenses of the Third Placing, is approximately HK$0.104 per placing
share. At the extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM") on 15
September 2022 the Share Subscription Agreement and the Third
Placing Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were approved by the Shareholders. The Company was facing a
very challenging situation since 2019 as the Group experienced
immense pressure from the Sino-U.S. Trade War and the outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic, leading to a sharp decrease in sales.
The Group had been loss-making for three consecutive financial
years from 2019, losses of approximately RMB140 million, RMB90
million and RMB123 million were recorded for the years ended 31
December 2019, 2020 and 2021, respectively. The Group had also
recorded net liabilities of RMB51,171,000 as at 31 December 2021,
as compared to net assets of RMB76,743,000 as at 31 December
2020. The gross proceeds from the Share Subscription and the Third
Placing will be in aggregate approximately HK$109.4 million. The net
proceeds of the Share Subscription and the Placing in the amount of
HK$105.4 million will be used to repay indebtedness of the Group
under the Convertible Loan and make settlements for the Relevant
Subsidiaries’ indebtedness under the Restructuring. Completion of
the Share Subscription took place on 10 October 2022 and a total of
1,300,000,000 Shares have been allotted and issued to the Offeror.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWE D (&)

Completion of the Placing took place on 10 October 2022 and
136,364,000 Shares have been placed to Gain Lucky Investment
Limited and 113,636,000 Shares have been placed to Mr. Law Tsin
Bo Branden. The closing price as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
26 May 2022 (i.e. the date of the Share Subscription Agreement)
was HK$0.155 per Share. The closing price as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 26 May 2022 (i.e. the date of the Share Subscription
Agreement and the last trading preceding the Third Placing
Agreement) was HK$0.155 per Share. Further details of the Share
Subscription Agreement, the Third Placing Agreement and the Offers
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 5 August
2022, 25 August 2022, 26 September 2022, 10 October 2022, 17
October 2022 and 7 November 2022.

AMENDMENTS TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS
OF THE CONVERTIBLE LOAN

On 21 December 2022, the Company and IFC entered into an
amendment agreement (the “Amendment Agreement”) to amend
the principal terms and conditions of the Convertible Loan in relation
to, among others, the repayment schedule of the Convertible Loan.
Further details of the Amendment Agreement was disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

The management of the Group believes that talent is the basis
for long-term development of enterprises. The Group targets to
enhance its corporate image through building up and solidifying the
Company’s brand name. With the Five Hearts of Morris: ambition,
confidence, determination, perseverance and loyalty, as core values,
the Group targets to establish a distinctive corporate culture. Through
regular trainings and promotion of its corporate culture, the Group
provides its staff with opportunities for personal growth and enhances
the employees’ sense of belonging to the Group. In addition,
the Group provides its employees with competitive remuneration
packages and various benefits in line with industry practice. At the
same time, the Group strives to create a good working environment,
and cultivates teamwork spirit among employees. The Group carries
out performance evaluation quarterly, and conducts “Morris Artisans”
evaluations, aiming at elevating the morale of the Group's technicians.
The Group regularly reviews human resources policies to ensure that
the policies align with market practice and comply with regulatory
requirements. As of 31 December 2022, the Group employed 350
employees (31 December 2021: 1,070 employees). The total annual
salary and related costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) for 2022
were approximately RMB111.5 million (2021: RMB79.8 million).

The Company operates a share option scheme which allows the
Company to grant options to eligible persons as rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The share option scheme has been
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the share
option scheme during the period from 12 January 2017, the date on
which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Date”), up to 31 December 2022 and there were no outstanding
share options under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2022 and the date of this report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
TERABRRIEERE

The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified by
the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may

not be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

FINANCIAL AND ECONOMIC RISK

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
so as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable) to

meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. As at 31

December 2022, the Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly operates in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from its operations are generally settled in RMB. As
a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollars against RMB could
adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During 2022, the
Group did not experience any material difficulties or impacts on its

operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group used foreign exchange contract for hedging purposes
during 2022 and no hedging instruments outstanding as at 31
December 2022. The Group will continue to monitor closely the
exchange rate risk arising from its existing operations and new
investments in the future. The Group will further implement the
necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate any significant foreign
exchange risk when and if appropriate.

AT A BRI Ry = B R N A
FHEZE - B TXARERREMEERE
S - ANEREINA] RETFAE B AT A AR IR
BAEZERRAEEFEENEMRAR
RAHEERE -

T BB A R
REE SRS

AEEBRATHEZHERDESTE -
NERBRACHeHEREIZSREE
RHUHEANERBEBE(WMER) R
HEHEERHARSESTE - 12022512
A318  AEEBEERERALE -

S7INEEE JEL Bz

KEXTZEFPHBATEREXE  MA
SEMNEERBEIENTEEE - At
REDHEBARTAHE - MEAZEESL
IR —RAARBGEE - At - XL
ARENEERD @ IR S AREN
MBREEETHEE - R2022F - K&
BEBHRBE DI EFEER KB LR
EMEARMXZIEATE -

REBER2022FFAINES L IEL A
% MAN2022F 12 A318  MERTTED
HhITA AEEKEEHERBEBR
RRFILEFSI B ERRRETERE
o AEEBREERE—SEBRILEN
R EE - DARMEAE (R AR INE LB

RAEREEBRERDA 2022 3 35

P78 BN\ e e WY




PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
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Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taking
into account the customer’s payment history and current ability to
pay, any information specific to the customer and the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The credit period is
generally one to two months, extending up to three to four months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management.
Impairment losses are recorded for those overdue balances where
there is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables
due from the Group’s five largest customers who accounted for
approximately 60.53% and 52.6% of the Group’s total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 respectively. The credit
risk exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will continue
to be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. The Group
monitors the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and adjusts
the portfolio of bank deposits and borrowings where necessary.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)
TERERBRIEERE(E)

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group’s revenue is derived from the U.S., its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on the
U.S. economy. The Group's profitability and business growth are
affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits, public
debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political instability.
Moreover, the change of trade policies of the United States with
China in recent years have brought adverse impact to the business
of the Group. It remains uncertain how Sino-US trade policies will
develop since the inauguration of the new US administration in
January 2021.

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade
policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The principle of the Company’s
corporate governance is to promote effective internal control and
risk management measures, uphold a high standard of ethics,
transparency, responsibility and integrity in all aspects, and to ensure
that its affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the Company
to safeguard the interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value
and formulate its business strategies and policies. The Board has
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance practices and is
satisfied that save as disclosed below, the Company has complied
with all code provisions (“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable,
the recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "Corporate Governance Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) during the year and up to the date of this report.

According to Code Provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
Company has appointed Mr. Zou Gebing as both the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer in
the same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently maintained
by the operation of the senior management and the Board, which
comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board from
time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.
Mr. Zou Gebing has resigned as the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company with effect on 17 October
2022 and Mr. Tse has been appointed as the chairman of the Board
and Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai has been appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company on the same date. The roles of Chairman and
chief executive officer do not overlap.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERKRE (R)

Code Provision D.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that management should provide members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
issuer’'s performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to
enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge their
duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules. Although
the management of the Company did not provide a regular monthly
update to the members of the Board, the management keeps
providing information and updates to the members of the Board as
and when appropriate.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing

expectations of shareholders and investors of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of the Company
for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has made specific
enquiry with its incumbent Directors regarding compliance with the
Model Code during the Reporting Period, and they all confirmed that
they had fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code regarding directors’ securities transactions throughout
the Reporting Period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management, businesses,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Group. The
Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group'’s businesses and
operations. All important issues are discussed in a timely manner. The
Board delegates to the management the daily operations of the Group
under the directions set out by the management and the Board. The
Board has established various committees and has delegated to the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee of the Board (collectively, the “Board Committees”)
various duties. All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles
in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall meet
at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will be held
when warranted. The Directors at all times have full and timely access
to information of the Group. There is a procedure for Directors to
seek independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by
them at the expense of the Company, as appropriate.

Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included in the
agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the company
secretary with details of the decisions reached, any concerns raised
and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the final versions of Board
minutes are sent to the Directors for their information and records.
The draft minutes are sent to all Directors within a reasonable time
after each meeting for their comments before being formally signed.
The signed minutes are kept in safe custody by the company secretary
and are available for inspection by the Directors.
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CORPORATEGOVERNANCEREPORT(CONHNUED)
ERERKRE (R)

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ and officers’ liability has
been arranged by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Pang (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 October 2022)

Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 17 October 2022)

Mr. ZOU Gebing

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Hok Kan (appointed on 17 October 2022)
Ms. WU Xiangfei (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (appointed on 17 October 2022)
Prof. LEE Chack Fan (appointed on 9 November 2022)
Ms. CHEN lJianhua (appointed on 17 October 2022)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors

and Senior Management” on pages 9 to 19 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ERERKRE (&)

During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the individual

Directors at the meetings is set out below:

RmEHRE - SEFHE

¢ \E
@ﬁ#&i B

R :

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend during the Reporting Period
REEHBLE/ FERERENEBRY

Remuneration Nomination Audit General
Committee Committee Committee Board Meeting
Name of Director EENR ¥MZES REZZEE ERZER Ezg REAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Tse Kam Pang Bl e
(appointed on 17 October 2022) (RO022F107170EZF)  NATER NATER NATNER 5/5 0/0*
Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai HEFREE
(appointed on 17 October 2022) (RO022F107178EZF)  NATER NATER NATER 5/5 0/0*
Mr. Zou Gebing PRELE NATEE NATEFR NATEH 2225 Wiy
Mr. Wu Yueming RABEE
(resigned on 9 November 2022) (F20224 11 9REHE) NATER NATER NATNER 2022 2
Mr. Shen Zhidong TEREE
(resigned on 9 November 2022) (F20224 11 9REHE) NATER NATER NATNER 14122 02
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Tse Hok Kan HEG KL
(appointed on 17 October 2022) (RO022F107170EZF)  NATER NATER NATNER 4f5 0/0*
Ms. Wu Xiangfei SaRat
(appointed on 9 November 2022) (F20224 11 F9REZ(T) NATER NATER NATNER 33 0/0*
Independent non-executive Directors HYEHTES
Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent BmAEt
(appointed on 17 October 2022) (R2022F 10717 HEZ ) 11 1/1 0/0* 4f5 0/0*
Prof. Lee Chack Fan FREHR
(appointed on 9 November 2022) (F20224 11 F9REZ(T) 0/0* 0/0* 0/0* 33 0/0*
Ms. Chen Jianhua REftat
(appointed on 17 October 2022) (R2022F 10717 HEZ ) 11 1/1 0/0* 4f5 0/0*
Mr. Liu Haifeng sty
(resigned on 16 May 2022) (R202254 16HEHE) 22 3R 22 912 0/0*
Mr. Chu Guodi REDEE
(resigned on 16 May 2022) (R202254 16H&HE) 22 ViE] 11 712 0/0*
Mr. Qian Jun ShEE
(resigned on 14 April 2022) (R2022F4 5 14A8HF) 11 112 101 508 0/0*
Ms. Wu Weixia REELL
(appointed on 14 April 2022 and (R2022F4 514 EE R
resigned on 9 November 2022) FO0224 11 F9REHE) 01 112 22 913 02
Mr. Tan Tianhong BRI LS
(appointed on 14 April 2022 and (R2022F4 514 EE R
resigned on 9 November 2022) FO0224 11 F9REHE) 01 112 22 913 11
Ms. Zhao Hongyan BIERT
(appointed on 14 April 2022 and (R2022F4 514 EE R
resigned on 9 November 2022) FO0224 11 F9REHE) 01 112 22 913 11
* No meeting was held during the Directors’ tenure of office. * ZEFTHNWRBITEMEE o

42 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

.

540 B

-

RN W71



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
ERERKRE (R)

The non-executive Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) have been appointed for a specific term of three years and
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in

accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Independence of independent
non-executive directors

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall interests
of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to
provide their independent and objective views. In compliance with
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed at least three independent non-executive Directors,
representing more than one-third of the Board. At least one of the
independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise

as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group.
The Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in the

Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, save as disclosed under
the section headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report. The Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from all the independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the
view that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent

in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, Ms. Chen Jianhua and Prof. Lee Chack
Fan were appointed on 17 October 2022 and 9 November 2022,
replacing Ms. Wu Weixia, Mr. Tan Tianhong and Ms. Zhao Hongyan's
directorship in the Company. Each of Prof. Kwan, Ms. Chen and
Prof. Lee will retire and offer himself/herself for re-election as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company at the coming
annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2023.
Please refer to “Corporate Governance Practices” on pages 38 to 39

of this report for further details.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Company recognizes the Board independence is pivotal in
good corporate governance and Board effectiveness. The Board has
established mechanism to ensure independent views and input from

any Director.

The governance framework and the following mechanisms are
reviewed annually by the Board, through its Nomination Committee,
to ensure their effectiveness:

1. Three out of the eight Directors are Independent Non-Executive
Directors, which meets the requirements of the Listing Rules
that the Board must have at least three independent non-
executive Directors and must appoint independent non-
executive Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

2. The Nomination Committee will assess the independence,
qualification and time commitment of a candidate who is
nominated to be a new independent non-executive Director
before appointment and also the continued independence of
existing Independent non-executive Directors and their time
commitments annually. On an annual basis, all independent
non-executive Directors are required to confirm in writing their
compliance of independence requirements pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and to disclose the number of nature of
offices held by them in public companies or organizations and

other significant commitments.
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3. External independent professional advice is available as and
when required by individual Directors and/or committee of
the Board as prescribed in the terms of reference of such
committees.

4.  All Directors are encouraged to express freely and their
independent views and constructive challenges during the
Board/Board Committee meetings.

5. No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will generally be granted to independent non-
executive Directors.

6. A Director (including independent non-executive Director) who
has a material interest in a contract, arrangement or other
proposal shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any

Board resolution approving the same.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the above
mechanism(s) to ensure independent views and input are available to
the Board for the year ended 31 December 2022 and is satisfied that
such mechanisms remain to be effective.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition,
the Company arranges for and provides continuous professional
development training and relevant materials to the Directors to help
ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the commercial,
legal and regulatory environment in which the Group conducts
its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director. The Directors have
provided to the Company their record of continuous professional
development training, and they have participated in training activities

in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for
listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial

reporting; and
3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.

Dividend policy

On 10 December 2018, the Company adopted a new dividend policy
that may declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company, provided that the Group records a profit after tax and
that the declaration and distribution of dividends does not affect the
normal operations of the Group. The Company intends to pay out
an annual dividend payment at a payout ratio of not less than 30%
of the Group’s consolidated net profit after tax for the then financial
year after taking into consideration of certain factors stated in the

Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2018.
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Board diversity policy (“Diversity Policy”)

The Company adopted a policy of having a diversity in the
composition of Board members so as to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the
Diversity Policy and, from time to time, review the Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of eight Directors, of
which two Directors are female. The Board values gender diversity
is mindful of the objectives for the factors as set out in the Board
Diversity Policy for assessing the candidacy of the Board members
and will ensure that any successors to the Board shall follow the
Board Diversity Policy and that gender diversity will be achieved in
respect of the Board. The Board considers that the Board is sufficiently
diverse and will regularly review diversity and consider implementing
measurable objective where appropriate. Similar considerations will
also be in place to assess the candidacy of the senior management
team from time to time.

The Group has also taken, and continues to take, steps to promote
diversity at all levels of its workforce. Opportunities for employment,
training and career development are equally opened to all eligible
employees without discrimination. The male to female ratio in
the workforce of the Group including senior management as at
31 December 2022 is approximately 3:2 which is in line with the
gender ratio in the industry in which the Group operates. The Group
considers a number of factor when hiring employees including
gender, age, cultural and education background, qualification,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. The Board considers that the gender diversity in workforce

(including senior management) is currently achieved.
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Nomination policy

The Board is responsible for selection and appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Policy of the Board (the “Nomination Policy”)
sets out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship with
a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company'’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of factors in
making nominations, including but not limited to the skills and
experience of the candidate, the commitment that the candidate
is expected to devote to the Board and the competence of the
candidate in satisfying relevant legal and regulatory requirements. The
Company adopted the Diversity Policy as stated in the previous section
for achieving diversity on the Board with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs. The candidate to be nominated as
an INED must satisfy the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of

the Listing Rules.
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If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate. The Nomination
Committee may propose to the Board a candidate recommended
or offered for nomination by a shareholder of the Company as a
nominee for election to the Board. On making recommendation, the
Nomination Committee may submit the candidate’s personal profile to
the Board for consideration. The Board may appoint the candidate(s) as
director(s) to fill a casual vacancy(ies) or as an addition to the Board or
recommend such candidate to shareholders for election or re-election

(where appropriate) at the general meeting.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board Committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock

Exchange and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

All members of each Board Committee are independent non-

executive Directors.

Audit committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process, internal control
system and risk management system of the Group, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as

assigned by the Board.
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Members of the Audit Committee are Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent,
Ms. Chen Jianhua and Prof. Lee Chack Fan. They are all independent
non-executive Directors. Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent currently serves
as the chairman of the Audit Committee, replacing Ms. Wu Weixia,

who resigned on 9 November 2022.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 31 March 2023,
the Audit Committee reviewed, among other things, the audited
financial statements for 2022 with recommendations to the Board
for approval and discussed with the management and the external
auditors the accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditors covering major
findings in the course of the audit and the accounting and financial

reporting matters.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management and
make recommendations on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and senior management and on other employee benefit

arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, Ms. Chen
Jianhua and Prof. Lee Chack Fan. Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has assessed the performance of the
Directors and senior management of the Company, and reviewed and
recommended to the Board the remuneration policy and structure

relating to the Directors and senior management of the Company.
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Remuneration policy

The principles of the Group’s remuneration policy:

1. were applied to all Directors and senior management of the
Group for the Year and, so far as practicable, shall be applied to

them for subsequent years;

2. were sufficiently flexible taking into account future changes
in the Company’s business environment and remuneration

practice;

3. allowed remuneration arrangement to be designed to support
the business strategy of the Group and to align with the
interests of the Group’s shareholders; and

4. aimed at setting appropriate reward levels to reflect the
competitiveness in the market in which comparable companies
and the Group had been operating during the Year so as to

retain individuals with outstanding performance.

The remuneration package of each executive Director and senior
management of the Group during the Year was structured to include:

(@ an appropriate rate of base compensation for the job of each
Executive Director and senior management of the Group;

(b)  competitive benefit programs; and

(c) sets of performance measures and targets for performance-
related annual and long-term incentive plans based on the
appropriate independent advice and/or an assessment of the
interests of shareholders of the Company and taking into
account an appropriate balance of risk and reward for the
Directors and other participants.
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The remuneration for the Directors and senior management comprises
basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus. Details of
the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for 2022 are set out in
note 8 to the financial statements.

Nomination committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the Directors, to
assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,

to take up references and to consider related matters.

The Nomination Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent, Ms. Chen
Jianhua and Prof. Lee Chack Fan. Prof. Kwan Pun Fong Vincent

currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
requirements of the business of the Group and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. An external recruitment
agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection

process when necessa ry.

Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of
the Board, which includes gender, age, cultural and educational
background, length of service, skills, knowledge and professional
experience of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the

benefits of diversity of Board members.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessed independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

Corporate governance functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, namely:

(i) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

(iiiy  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities trading)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v)  to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate governance

report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board will continue to review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuous professional development
participations of the Directors, as well as the Company’s compliance

with the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDITORS" REMUNERATION

During 2022, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services
provided by the Group’s external auditors are set out below:

AN
vl

Tz 25 Bl B

R20224F - RNEBIMNERZ BB B E TR
RIS ERES A, TRES BB RINT :

2022

20224

RMB’000

AREFIT

Audit and audit related services Eet R ETHEERS 1,433
Non-audit services: Taxation and other IERETIRTS « B R H A B R

professional services -

1,433

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for handling company secretarial
matters. The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Lam Hoi Lun.
Mr. Lam has received no less than 15 hours of professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board, supported by the finance and accounting department,
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have been
adopted. Appropriate accounting policies have also been used and
applied consistently. The appropriateness of the preparation of the
Company's consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis
largely depends upon the outcome of the underlying assumptions as
detailed in Note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, which in
particular include: (i) cost control tightening measures; (ii) alternatives
to strengthen the capital base; (iii) financial support from the ultimate
holding company; and (iv) re-negotiation with debtors. However,
the eventual outcome of the plans and measures described above
are inherently uncertain. The conditions stated in Note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, including the net loss, net current
liabilities, net liabilities, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
lease liabilities, convertible loan, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group, indicate the existence of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubts about the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.
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The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is
included in the Report of the Independent Auditors on pages 94 to

102 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems, and the
Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least
annually covering material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, to ensure that the systems in place are
adequate and effective. The Group adopts a risk management system
which manages the risk associated with its business and operations.
The system comprises the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.
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The Company has in place an internal control system which is

compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The COSO

framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding

effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial

reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The

five key components of the COSO framework are shown as follows:

Control

Environment:

Risk Assessment:

Control Activities:

Information and

Communication:

Monitoring:

A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how

risks should be managed.

Action established by policies and procedures
to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives
are carried out.

Internal and external communication to provide
the Group with the information needed to carry
out day-to-day controls.

Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group's relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible for
risk management and internal control systems of the Group and for

reviewing its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent adviser with professional staff in possession of relevant
expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group in order to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The review plan has been
approved by the Board and the Audit Committee. The Board and the
Audit Committee had also reviewed the resources, staff qualifications
and experience and training programs of the external independent
adviser and considered they are adequate and sufficient.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
the relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”) and the Listing
Rules.
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In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness
and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and
implements an inside information policy and procedures. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure

requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group

enters into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules
and regulations regarding the management of inside information,
including that all employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company, are required to comply with the securities
transaction rules adopted by the Company which are on terms no less

exacting than those required under the Listing Rules.

The Board and the Audit Committee had reviewed the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report
and believes that the existing systems are adequate and effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to
provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and the Listing
Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting (“AGM")
of the Company to be held each year and at the venue as determined
by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an AGM, is called an

extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at general meeting

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal
(the “Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the Company’s branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the Board
will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal may be
included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Putting enquiries by shareholders to the board

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and
the Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to
enquiries from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are set

out below:

Name: Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai

Telephone: (852) 2106 3288

Email: Anthony.chong@morrishome.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at the following
correspondence address and addressing to the Board:

Address: No. 52, Fu Hang Road, Tuen Mun, Hong Kong
Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings,
share transfer, share registration and payment of dividend to Tricor

Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch share registrar in

Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor Services Limited are set

out below:

Address: 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com
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Communication with shareholders

Under its shareholders’ communication policy, the Board and senior
management maintain a continuing dialogue with the Shareholders
and investors through various channels including the Company’s AGM
to answer Shareholders’ questions. The chairman and other members
of the Board are present at the AGM. The annual report and AGM
circular is distributed to all the Shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the AGM.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Company’s shareholders’ communication policy including steps taken
at the general meetings the handling of queries received (if any) and
the multiple channels of communication and engagement in place,
and considered the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy
has been properly implemented during the year and under review and
is effective.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the AGM, the publication of annual
reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high level of

transparency.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum of
association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated articles

of association on the Listing Date.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Company for 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group’s
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators during
2022 are set out in the sections headed “Financial Highlights”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on page 6, pages 7 to 8 and pages 20 to 34 respectively of this
annual report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the section headed “Principal Risks and
Uncertainties” on pages 35 to 37 of this annual report. The content is
part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Being manufacturing and trading companies in the PRC,
the Group is subject to various environmental laws and regulations
set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal governments.
Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations. During 2022, the Group has complied
with relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the operations of the Group. Further, any changes in applicable
laws, rules and regulations are brought to the attention of relevant

employees and relevant operation units from time to time.

A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will
be published on the Investor Relations section of the Company’s
(http://www.morrishome.com.hk/) and the Stock Exchange’s
(https://www.hkexnews.hk/) websites at the same time as the

publication of the Company’s annual report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for 2022 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
103 to 104 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022. As at the date of this annual report,
the Board was not aware that any shareholders of the Company had

waived or agreed to any arrangement to waive dividends.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during 2022 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to the

Company’s financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Use of proceeds from the Second Placing

The net proceeds after deducting all relevant costs and expenses of
the Second Placing was approximately HK$23.71 million.
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The details of the proposed use of net proceeds and the actual use of

AERSRESFHEEZARRERER

proceeds during the year are as follows: ERT
Net proceeds
utilised during Amount Unutilised
Allocation the yearended  utilised up to proceeds as at
of thenet 31 December 31 December 31 December Expected
Proposed use of proceeds proceeds 2022 2022 2022 timeline
BZ2022F R2022F
12A31H1Lt BEZE20226F 12A31H
FERAN 12A318# REAH
FrEREREAR SEAEREFE BREARE ERfASE F8&IE  EHRBX
(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B&ETT) (B&BTT) (B&BT) (B&ET)

Repayment of debts and 23.71 23.71 23.71 Nil  N/A
replenishment of working ' NEA
capital

HEEEREREEELES

All the proceeds from the Second Placing have been utilized as at 31

December 2022.

HEHBA -

F XSRS FIEH R 2022F 12 A 31

Use of proceeds from the Share Subscription and the R RERE = REEMESHIER

Third Placing

%

/8

The net proceeds after deducting all relevant costs and expenses  FIS B FE(MBRMHRBELFE ZNEE

of the Share Subscription and the Third Placing was approximately

HK$105.4 million.
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The details of the proposed use of net proceeds and the actual use of AFEEEL S FHEEEZARLEERER

proceeds during the year are as follows: BERT
Net proceeds
Revised utilised during Amount Unutilised
Allocation allocation of the yearended utilised upto proceeds as at
of the net thenet  31December  31December 31 December
Proposed use of proceeds proceeds proceeds 2022 2022 2022  Expected timeline
B2a0% 2022
fiE%E  12A31AL  EE2n%E 125318
ARHE BELE EEERN 12A318H KER
FrETERERE HERE A28 FERERE  ERERAER  FSRERE  BEREXR

(HK$ million) (HK$ million) (HKS million) (HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(B8AT) (B8AT) (BB#%T) (B8AT) (B8%T)

Repayment of indebtedness

HEEY
- repayment of indebtedness under 435 701 70.1 70.1 - NA
the Restructuring TER
-BESHERER
- partial repayment of the overdue amount 56.5 20.8 123 123 85  ByMarch 2023
under the Convertible Loan 2023F3R71
—HHEETRRETE THRHRTE
Replenishment of general working capital 54 145 145 145 - NA
wr-REELS TER
Total 105.4 1054 97.9 97.9 8.5
@

N,

The proposed use of proceeds from repayment of indebtedness as  Bi& A& MIEERNEEBEEMERIENE
disclosed in the Joint Announcement was based on the best estimation AR HER AN EE R E TR AEE
made by the Group in relation to the then market conditions REtA& QA% B EIR B AR R B MR ER
and the Group’s financial conditions as at the date of the Joint &fe

Announcement.
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After completion of the Share Subscription and Third Placing, in view
of the Group's urgent capital needs to repay additional indebtedness
under the Restructuring and resume and maintain a requisite level of
operations, the Board reallocated the use of part of the unutilised net
proceeds from the Share Subscription and Third Placing. The use of
part of the net proceeds in the amount of HK$35.7 million originally
intended for partial repayment of the outstanding amount under the
Convertible Loan has been reallocated as (i) HK$26.6 million for the
repayment of indebtedness under the Restructuring; and (ii) HK$9.1
million for replenishment of working capital, mainly to sustain basic

operational needs of the Group.

Following the sanction of the Restructuring proposal, funding needs
in the sum of RMB22.9 million (approximately HK$26.6 million) arisen
in addition to the initial estimates of the Company, comprising (a)
a creditor bank opted for receiving discounted repayment at 20%
of the outstanding amount owing to it instead of an extension of
the loan pursuant to the Restructuring proposal, resulting in the
sum of RMB12.5 million (approximately HK$14.6 million) payable
by the Group; (b) additional claims in the sum of RMB3.9 million
(approximately HK$4.5 million) were admitted to the Restructuring
scheme; (c) RMB5.8 million (approximately HK$6.7 million) of
administrator’s fees for the Restructuring; and (d) additional labour
benefits and compensations of RMBO.7 million (approximately HK$0.8

million).
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The Company has from time to time considered funding needs
of the Group and assessed the plans for use of the unutilised net
proceeds. The above-mentioned change in use of proceeds from the
Share Subscription and Third Placing was determined after taking
into account, (i) the immediate funding needs of the Group to settle
indebtedness under the Restructuring, failing which the Group
may be subject to risk of legal proceedings and potential serious
consequential implications on its operations; (ii) the overall condition
of the Group and the Group’s priority to resume a requisite level
of operations to sustain the subsistence and viability of the Group;
and (iii) the re-scheduled and extended repayment schedule of the
Convertible Loan, giving the Company flexibility to re-prioritize and
reallocate the funds earmarked for repayment of the Convertible Loan
to other more urgent capital needs of the Group. The Board is of the
view that the proposed change above in the use of the unutilised net
proceeds benefits the operation and business development of the
Group and is fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Placing of New Shares
under General Mandate”, “Subscription and Placing of New Shares
under Specific Mandate” and “Restricted Share Award Scheme” in
this report, the Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the listed securities of the Company during 2022.
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SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS UNDER RULE
13.18 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 21 December 2022, the Company (as borrower) and International
Finance Corporation (“IFC") (as lender), Mr. Zou Gebing (as guarantor)
and other parties entered into the Amendment Agreement to amend
the principal terms and conditions of the Convertible Loan under a
convertible loan agreement dated 5 January 2018 (“Convertible
Loan Agreement”). Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement, the
amount of default interests due and payable by the Company to IFC
pursuant to the Convertible Loan Agreement for the period starting
from 2 August 2022 (inclusive) and ending on 15 September 2022
(exclusive) is HK$207,667.24. The amount of redemption premium
due and payable by the Company to IFC pursuant to the Convertible
Loan Agreement as of the date of the Amendment Agreement
is HK$2,191,768.50. The outstanding principal amount of the
Convertible Loan as of 29 September 2022 is HK$81,439,030.80 and
the amount of due but unpaid jeopardy expenses as of 29 August
2022 in connection with the Convertible Loan is US$92,383.

Under the Amendment Agreement, upon the occurrence of any of

the following:

() atanytime and for any reason, Mr. Tse Kam Pang (& $35) (“Mr.
Tse"”) and Mr. Zou Gebing (as a whole) cease to directly or
indirectly own at least 51%, of both the economic and voting
interests in the Company'’s share capital (determined on a fully
diluted basis),

(i) any person or group other than Mr. Zou Gebing shall have
obtained the power (whether or not exercised) to elect a
majority of the board of directors of Morris Capital, or any
person or group other than Mr. Tse shall have obtained the
power (whether or not exercised) to elect a majority of the

board of directors of Century Icon Holdings Limited,
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(i) any person or group other than Century Icon Holdings Limited
and the Morris Capital (as a whole) shall have obtained the
power (whether or not exercised) to elect a majority of the
Board,

(iv)  with effect from the closing of the general offer arising from
the completion of the Share Subscription, the Board shall cease

to consist of a majority of continuing directors or

(v) a "change of control” or similar event shall occur as provided in
any other loan or preferred stock documentation relating to the

Company.

IFC may serve a written notice (a “Prepayment Notice”) on the
Company requiring the Company to prepay any portion or all of the
outstanding Convertible Loan in full within 10 days of the date of
the Prepayment Notice under the Convertible Loan Agreement (as

amended by the Amendment Agreement).

Further details of the Facilities are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 5 January 2018, 24 January 2018, 10 October
2019 and 30 December 2022.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no reserves available for
distribution (31 December 2021: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Five year financial summary are set in the section headed “Five Year
Financial Summary” on page 240 of this annual report.

(i)  B® Century Icon Holdings Limited
Morris Capital (2 88) LASNEE (] E A
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2022 and up to the date of this annual report

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. TSE Kam Pang (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 October 2022)
Mr. CHONG Tsz Ngai (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 17 October 2022)
Mr. ZOU Gebing
Mr. SHEN Zhidong (resigned on 9 November 2022)
Mr. WU Yueming (resigned on 9 November 2022)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Hok Kan (appointed on 17 October 2022)
Ms. WU Xiangfei (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. KWAN Pun Fong Vincent (appointed on 17 October 2022)

Prof. LEE Chack Fan (appointed on 9 November 2022)

Ms. CHEN Jianhua (appointed on 17 October 2022)

Ms. WU Weixia (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. TAN Tianhong (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Ms. ZHAO Hongyan (appointed on 14 April 2022 and
resigned on 9 November 2022)

Mr. LIU Haifeng (resigned on 16 May 2022)

Mr. QIAN Jun (resigned on 14 April 2022)

Mr. CHU Guodi (resigned on 16 May 2022)
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In accordance with paragraph 83(3) of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and

shall then be eligible for re-election.

Further, pursuant to paragraph 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of
the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an AGM
at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election for the forthcoming year. According to paragraph 84(2) of
the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board pursuant to Article
83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining which particular
Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
Details of the re-electing directors at the forthcoming AGM will be set

out in the Company'’s circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zou Gebing has entered into a service contract with the Company
for a fixed term of three years commencing from the Listing Date or
the date of appointment, unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other expiring
at the end of the initial term.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a fixed term of three years commencing from 9 November 2022
(which shall continue for further successive periods until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ prior written notice). They
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the
Company at least once every three years and until terminated.
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No Directors has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory

compensation).

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, there were no
changes in Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to
paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” and the related
party transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and the Share Subscription, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or a connected entity of a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2022 or at
any time during 2022.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

M2022F 128310 ARFIZSEENTE
TTHRA B RZAR R Al sk E Al AEE A E (12 &
F M EAERGIEXVER R T HME ) AR D -
HERDEEESFHREREEFRHAE
fERBIZEXVER 7 R85 BF /B A M AN A A) K B
R (B IR B 5 M H B & 0178 B 16 S
EWR AW EERENERIOAE) IR
BEA RSN FE35216 B A IR
B BFeEETRINER AR

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,

pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below: R -
(i) The Company (i) AAF
Number of Approximate
Name of Director/ securities percentage of
chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
#HHE
BEE BETHRABES ERME (BF3E1) EREMAED T
Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2) Interest of controlled 666,500,000 shares (L) 24.24%
corporation
A& AE(MTEE2) XL BER 666,500,0008%(L)
Ms. Wu Xiangfei (Note 2) Interest of spouse 666,500,000 shares (L) 24.24%
S AAct (FiaE2) iR 666,500,0008%(L)
Mr. Tse Kam Pang (Note 3) Interest of controlled 1,300,038,000 shares (L) 47.27%
corporation
R ST A (FT3E3) X ER R 1,300,038,0008%(L)
Notes: MisT -
1. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. 1. FEILIRKRZEBATRZERMD LT
£ o
2. Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as to 85% by Mr. 2. RAERERAFRBRER]) BH%

Zou Gebing and as to 15% of its share by Ms. Zou Gebing’s spouse, Ms. ERAWBSS% - BABRELEZES
Wu Xiangfei. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei will SARZTEE15% - BIEBZHERNE
therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same number of 164 - BRI = 5 4 R AR A R 2 S A Ut
Shares in which Morris Capital is interested. WRASIWEENREREAEEREREN
RISHERMHPEAER -

Century Icon Holdings Limited([ Century
lcon )) B3 1 8715 5 HE HEH 100% © 1R1RFE
% R EAE RG] - i8R 15 o A S B I 4R AR
R E ER Century lcon A HHERS
WREEE RO PHEEER -

3. Century Icon Holdings Limited (“Century Icon”) is owned as to 100% by 3.
Mr. Tse Kam Pang. Under the SFO, Mr. Tse Kam Pang will therefore be
deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same number of shares in which
Century Icon is interested.
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(ii) Morris Capital

(i) REEX

Number of Approximate

securities percentage of

Name of director/chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 1) shareholding
HEHE

B BETHRABHE s (M%) IERERNBED L

Mr. Zou Gebing Beneficial owner 85 shares of 85%
US$1 each (L)
BT E BEmEEA 8siERmE
1ETTER (L)

Ms. Wu Xiangfei Beneficial owner 15 shares of 15%

US$1 each (L)

SRRzt BB A 15 TR EE
1E TR (L)
Note: B & -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. 1. FRILIRKRZEBATRZERDOLT

A
B e

(iii) Century Icon (Note 1) (iii) Century Icon (FffsE1)
Number of Approximate
securities percentage of
Name of director/chief executive Nature of Interest (Note 2) shareholding
HEHE
B BETBRABHSR BEME (M5E2) ERERNVBEDL
Mr. Tse Kam Pang Beneficial owner 100 shares of 100%

US$1 each (L)

Bl BE=BA 100 T REE
1E TR (L)
Notes: B EE
1. Century Icon holds 47.27% of the Shares. Therefore, Century Icon is the 1. Century Icon £ 47.27% K & 15 ©

il Century lcon/BA R RIAIFZER AR R
HEEE -

holding company and an associated corporation of the Company.

2. The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such shares. 2. FEILIREZBATRZERD ML
A

B e
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code as at 31 December 2022.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2022, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
SFO:

Br EXATHREESN 0 72022128318 -
ARBEEREBTHRAEBMEREARR
s E AT BB A (R B 5 R A E I XY
T RRE ) ARG - ARG S EEE
FIER AN ARIBES R EE 5F]583521&
GEMZMAREEE #HIJL%M“
RN R AT EREMEA « Kk« 2F]
NEMIEITORE -

TERROER

M20225F128318 » M FAL(ARRQAZE
FRFBITRABEBRIN R EEERD
A AN AR R RIRIEEF RS K
FE3I36RIFENECMAERSAE -

Number of Percentage of
Shares/underlying Shares of
Shares held the Company
Shareholders Nature of interest (Note 1) in issue
Frisik 1 AR M B E HAENTE BT
IRR ERtE (BR=E1) REOBEDLE
Century Icon (Note 2) Beneficial owner 1,300,038,000 shares (L) 47.27% (L)
Century Icon(Ff7¥2) En#EEA 1,300,038,0004% (L)
Morris Capital (Note 3) Beneficial owner 666,500,000 shares (L) 24.24% (L)
REEAR(HIFE3) BEREEA 666,500,000 (L)
Notes: B 5T
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in such Shares. 1. FERILRRZBATRZEROOTE ©
2. Century Icon is owned as to 100% by Mr. Tse Kam Pang. 2. Century lconE F1 8RH5 2 £ HH 100% ©
3. Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15% by Ms. Wu 3. RREARBIPE T EEAS5% KBS AR
Xiangfei. THEH15% ©
4. Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu 4. B R A TR BIEESLEMNAE - REEHFR
Xiangfei will therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same number B IEY) - BBRREZTHE ISR AR E 1
of Shares in which Mr. Zou Gebing is interested. RBREEEFEERRNRASHE ROTER
s
Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any Bk EXFT#EEESN - 720226128318 -

other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/
or underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
December 2022.

KA EEEEAIEMAL(RARES
KEBITHBAERIN @A - i%f\ﬁf%zl&’&
BIRD &SR AE B R 1D R B R AR IR

KR E 4P EXVEREE2 K 355 BB [A AN A R #E
BERREmIOAR o

.
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EEEREE)
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS EIREH4

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were
entered into or existed during 2022.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and
retaining its employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration
packages to its employees and makes contributions to social security
insurance funds (including pension plans, medical insurance, work-
related injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance) and housing fund for its employees. The Remuneration
Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy
and remuneration package of the Directors and chief executive of
the Group, having regard to the Group’s overall operating results,
individual performance and comparable market practices.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Restricted Share Award Scheme (the “Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the Board on 29 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date").

Purpose

The specific objectives of the Award Scheme are: 1. to provide the
Selected Participants (as defined below) with an opportunity to
acquire a proprietary interest in the Group; 2. to encourage and retain
such individuals to work with the Group; 3. to provide additional
incentive for Selected Participants (as defined below) to achieve
performance goals with a view to achieve the objectives of increasing
the value of the Group; and 4. to align the interests of the Selected
(as defined below) directly to the Shareholders through ownership of
Shares, dividends and other distributions paid on Shares and/or the

increase in the value of the Shares.
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Participants

The Board may, from time to time, select and approve any individual,
being an employee, director, officer, consultant, agent, adviser or
business partner of any member of the Group or any Affiliate (including
nominees and/or trustees of any employee benefit trust established
for them) and any other person as determined by the Board who
the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”)
for participation in the Award Scheme and grant awards to such
Eligible Persons (the “Selected Participants”).

Scheme mandate

The Board will not make any further grant of award which will
result in the aggregate number of Shares underlying all grants made
pursuant to the Award Scheme (excluding award shares that have
been forfeited in accordance with the Award Scheme) to exceed
9.9% of the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption Date
(i.e. 99,000,000 Shares) (the “Scheme Mandate”) without approval
by a Board resolution. As at the date of this report, awards in respect
of 99,000,000 Shares may be granted pursuant to the Scheme
Mandate.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of award shares which may be awarded to a
Selected Participant under the Award Scheme in aggregate shall not
exceed 5.0% of the total number of issued Shares as at the Adoption
Date.

Exercise period

As the Award Scheme is a Award Scheme of the Company instead of
a share option scheme, the awards granted under the Award Scheme
are not subject to any exercise period nor are the Selected Participants
entitled to any exercise rights.

®

RS

Exgr TREBMILEEREA R
AEBEMKERETAHBARTNET
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EBBH(BREEMEIMNEEAR T
FEAN) B PIRL AR ETE) MESF S
ENEMEMA  EFSRERRZED
BERARBEAHAEE([EEBAL]Z
B W AL EAERALR TEE
(BE2HEE]) -
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R R A (T B AR EER T 8508 W
B SRR AR 1)) iR B ER A% B HARS 2 TV AR ()
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Vesting period

The Board or the committee of the Board or person(s) to which the
Board delegated its authority may, from time to time, while the
Award Scheme is in force and subject to all applicable laws, determine
such vesting criteria and conditions or periods for the award to be

vested pursuant to the Award Scheme.

Subscription/purchase price

No subscription/purchase price is payable by the Eligible Persons upon

acceptance of awards granted under the Award Scheme.

Term

The Award Scheme shall commence on the Adoption Date and
terminate upon the earlier of (i) the end of the period of ten (10)
years commencing on the Adoption Date; or (ii) such date of early
termination as determined by the Board.

Movement and position

There was no unvested award granted to the Eligible Persons under
the Award Scheme as at 1 January 2022. No award was granted
under the Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Accordingly, there was (i) no unvested award granted to the Eligible
Persons under the Award Scheme as at 31 December 2022; and (ii)
no award vested, cancelled or lapsed under the Award Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

Amendments to Listing Rules relating to share scheme of listed
issuers became effective on 1 January 2023. As provided under
the transitional arrangements, the Company can continue to make
grants to participants eligible under the amended Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules under existing schemes until refreshment or expiry of the

existing scheme mandate.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors for 2022 are set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

There were no competing business of which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December
2022 or at any time during 2022.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Each of Morris Capital, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei (each
a “Non-Compete Covenantor”) has entered into a deed of non-
competition (“Deed of Non-competition”) dated 10 December
2016 with the Company, to the effect that each of them will not
directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or
otherwise be involved in any business which may be in competition

with the business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the Non-
Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition during
2022.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the Non-
Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the non-
competition undertakings during 2022.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During 2022, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out below:

The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd.”), (“Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home"),
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products”), Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd. (“Haining
Morris Home Gallery”), and Haining Morris International Home
Furnishings Co., Ltd. (“Haining Morris International”), each
as tenant entered into the lease agreements with Morris PRC as
landlord on 1 January 2016 for the lease of various premises located
in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory, direct sale store and
office use. However, as the area of leased properties was insufficient
to meet the production requirements of the Group, Zhejiang Morris
Fashion Home, Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris
International (each as tenant) entered into lease agreements with
Morris PRC (as landlord) on 17 March 2017 for the lease of leased
properties located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory,
exhibition hall, dormitory, canteens, office and research and
development center use for a term of three years commencing from
17 March 2017 and expiring on 16 March 2020. The major terms of

the lease agreements are as follows:

‘,

B NFERERS

FRRFEBAERS

R2022%F - AEBENFHRRIBEFERS
~HIBESIINTE -

BREFEHHEE

HIRARSKEBRA T (AIHE =S
MREBRAALD  ([HIRERER
Bl IR ERERMBRA T
IMEREERT]) BERAERKE
ERAR([BERFHRRE|) LEER
REBRREAERAR(ESERFER (&
BYERER)ERAPE(EREE)N2016
F1IRIADRBBEENRPBNILEE
MHZERERE  BEHERBAZERAZN
MEHERZ - A BREEYWE
EEELZREAEENEERR O MIF
ARERRE  SERTHRREREER
AEBR(ZEEEANER) BERFE(EAR
ET)MN2017F38178 D RIS E R F
BEWIE8EMIERE  EE BS R
B RAERFERLAROEEYER]
VHEHE  HEB2017F317HEE
2020F3R16H IEAH=F - HERBHEME

ZEFWT

Rent per

Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord Leased area annum

HEHE HIRR BE EES HERR £

(sq.m.) (RMB)

(FAK) (AR¥T)

Property A 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 ~ Zhejiang Apollo Leather Morris PRC 40,226.08  2,896,277.76

Lease Agreement (both days inclusive) Products

MEANEETE 0165 1A1BZ2026F1A18  HIMEEREES RETH

(BEEEMA)
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EEE®REE)
Rent per
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord Leased area annum
HE S HIR BE EES HEER 3
(sq.m.) (RMB)
(FHK) (AR%T)
Property B Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 19,990.35  1,439,305.20
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known as
"Haining Gelin Furniture”)
EL TRV 016F1A1EE2026F1 718 MIRAKEERE RATH
(REERME) (AR EERMKA])
Property C Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 39,312.00  2,830,464.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris Home
Gallery Furniture")
MECHEEHZ 016F1A1RZ2026F 118 MIRARHERE RAT
(BEEEMA) (AR EERATERR
=)
Property D Lease 1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026 Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 1,000.00 72,000.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris
International”)
MEDEERE 2016F1A1RE2026F1 918 MIRARHERE RADHE
(BHEEEMA) (AR EERAER])
Property E Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 4,608.00 331,776.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris
International”)
MERERE 2017F3A1785202063A168 HMIRAKHRE RATE
(BREEMA) (AIRE B ERAER])
Property F Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 9,300.00 669,600.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known as
“Haining Gelin Furniture”)
WEFEEHE 2017F3A178F202063A168 HMIRAKHRE RAT

(BREEMA)

(AR ERMKA])
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EEE®REE)
Rent per
Lease agreements Term Tenant Landlord Leased area annum
HE S HIR BE EES HEER 3
(sq.m.) (RMB)
(FHK) (AR%T)
Property G Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 4047400 2,914,128.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris Home
Gallery Furniture")
WEGHEEHE 201743R178F202063 8168 HIERBHKE RAT
(BEEEME) (AR EERATERR
=3
Property H Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 20,532.00  1,478,304.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris Home
Gallery Furniture")
MEHEERZ 201738178 E202063R168 MIRARHERE RAH
(BHEEEME) (AR EERATERR
=)
Property | Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 19,723.00  1,420,056.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known as
“Haining Gelin Furniture”)
MEIREHE 2017F3A1785202063A168 HMIRAKHERE RATH
(BEERME) (AR EERMKA])
Property J Lease 17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020  Zhejiang Morris Fashion Morris PRC 6,400.00 460,800.00
Agreement (both days inclusive) Home (formerly known
as "Haining Morris
International”)
S 2017537178 5F202063R168 HMIRAKHERE RAETH

(BEERMA) (MRS ERAER])

The aggregated annual caps of the lease agreements for the years FEHZREE20174F ~ 20184 * 20194
ended 31 December 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020 were originally fixed ~ 2020912 A31 B IEFERANFE LR
at RMB15 million, RMB15 million, RMB15 million and RMB15 million, #2%EHRIEAAREISEET « AR5
respectively. For further details of the lease agreement, please referto  BHEHT - AREISEETRARKISAE
the announcement of the Company dated 17 March 2017. T AAEEGENE TS - A2H
AATHBA2017E3A17HBRE »
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On 8 July 2020, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home entered into the
2020 Lease Renewal Agreement with Morris PRC (as modified by the
supplemental agreement dated 21 August 2020) to renew the leases
of the 2020 Leased Properties for three years from 17 March 2020 to
16 March 2023, to set out the increased annual rents from the date
of signing of the 2020 Lease Agreements (subject to the obtaining
of approval from the Independent Shareholders) and to revise
the annual caps of the lease agreements for the years ending 31
December 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 to become RMB 16,020,000,
RMB21,622,000, RMB21,622,000 and RMB10,194,000 (on the basis
that the 2020 Lease Agreements shall end on 16 March 2023).

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home is a company established in the
PRC with limited liability, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the surviving entity of the merger with Haining
Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris International. As a result
of the merger which took place on 22 October 2018, Zhejiang
Morris Fashion Home has become the tenant of all the 2017 Leased
Properties in succession of Haining Morris Home Gallery and Haining
Morris International. Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home was formerly
known as “Haining Gelin Furniture Co., Ltd."”
current name on 5 September 2017.

and was renamed to its

The leases of the 2020 Leased Properties renewed under the 2020
Lease Agreements were Properties E, F, G and H, with their annual
rents increases summarized as below:

202067 A8H - I RAR W K/EHE
AR 2020F HEEE = (KB HA
2020F8 A2 1 B A A BER) - UEE
2020 HHEM X REI=FHE (82020
F3H17H#EE2023F3816R) » Hy A
zozoﬁﬂ%ﬁ%;mgﬁzEI;U‘?JHE@%H(M
FEREBY RO E) - WEEER®
Etizozoi © 20214 - 2022&&2023&
NANAILEEENFE LREFTAARE
16,020,0007T + AR #21,622,0007T * A
R #21,622,0007t & A K # 10,194,000 7T
(LA20205F HHE WM 2023F3 16 B &R
REAE) o

HIRARENREARFEKNZHBERA
A AARRMBEEZENB AR RIS
ERTHRRERBERTER & 0T
BERE - AN A FER2018F 10822075
B MIRARHREEEMEERAH
RRERBERTEBREK BB 2017FH
EVEMNER - MIRARFEREIENE
ERMRABR AR - WH2017F9H5R
BE REBREHE -

RIZ2020F HE W= EE 20200 HEW
MRS AYEE - F - GRH - FIRIEIER MR
mE

New annual rents
under 2020 Lease

Old annual rents
under 2017 Lease

Agreements Agreements

RIE20175F R1520204F

Lease area HEWHZEN HEWZEN

Premises LES HEmE EFH HEMR

(sg.m.) (RMB) (RMB)

(SFFAK) (ARHTT) (AR%TT)

Property E YIRE 4,608.00 331,776 884,736

Property F eSS 9,300.00 669,600 1,785,600

Property G L/ESE 40,474.00 2,914,128 7,771,008

Property H MEH 20,532.00 1,478,304 3,942,144

Total: Mt 5,393,808 14,383,488
RARBEEZERBR AR 2022 53 83
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For the avoidance of doubt, the 2016 Lease Agreements (i.e.
Properties A to D) are continuing until 1 January 2026 with the
annual rents for the 2016 Leased Properties being unchanged at
RMB7,238,046.96, while the leases of Properties | and J were allowed
to lapse by mutual agreement at the end of the three-year period
of the 2017 Lease Agreements on 16 March 2020. For further
details of the renewal of the lease agreements, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 8 July 2020 and 21 August
2020.

As the entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr. Zou
Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Morris PRC is, accordingly, an associate
of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of the

Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios with respect
to the Revised Annual Caps is more than 5%, the 2020 Lease
Renewal Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps are subject to the
annual review, annual reporting, announcement, circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2020 Lease Renewal Agreement and the Revised Annual Caps
are approved by the Independent Shareholders at the EGM on 23
September 2020. Upon the obtaining of Independent Shareholders
approval, the 2020 Lease Agreements were entered into on 23
September 2020 with the rental increases for Properties E, F, G and H
taking effect on 23 September 2020.
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The Master Raw Materials Procurement Agreement with
Royale Home Holdings Limited (“Royale Home")

On 9 December 2022, the Company has entered into the Master Raw
Materials Procurement Agreement with Royale Home, pursuant to
which members of the Group will purchase the Raw Materials from
members of the Royale Home Group for a term commencing on the
date of the Master Raw Materials Procurement Agreement (i.e. 9
December 2022) and ending on 31 December 2022.

The continuing relationships are expected to bring synergies to the
Group and the Royale Home Group, which is expected to benefit both
parties as the terms of the Raw Materials Procurement would be on
normal commercial terms and with reference to the prevailing market
terms, and the Raw Materials Procurement will be conducted after
arm’s length negotiations. The Raw Materials Procurement would
allow the Group with stable supply of raw materials required for the
manufacturing of its products on reasonable terms which will be no
less favourable to the Group than those available from independent

third parties.

Mr. Tse indirectly holds 1,300,038,000 Shares, representing
approximately 47.27% of the issued Shares, through Century Icon
Holdings Limited. Mr. Tse is therefore a controlling shareholder of the
Company, and is also an executive Director. Mr. Tse is also holding
(together with his controlled companies and parties acting in concert
with him) 1,945,391,280 shares of Royale Home (representing
74.86% of the issued share capital of Royale Home). Royale Home
is therefore an associate of Mr. Tse and a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

HBEHXERKERL A EHEE])
TR RIRIE AR I 5

M20226F12 A9 + RRFIEEBARE
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RNAFREFARESEBEK S QA FRBRM
o FEARMEHRE 21 B B (812022
F12A9H)#EE2022F12A83181E °
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The annual cap for the Raw Materials Procurement under the Master
Raw Materials Procurement Agreement for the period commencing
from 9 December 2022 and ending on 31 December 2022 is
RMB18,000,000. For further details of the Master Raw Materials
Procurement Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 9 December 2022.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have been
reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who have
confirmed that the transactions have been entered into: (a) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on normal
commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing such transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Company in this annual report in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

During the year, related party transactions are disclosed in note 33
to the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above
in respect of which the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules have been complied with, other related
party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transaction which are subject to reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The corporation governance report of the Group during the Reporting
Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 38 to 61 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During 2022, sales to the Group's five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
55.1% and 81.5% of the total revenue and purchases for the year,
respectively. The Group’s largest customer accounted for around
25.6% of the total revenue for the year. The Group's largest supplier

accounted for around 44.5% of the total purchase for the year.

During 2022, Mr. Tse Kam Pang, being Executive Director, is the
beneficial shareholder of the Group's largest supplier.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution
of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors
and officers arising out of corporate activities. The level of the

coverage is reviewed annually.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during 2022
or subsisted as at 31 December 2022.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option
Scheme allows the Company to grant options to the following
eligible person(s) (the “Eligible person(s)”), namely, any full-
time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive Director, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Director, adviser and consultant of the
Group. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Persons as incentives or

rewards for their contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as

follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes which may be adopted by the
Group from time to time pursuant to which options to subscribe
for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes”) must not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the Listing
Date (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares) unless Shareholders’
approval has been obtained, and which must not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this report, the total
number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 100,000,000 Shares, which represents 3.6% of
the issued Shares as at 31 December 2022 or the date of this
report.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to an Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time, and provided that if approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such Eligible Persons abstained from voting, the
Company may make further grant of options to such Eligible
Person notwithstanding that the further grant would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
Other Scheme in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the Shares in issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible Person
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant of option.

The exercise of an option may be subject to the achievement
of performance target and/or any other conditions (e.g. vesting
period) to be notified by our Board to each Participant, which
our Board may in its absolute discretion determine.

HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant.

The subscription price for the Shares subject to options will be a
price determined by our Board and notified to each participant
and shall be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the options, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on the Listing Date.
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Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled by
the Company under the share option scheme during the period from
the listing date to 31 December 2022 and there were no outstanding
share options under the share option scheme as at 31 December
2022 and the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that
the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required
under the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") was appointed as the
auditor of the Group since 21 May 2019 upon the removal of the
former auditor of the Company.

There were no changes in the auditors of the Company during the

past four years.

The consolidated financials statements of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2022 onwards were audited by HLB, who will
retire at the AGM and a resolution for the re-appointment as the
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.
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CONVERTIBLE LOAN

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement (“Convertible Loan Agreement”) with International
Finance Corporation (“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend,
and the Company agreed to borrow, a convertible loan (“Convertible
Loan”) in an aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 January 2018
and 24 January 2018 for further details. Pursuant to the Convertible
Loan Agreement and as one of the conditions of disbursement,
each of Mr. Zou, Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Mr. Zou's spouse and one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company, Morris PRC, a company
owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and as to 15% by Ms. Wu, and IFC
entered into a share retention and undertaking agreement pursuant
to which, among others, Mr. Zou has undertaken to at all times
maintain his controlling stake (being not less than 51% interests) in
the Company and Morris PRC and not to transfer his shares in Morris
Capital, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company and
owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and 15% by Ms. Wu, or Morris PRC
if, giving effect to such transfer, Mr. Zou will not be able to maintain
his controlling stake in the Company or Morris PRC mentioned above
for so long as any part of the Convertible Loan is outstanding or any
amount is available for disbursement under the Convertible Loan
Agreement and for so long as IFC holds any equity securities of the

Company.

As a result of the suspension in trading in the shares of the
Company from 28 March 2019, the carrying amount of liability of
the convertible loan to the principal amount was adjusted and the
same was reallocated from non-current liabilities to current liabilities
in order to reflect such continuance. On 20 April 2019, 23 May
2019, 12 June 2019 and 30 September 2019, the Company entered
into four amendment agreements respectively with the lender of
the convertible loan for the agreed schedule of certain permitted
prepayments of the convertible loan. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding principal of the convertible loan was HK$110,967,128.
Under the agreed schedule as provided in the abovementioned
amendment agreements, the Company agreed to repay by 11
installments between 15 June 2019 and 28 December 2019.

A A E R
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In December 2019, the Company’s subsidiary has pledged our
Cambodia lease rights and respective tenant lease rights to IFC. In
February 2020, the Company has received the waiver letter from
IFC, allowing the Company to not make any payments to IFC from
January to April 2020. On 29 May 2020, the Company was granted a
temporary waiver by IFC to postpone the installments from 28 January
2020 to 28 April 2020. At the same time, the repayment schedule
was renewed with an extended payment period.

On 21 December 2022, the Company renegotiated with IFC for the
rescheduled repayment schedule. Based on the rescheduled repayment
instalment schedule, the maturity date of the new repayment schedule
is 18 June 2025. Further details of the Amendment Agreement was
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 30 December 2022.

As at 31 December 2022, the principal amount and accrued interest
under the Convertible Loan amounted to HK$72,838,741.28. There
were no conversion of the Convertible Loan for the year ended 31
December 2022. The Company had repaid the convertible Loan
in installments as agreed in the Amendment Agreement. A total
of HK$11,000,000 was repaid to IFC during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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APPRECIATION EYE]

| would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, as K AZFEH K ERHES  EHENREE
well as the management and all employees for the contribution they 1B 8 ¥ AL BHEHRFIEE R © INAIK
have made towards the Group’s continued progress, and to thank all 3 » BF REBEZHENS HFROEG -
the Shareholders, customers and business partners for their support.

On Behalf of the Board REESE

TSE Kam Pang TERHNTEE
Chairman and Executive Director EiEid

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023 B 2023F3A31H

RARBIERABR AT 2022 F3F 93

P78 BN\ e e WY



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B X BEN R S

548 B -

-

HLB) B #7 & & ¥ 3 5t & ;A 2

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Morris
Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 239,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to Note 2.1 in the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately RMB199,679,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022, the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB120,228,000 and RMB131,459,000 respectively. As stated in
Note 2.1, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in Note 2.1, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS AR E T F1E

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional RBIEEZEEERBERMNZELLE - 2
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ~ A¥ AEGRA VB RENEZRAEEN
financial statements of the current period. These matters were HEIH « ZEEHE I ERPIEZBELRSH
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ~#RELMEF KA KME RFEE o
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we FE&@UZEEHIBHEBER - [ HIFE
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to & B HEMNEATETE M | — ATt E1E
the matter described in the “Material uncertainty related to going  4b * P EE Nl FE A B R AR E H
concern” section, we have determined that matters described below — X{FHEREASFIE -

to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
ARETEE AT EEBREEIR

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables

B SN IR Rz EE R (| RAEERER )G

Refer to notes 16 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements

IR A MR T 16 R37TA R A M TSR 2 AP & St HUR

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had trade receivables ~ Our procedures in relation to management’s
of gross carrying amount of approximately RMB52,098,000  impairment assessment included:

and allowance for ECL of approximately RMB18,956,000, AT EEATEITARETG @ RMETHRFEIE
the net carrying amount of trade receivables account for

9.03% of the Group's total assets. o Understanding and evaluating the key controls
20226128318+ BEEEESREURENRERE that the Group has implemented to manage and
A AR #52,098,000T RFEBEEEEREHARE monitor its credit risk;

18,956,0007T * B ZRWHENREFENL BEEEE « TR EEEREEREREEERRAE
#B{E/9.03% ° hEE BRI
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conmmuep) FAsRERT =R #®)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
BRBEER AT MR R TR B R T 2R 0R

"

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

B SN E AR E EEE (| RRIEEER T4 (&)
Refer to notes 16 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the
consolidated financial statements

IRMERE MWK T 16 R3TA KRR A B IRKR2 APT A S 5T HR

In general, the trade receivables credit terms granted e Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile

by the Group to the customers ranged between one of the trade receivables as at 31 December 2022
to four months. Management performed periodic to the underlying financial records and post year-
assessment on the recoverability of the trade receivables end settlements to bank receipts;

and the sufficiency of provision for impairment based on o KR EN2022F 12 A31 B E 5 EKRGKIER
information including credit profile of different customers, HRERFERER A REEE - U RFREBIRITUUENGESE
ageing of the trade receivables, historical settlement AR

records, subsequent settlement status, expected timing
. Inquiring of management for the status of each

of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from

and amount of realisation of outstanding balances, and
on-going trading relationships with the relevant customers.

Management also considered forward-looking information management with supporting evidence, such
that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the as performing public search of credit profile of
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected selected customers, understanding on-going

business relationship with the customers based
on trade records, check historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence

credit losses for the impairment assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (conmivuED)

Key audit matter

RREER

FARETEH®)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FITMAEEBARETEER

Expected credit loss (“ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

BN RR R E EE R (| RAEEREE )L (E)

Refer to notes 16 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on note 2.4 to the

consolidated financial statements

IR A MR 16 R37TA KGR A M TSR 2 AP & St HR

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment
of trade receivables under the expected credit losses model
involved the use of significant management judgements
and estimates.

BB IZER Y ERNREEREEEREXETESHE
WEIBE R E R G RE A ENE IR B HE Rt -

o Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis to
assess their accuracy and completeness , and
challenging the assumptions, including both
historical and forward-looking information, used
to determine the expected credit losses and using
valuation experts engaged by us.

o  FHMETERHIEEBBREHERDEE Mkt
T ERABIE AL H AR R TBME  WHE R
AREERR EEBEMERBRMEREERR
BRER (BIE BT RATEEER) -

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s judgement and estimates in the ECL
assessment of trade receivables to be supported by the
available evidence.

RIBFDETORRT - BRARBAR - BEEERNEZHREUK
ETRHME BB BT A A5t B S EES
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant s+ E|METEE - BRI L HE R E AT T3
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control ~ IR%F + B IR FIFE R s Bl H 2B ES 4%
B AT ERRFG o

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZHENRE ()

548 B -

-

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meaEmRkAMEERERE

Year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Lk AR¥ET T ARETT
Revenue WA 5 132,013 502,932
Cost of sales THER AR (130,013) (403,276)
Gross profit EF 2,000 99,656
Other income and gains HAaWA RS 5 34,574 23,894
Allowance for expected RSP AN R AR © Bl
credit losses in respect of financial BEMTEREEEE
assets carried at amortised cost, net Bt - FEE (19,166) (5,044)
Impairment loss on property, plantand  #% « 5 M EERE
equipment [E518 = (4,846)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {8 Fi#E & E R EF B = (3,821)
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEFY (36,342) (67,801)
Administrative expenses TR SZ (150,842) (112,686)
Other expenses and losses HAhh REE (26,141) (27,170)
Finance costs RhE KA 6 (7,501) (22,468)
Loss before tax BRBL AT 1R 7 (203,418) (120,286)
Income tax credit/(expenses) PSR, (FX) 10 832 (3,116)
Loss for the year FREE (202,586) (123,402)
Other comprehensive loss: Hit2mEER -
Items that may be reclassified HIZR[BeEFT HHE
subsequently to profit or loss: PBmh)EE -
Exchange differences on translation of &I FEHREAIE X
financial statements = 4,315 (2,534)
Item that was reclassified to profit or loss: B E# S E BB -
Reclassification of cumulative HEWNBARRENRS
exchange fluctuation reserve upon R RETIE R B
disposal of subsidiaries - (1,978)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FAHMWEEEIE
net of income tax MR TS H 4,315 (4,512)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRAZHEIEEEE (198,271) (127,914)

RAEREERERIDA 2022 3 103

P78 BN\ e e WY




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
meBmEkEMEEYRER(GE)

Year ended 31 December 2022

EE2022F 12431 H I F/E
2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FI5E ARET T AREFIT
Loss attributable to: FE(LEE -
Owners of the Company ViNNETEZZ DN (199,679) (121,508)
Non-controlling interests eI (2,907) (1,894)
(202,586) (123,402)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: & & 184858 :
Owners of the Company ViNNETEZZ DN (195,464) (126,108)
Non-controlling interests eI (2,807) (1,806)
(198,271) (127,914)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary ZA A FEB#EBEZEA
equity holders of the Company EihERERE
Basic (RMB cents) ERARKED) 12 (13.99) (13.15)
Diluted (RMB cents) HE(ARED) 12 (13.99) (13.15)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e TR R

As at 31 December 2022
R20224F12431H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BfaE ARET T ARBTIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB LR 13 6,505 1,068
Right-of-use assets EREEE 14 43,656 7,641
Total non-current assets IEmEEEAE 50,161 8,709
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 15 25,411 83,177
Trade receivables H 5 IR 16 33,142 39,873
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE ~ B RAM
receivables FEURIR 17 64,695 35,109
Amount due from a shareholder FEI — 2 IR FIA 33(b) 345 322
Amounts due from related companies  FEURARE A F15IE 33(0) 185,527 179,502
Pledged deposits [REZBEEEE N 18 33 14,705
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIREEEY 18 7,590 13,485
Total current assets MEEERE 316,743 366,173
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B ZENRIERENEE 19 143,936 179,145
Contract liabilities aHAaE 20 11,052 9,858
Other payables and accruals E@FEH?XIE&FEHEFH 20 100,260 43,320
Amounts due to related companies FELS A N ) 22 62,173 27,734
Interest-bearing bank and other T ERT &ﬁ\{’mﬁ?ﬁ\
borrowings 23 69,235 64,616
Warranty provision RIERE 24 455 2,907
Lease liabilities HEBE 21 25,133 13,032
Derivative financial instruments TESBIA 26 372 78
Convertible loan Mg E 26 21,492 69,977
Income tax payables FERTFTISHR 2,863 3,382
Total current liabilities mEN B ERRE 436,971 414,049
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFHE (120,228) (47,876)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRBEE
LIABILITIES (70,067) (39,167)
RARBIERBRAR 2022 F3F 105
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

e MBI R ()

As at 31 December 2022
R20224%F 124315

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
BsE AR¥T T AREFIT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHEAE 25 = 34
Convertible loan AT AR E R 26 39,073 -
Lease liabilities HEBaR 21 22,319 11,970
Total non-current liabilities JEmEI B ERR 61,392 12,004
Net liabilities BEFR (131,459) (51,171)
EQUITY =
Share capital &N 27 19,212 6,914
Reserves & 29 (146,234) (56,455)
Equity attributable to owners of the A F#EH AEGER
Company (127,022) (49,541)
Non-controlling interests IR (4,437) (1,630)
Total equity EREE (131,459) (51,171)

KEESMN2023F3A31 B EIN HET
o WHATATRERE

Approved by and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31
March 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Tse Kam Pang Chong Tsz Ngai

i 85 s "I
Director Director
Ea EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

BEM  FE A L F AR & M S R A — 8B D

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

*“)(%E%Eb%%

nv'_l'\
Year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
KAAREARRER
Exchange Non-
Share Share Other Treasury  fluctuation Reserve Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve shares reserve funds losses Total interest equity
ERRD
Bx  RGEE  HtRE  BERG e BEEE  RAEB B FEREE  ERAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET:
(note27)  (note29())  (note29(v)  (note 29(i)  (note 29(iii)  (note 29(i))
(rzrar)  (skaon)  (Bataow))  (Bsskaofi)  (BaEadui))  (MsEEao()
Asat 1 January 2021 M2021F1 818 6,914 153,071 (731) (8,992) (11,197 60,528 (123,026) 76,567 176 76,743
Loss for the year R - - - - - - (21508 (121,508) (1894 (123400
Other comprehensive loss for FREM 2 EEE -
the year:
Exchange differenceson ~ HAEEBHEM
translation of financial ERER
statements - - - - (2,622) - - (2,622) 88 (2,534)
Redlassification of HEMB AR
cumulative exchange BB
fluctuation reserve upon  ENLRENGEE
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (1,978) - - (1,978) - (1,978)
Total comprehensive loss W2 EKEEHE
for the year - - - - (4,600) - (121,508) (126,108) (1,806) (127,914)
As at 31 December 2021 and #2021F 128310 K
1 January 2022 20251718 6,914 153,071* (731)* (8,992)* (15,797) 60,528* (244,534)* (49,541) (1,630) (51,171)
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (199,679) (199,679 (2907)  (202,586)
Other comprehensive loss for Mt 2 EE -
the year:
Exchange differenceson 2 EEBHERL
translation of financial EHER
statements - - - - 4215 - - 4215 100 4,315
Total comprehensive loss ~ FAZERBES
for the year - B = - 4215 B (199,679) (195,464) (2,807) (198,271)
Placing and subscription of  Ei& R REERR (D
shares 12,298 107,032 - - - - - 119,330 - 119,330
Transaction costs attributable &1 KB MR (AR
to placing and subscription &2 BAIA
of shares - (1,347) - - - - - (1,347) - (1,347)
Asat31 December 2022 2022124318 19212 258,756* U3¢ B9 (1158 6058 ([M4213F (127,00 (@4431) (131459
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of approximately ~ * ZERBROBEASVBRARANGE ER

£ N R #146,234,0007 (2021 4F = G AR B

56,455,0007T) °

RMB146,234,000 (2021: approximately RMB56,455,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2022
B E20224F 12831 HIFF/E

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000

B aE AR®T T ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities REEEFERSRE

Loss before tax BrinAIE R (203,418) (120,286)
Adjustments for: AEIER -
Interest income FEUA 5 (133) (529)
Depreciation of property, M - WEREETE
plant and equipment 7 3,547 2,730
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 7 10,748 8,982
Impairment loss on property, W - WEREERE
plant and equipment E518 7 = 4,846
Loss on written off items of property,  #EEYIE « BE K&
plant and equipment HAEIE B M E1E 7 3,378 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets  {F F#E & E R EE B 7 - 3,821
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEME  BEMR
property, plant and equipment, net B E M), EE
JHEE 5,7 (2,132) 1,166
Gain on termination of leases IR E R E 5 (8,460) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERM B QM= 5 = (8,250)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary IR —HNE AT
HE R 7 15 -
Net loss on derivative financial TSR AEEFE
instruments 7,26 293 78
Allowance for expected credit losses in & S EW KBTI EE
respect of trade receivables, net ERRE - FE 7 7,349 4,586
Allowance for/(reversal of) expected TERRUE - e RHM
credit losses in respect of JEWGRIRTEREEE
prepayments, deposits and other BEE/(gmE) -
receivables, net HEE 7 11,783 (94)

Allowance for expected credit losses in - FEU BAHSE 75 SIETE =
respect of amounts due from related BEERE - 38

parties, net 7 34 552
Gain on modification of CHEEE =Gl e
convertible loan 5 (5.597) -
Provision/(reversal) against obsolete and  [RE MiEEBRFE
slow-moving inventories s (FmE) 7 20,123 (38,397)
Product warranty additional provision 7 ShIRIEEBINEE 7 461 2,908
Finance costs B R A 6 7,501 22,468
Operating cash flow before movements &iE& & B B)ATEE
in working capital REME (154,508) (115,419)
Decrease in inventories FERD 38,095 125,659
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 IR R 1,590 93,092
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR - BS REME
deposits and other receivables WEkIB (38 n), @ (39,563) 70,448
Decrease in trade payables B 5 W IR (35,365) (85,828)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and H fi &< 28 K fe =t &
accruals #hn, CRid) 50,423 (5,727)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilites & &B&&EEH,CFid) 834 (2,994)
Utilisation of warranty provision R RIEEE (3,059) (3,055)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #& % (Frf) /PS4 (141,553) 76,176
Income tax refund REFTEHR = 730

Net cash flows (used in)/generated from 4£&/E&)(FTA ),/ Fiis
operating activities REMEFHE (141,553) 76,906
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

meRenak(E)

Year ended 31 December 2022
B E20224F 1231 HIFF/E

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
P 5 AR¥T T ARETTT
Cash flows from investing activities R&EEEFERSRE
Payment for purchases of items of BEWE - B REHEE
property, plant and equipment B &K (12,590) (2,514)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BERREER
property, plant and equipment B 8RS 508 2,345 289
Net cash inflow on disposal HEMB AR
of subsidiaries WEMANFE = 8,705
Interest received BHFE 133 529
Decrease in pledged deposits IR TR 14,672 55,533
Repayment from related companies R B BEEE A R AER 21,835 446,970
Advance to related companies EE]NEIE=E N (18,499) (510,616)
Repayment from shareholder KRB REREER = 2
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEFE,(FTR)
investing activities HeFr 7,896 (1,102)
Cash flows from financing activities FEEEFESRSRE
New bank and other borrowings FTRTT R E A S 44,760 160,915
Repayment of bank and other borrowings €% $877 M E b & 5K (43,455) (190,540)
Advance from related companies =Nl NI oE 47,288 28,268
Repayment to related companies FIEEBE A RER (13,866) (46,166)
Repayment of convertible loan EEMBRER (9.716) (11,737)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (18,314) (19,599)
Proceeds from placing and subscription  Fo & K& REERR (5 FT{5 508
of shares 119,330 -
Transaction costs attributable to feE RRERDEERS
placing and subscription PR R
of shares (1,347) -
Interest paid ERFIE (1,888) (17,800)
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) & EEFTS(FTH)
financing activities BemnE F88 122,792 (96,659)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBSEEY
equivalents A TEEE (10,865) (20,855)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ¥R & RIFEEEY
of year 13,485 35,969
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, SMNEEREEHTLE -
net HEE 4,970 (1,629)
Cash and cash equivalents FERASRESEEY
at end of year 7,590 13,485
Analysis of balances of cash and ReRESESEYEH
cash equivalents ki
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFEY 18 7,590 13,485

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REMBHRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Morris Home Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries as the “Group”) is an exempted company
with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company
is located at No. 52, Fu Hang Road, Tuen Mun, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12 January
2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Century Icon
Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RERERER @
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries MEAREER
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as KAREZMBARGFBLT :
follows:
Place of lssued  Percentage of equity attributable to the Company
incorporation/ ordinary share FOARGRERAL
registration and capital/paid up 2022 2021
business registered capital plirys:3 015 Principal country
Company name HRRL/ legalentity ~ BRTEERA/ | lftas EEE: Direct  Indirect Principal activities  of operation
LR ERREENE EABR BREEMRA B B B Bz TEER IEEEEX
Mstar International Trading Hong Kong/ Limited liability HK$100 - 100% - 100% Trading of sofas, sofa  Hong Kong
(HK) Limited United States company covers and other
furniture products
ZEAREA(BR)ERAT  BE/3E EBAA 10087 - 100% - 0% EENE DRER  EE
EfpRAER
Morris Fashion Home HK Limited ~Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100% - 100% Retailing of sofasand ~ Hong Kong
company investment holding
B AR HREARAR (3 ERRA 10,0007 - 100% - 100% PEEERRERE  FE
Zhejiang Apollo Leather The People’s Republic  Sino-foreign US$615,000 - 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale ~ The PRC
Products Co., Ltd.* of China ("PRC") equity joint of sofa covers
venture
FIMEBREHRERAT  REARAAE DIy 615,000%7 - 100% - 10% EEREENEE fE
(&) %
Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home The PRC Wholly foreign ~ US$41,470,000 - 100% - 100% Manufacturing and sale  The PRC
Co., Ltd.* owned of upholstered sofas
enterprise
MIRABHREARAR k! IEEERE 47000057 - 100% - 10% FEREEEENE  hE
Zhejiang Muhua Home The PRC Wholly foreign ~ US§35,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Manufacturing and sale ~ The PRC
Furishing Co., Ltd.* owned of upholstered sofas
enterprise
HIRERERRAR ik NEEERE 3500000057 - 100% - 100% EEREESENE  HE
Royale Home Living Limited The United Kingdom ~ Limited fiablity (3BP1,000 0% - 70% - Wholesale of fumiture -~ UK.
(formerly known as ("UK.") company products
“MorriSofa Europe Limited”)
Royale Home Living Limited ESIEC]) BRAA 1,000 70% - 70% - BEFEER L]
(318 MorriSofa Europe Limited )
* The English names of these entities represent management'’s best effort * ERZSERUAIMEME HEXE
at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not register any T ZEEENEXEEDHEEER
official English names. N BEER X ETERZSE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e MR R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREEER @)
(CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBARER#)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, IR EERAETEZEAEERBF
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results NEEIERFEE 2 ERT DB
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of NAMBRAT - EERA @ BHEHM
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the WEB AR B EMERBNILE
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 AmBEAE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements included applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTINUED) 2.1 mBEE )
Going concern BHEKE

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB199,679,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022 and as at 31 December 2022, the Group
had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB120,228,000 and RMB131,459,000 respectively. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. The directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements based on going concern on the assumptions and
measures that:

In view of the above circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future liquidity
and financial position of the Group and its available sources of
financing in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern. Certain plans
and measures have been taken to mitigate the liquidity position
and to improve the Group's financial position which include,

but are not limited to, the followings:

(i) The ultimate holding company of the Company, Century
Icon Holdings Limited which is wholly owned by the
substantial shareholder of the Company, Mr. Tse Kam
Pang, is willing to provide financial support to the Group
to enable the Group to continue as a going concern and

to settle its liabilities as and when they fall due;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuED)

Going concern (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two of
the indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group
formulated pre-restructuring plans to resolve their debt
positions and filed such plan with the People’s Court of
Haining City (the “Court”). The restructuring proposal
has been sanctioned by the Court in the PRC on 5
August 2022. According to the restructuring proposal,
the trade and bills payables and other payables and
accruals of those two subsidiaries under pre-restructuring
are expected to be discharged by approximately 80%.
The maturity date for all of the interest-bearing bank
borrowings will be extended to 2030 and reclassified
as non-current liabilities. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, the process of the restructuring has

been substantially completed;

The Group will take steps to obtain external funding in
order to improve the working capital and liquidity and

cash flow position of the Group;

The Group is taking measures to tighten cost controls

with an aim to attain positive cash flows from operations;

The Group is currently re-negotiating the repayment
schedules with certain of its debtors and endeavouring
to request them to repay the trade receivables, other
receivables and amounts due from related companies in
accordance with the repayment schedules agreed with

them; and

The Group has actively negotiated with stakeholders
for the purpose of obtaining further financing when
necessary, including but not limited to shareholder’s loan,
equity financing, bank borrowing and issuance of new
convertible bonds to improve the liquidity of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (conTINUED) 2.1 mBEE )
Going concern (Continued) BERE #)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking
into account the above-mentioned plans and measures,
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due within twelve months from the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, since the execution of the above
plans and measures are in progress, material uncertainties exist
as to whether management of the Group will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern would depend
upon the Group’s ability to meet its future working capital and

financing requirements.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to reflect the situation that
assets may need to be realised other than at the amounts at
which they are currently carried in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The effect of these adjustments has not

been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB’000)

except when otherwise indicated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time,
which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment -

Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

Accounting Guideline 5 (revised) ~ Merger Accounting for Common
Control Consolidation

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.3 NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN
ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the October  Insurance Contracts'
2020 and February 2022
Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies'
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

2.3 CHEMERAREBAFE]

RSB B R
A

7K 85 130 A4 5 AR LA 2 12
AR E] R IS5 BB R
A

B BRELER RERALY
F179% (84520205
10A }202242 AH)

BB RE LR
TR (BETR))

BB IRELER REEEERS
F10RREREE DRSS ERE
RRFE28F(BAIA)  ZEHEIFA

B

BRI IRELER ExMpAE
£1655 (1871 AR) afE

BEESHENER  BAEIEARD

CHEY) FIERBREE
HEESH
(2020F)z
1R

B ENEIRR GHHRNORE

ERMBHREER

BBHREE2R

(BETA)

BERGHERESR  SHMAIMNESR

CHEY)

BEEGHENENR HE-RJHEEZ

(BETA) BEREEREA
ZIRERE

BB ENE R NEREOR

CHEY =l

! 20231 A1 B sz & a4 = I

HER e

2 FEE B #Ask 2 14 B iR B F E HAR A 4L -
3 7202441 A1 B2 &R B FE B
E3

AARESEHRERAMB T MEE
R BB EERR A B AR
SHGREMHHRRENEATE -

RAEREEBRERDRA 2022 F8 117

P78 BN\ e e WY



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights; and

(d) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
patterns at previous shareholders’ meeting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share

of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present
ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o the customers simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has no
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer. A contract asset and a contract liability
relating to a contract are accounted for an presented on a net

basis.

A contract asset and a contract liability related to the same

contract are accounted for and presented a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis except for the allocation discounts.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined at
contract inception. It represents the price at which the Group
would sell a promised good or service separately to a customer.
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly observable, the
Group estimates it using appropriate techniques such that
the transaction price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

2.4

FTESABREHRE )

Revenue recognition (Continued) AR (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EELAUA (&)
Refund liabilities RAEE

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects

{h$%lﬁﬁﬁkﬁa§%¢ﬁﬂﬁzﬁiﬁ’]% g
AR ERERERE

to refund some or all of the consideration received from 2ERAE
customers. L%
Principal versus agent ZTHEAZEA

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to

ER—tEREPRERHEERHKIRG
S $%@Fzm,ﬁ\7% EMHERER
REETERIMBAGZHNEOEL
(ED$EI7%§%}\)IJZ¢<T3FEE73 77

arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other B EEo g RE(IAER AR

party (i.e. the Group is an agent). A o

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or MAREENETERSREERETE

service before that good or service is transferred to a customer. PRESEZE R RE - BIAER A
RiEA

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good or service provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts
as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.
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Sale of goods HEEm
Revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture EDI WBRERDEMFEERY
products are recognised at a point in time when control of U A A B S o o A o R 1 B T 2 R

the goods has transferred, which generally coincides with the
time when the products are delivered to customers and title is
passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Commission income

Commission income from sales of sofa, sofa cover and other
furniture products is recognised at a point in time when the
Group acts as an agent. The commission income expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the sales when the control
of goods have been passed to customers, which is primarily
upon the goods are delivered to and have been accepted by

customers.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use
in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Fair value measurement (Continuead)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset

in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3— based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end

of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories

consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is

credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEBRE®
POLICIES (conTinuED)

Related parties BEEE AL

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: EAHBTIER - ATALTEEERER
BREEE BRI

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s (@ ZALBRBTIALHIIIAL
family and that person HITRR  Mag AL
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group; ()  PEHlkERIEHIARER
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i HAKBEBEEATESN

g,
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (iiy AREBEHAEETAF]
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or MEEEBAL

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) FATRTEE TIEEIEHR

conditions applies: HE

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same () ZEREREAEEHRBR %
group; El0]39=UNCIE
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the iy RFEBRES—EBE(HS
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow —EBNYRA - MWBA
subsidiary of the other entity); FEAGEI i =AGIDE):
BASEEDRE
(i the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the (i) ZERHEAEBAR—Z
same third party; =HMaEhE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the vy REBRE=-FEENE
other entity is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—EBA%
F=AERENBMEA
(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (v) HEBARNEESEARSE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an EEABNEEREST
entity related to the Group; AR T B BE BB 12 18 N ET
£
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi) EBX@FM#ERIA LTS
person identified in (a); sl RS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEBME®
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Related parties (Continued) BEE AL ®)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if: (Continued) HEHBRTIER - U TATHEEER
HREB B - (&)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following (b) ZALAETE TIEMIGER
conditions applies: (Continued) g8 : (&)

(viiy a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) F@OEMINALTEHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the key BEBERAZENNAZ
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent B (ZERNERA])
of the entity); and MNEBEEAS : &

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is (vii) ZEBIEMBEENT
a part, provides key management personnel services (BIPA=WNCIV=YN S e P:N
to the Group or to the parent of the Group. SENREREEEE

BABRE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family —BATHIIRKEREZERRS
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced REMAZEZAATHEZATY
by, that person in their dealings with the entity, and include: BHIREKE - B :
(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner; (@) mBATIHNTFLZMEBxRE
fHaE
(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and (b) ZBEATHWEBXAREHEK
TR
() dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or (0 ZBATHZEBATHERBRL
domestic partner. BEMHEIZEA
A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction BAS BB A T 2 BFEERK
when there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between E&'ﬁ?}%ﬁ(TEﬁ%EHQWEFﬁ) - A
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price is R AR B REH

charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment that are tangible assets that are
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition

and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and

depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual

rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 33.3%

10% to 20%
20% to 33.3%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and office
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%

24 TEETHEBRE®

M3~ BB RRBURITE

FrE AR £ E MBS an R T A
TBRAZNYME  BELEEB(RE
FEE) (ERTIERRINIERARR
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KB EEEERE Mgz 2&ER
KA FE I E R BRI

WE - BE&RERERANEFRE
EHBERRESRX - —RREL
HIRRT ABa - B ARRGRME - X
WA ABEREE - FRE
EEX - W% BERRBHEER
BOBEREER - AIAKREBRAZE
Mo REBEERFHNENEE -
WETHRAAEITE -

FENAEREEGHERFERRS
EWE - BB MERER B B A
EEFREENE - MLERNEE

FERRPT

BEY) 5%

HEWHERE FAEIN33.3%
(ABREE R
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ST = 10%ZE20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at

each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinUED)

Leases
Definition of a lease

Lease is a contract contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based
on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on portfolio basis when the
Group reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from individual

leases within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-

lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases of buildings that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight — line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

132  MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

548 B - RN W71

-

24 TEETHEBME®

HE®)
EEBEBABA (E)
FTHHE R ICEEEEHE

HREH ARG B R S12(8A
FURNATEEEBERBREMNESE
WHE - AEBEEREREERZHN
% AEETHEEEERERMAE
R  BHHEREKEEEEME
MEENRNERAREREREAM
R EEER/FAX

EHEEE
EREEEZ AR :
s THERBEWIGLIESE

o A HE B 2 AIEL B EM
MEMK  BEMNEREER
=

s AKEELANEFONBEENX
ZANEI

s WMAKEERLBERBEBE
E - IREE PSS AR
BEWEEMEGRRIGMHR
ERMGITEERKARE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHRBIE @)
POLICIES (conmivueD)
Leases (Continued) GEN-AC )
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEEEBAMA(E)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) EHELE &)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated b B ER AR R REHTE &
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any BEBEE  UHRHEEEaENEM
remeasurement of lease liabilities other than adjustments to BHFTEELETE - BRECovid-1918
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent concessions AHSERMEYHEAEELNFAR
in which the Group applied the practical expedient. O REEBILEEARITRE L ©
Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to FAE B B4 R F A IR E R
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end TR EEEMBRNEREEEM
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date T AT RAREEgRBEREE
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets FRFHARBAMGIRETE - LHA
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its BAT  ERAEEERERENEM
estimated useful life and the lease term. EMERFERAMUAREERE)A
FHRITE -
The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item REBRGEVBEMRRAERAGERZE
on the consolidated statement of financial position. BEZJREEER -
Refundable rental deposits AR E %
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9 ENREHEEZRS DIRIER M
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at WMEEBBIRAR - WL EAR
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments B2 - VA BREHAAEELD
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets. RS AEIIAEN KA AER
REEEMXR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present
value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease

liability comprise:

fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the

commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of purchase options, if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the options; and
o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the

lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review or expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting

the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modiifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts for a
lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate
lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability less any lease
incentives receivables, based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-
of-use asset. When the modified contract contains one or
more additional lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component. The associated non-lease components are included
in the respective lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinUED)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has elected
to apply the practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the following conditions
are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as,
or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately

preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes
in lease payments resulting from rent concessions the same
way it would account for the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the
changes are not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the amounts
forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment recognised

in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market

place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

138 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

548 B -

-

24 TEETHEBME®

AN DN

FTAMEER A RELR B BaH
B o STEMMIIAR ELNFHER
AREBERERM LN TRETLE
ERERREE AR RARE
ERARHEZEE  ZEERHRHA
BREENE - ABTRIBBMENE
R B BEHA T SE A 8 R B B RO
B TEBREARLEES XA
R o REENAZSHUNERFEX
BTN EERTIER -

THIA

TREENEHMABBNEEEEKA
TAAKGR 2 —T78 T ARER » A
FRTAEENEREEDRRSH
HEWRREILHER - AERSTAE
BRERRKEMEAMSTORAIKIE
PR ENRREARNEEN SR

TRMEELEBBBENIRALER
& HREEFANNE SRR
BRoN - BIRRABM B RELRF15
BAFEE - MERRBRBE N
TEREERERBBEZIRIRA
(EanEt ABm(TRARETA
B ) 2 EREERI) IR B IRHE
REMAIEEREEXETRBELZ
RAEINR(ER) - EREBNK
BRANEFABRZIEREEZR
SR E R RERR

RN W71



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as other

revenue and other income.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payment of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group managers together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue and other

income” line item.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit loss
("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a shareholder, amounts
due from related parties, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within
12 months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting period as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
period with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,

the credit default swap prices for the debtors;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TEETHEBME®
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRITAE®E)

Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DHEERE(E)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) EERR ARG IN(E)

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the e BEHRAKLEHEENERLTELR
operating results of the debtor; EAEL

e an actual or expected significant adverse change in the s BEBAEE  KEIRMRE
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the EERAEHNERNTF &
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s g %ﬁ(%ﬁ%)\@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
ability to meet its debt obligations. EHIBE N KIE T o

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group Tim D TR - ME AR FE

presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since B30 - AEEREEERARES

initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 IRHERARE ARG - EAREEAE

days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable SRWEERE 2 ERERIERIIEN

information that demonstrates otherwise. It ©

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria AEBETFHEZARHIEERR S

used to identify whether there has been a significant increase BREZREMNFEESE BB ERE

in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the Rl EIRE - UIRR B BIRERENK

criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit HB AR M E R e BE LN o

risk before the amount becomes past due.

144  MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

"SI B = . QNN V/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about
the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(©)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the

lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over 1 year past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent

recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of
ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade and bills receivables and other
receivables are considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward looking macroeconomic

information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration

the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated based on

amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables, deposits and
other receivables and amount due from related parties where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (conmivueD)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as trade
and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, amount due to a shareholder, lease liabilities, loans and
borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities,

loans and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, trade and bills payables, other payables,
amounts due to related parties, lease liabilities, loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective

interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Convertible loan

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a

conversion option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent periods,
the debt component of the convertible loan notes is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
derivative component is measured at fair value with changes in

fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible loan
notes are allocated to the debt and derivative components in
proportion to their relative fair values. Transaction costs relating
to the derivative component are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the debt component
are included in the carrying amount of the debt portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible loan notes using
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a

collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and

payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

A modification of a financial liability occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified,
the Group assesses whether the revised terms result in a
substantial modification from original terms taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances including qualitative factors.
If qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers
the terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees
paid net of any fees received, and discounted using the original
effective interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the

original financial liability.

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial liabilities will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees
incurred are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified
financial liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term.
Any adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to

realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to make
the sale include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to

make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@  cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no

longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b)  cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term (generally
with original maturity of three months or less), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather

than for investment or other purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management. Such overdrafts are presented as short-term
borrowings in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is

included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for the expected cost of assurance-type warranty
obligations under the relevant contracts with customers for sales
of sofas, sofa cover and other furniture products are recognised
at the date of sale of the relevant products, at the directors’
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the Group’s

obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an obligation,
the part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other
parties is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has become
probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of future
economic benefits will be required for an item previously dealt
with as a contingent liability, a provision is recognised in the
consolidated financial statements in the reporting period in
which the change in probability occurs, except in the extremely
rare circumstances where no reliable estimate can be made.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conmivueD)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying

amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be

utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reserve in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of each reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of the
initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement
of lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of

remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conrinueD)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “Government subsidies” under “Other income
and gains”.

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

2.4

FTESABREHRE )

Employee benefits (Continued) EEEF#)

Pension schemes (Continued) BrEit & (&)

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China REBNRPEANMERNEEZRZ2M
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated REMMEAERNFREKRSE

by the local municipal governments, the assets of which are
held separately from those of the Group. Contributions are
made by the Group based on a percentage of the participating
employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
once made.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the

cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting

date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinuED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group's various line of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the United States
dollar ("US$"). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies are RMB, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of each reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (conTinUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of
each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period and their profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that

particular operation is not recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below:

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group reviews an ageing analysis of its inventories and
the condition of its inventories at the end of each reporting
period, and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for
sale or use in the production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the latest
invoice prices and current market conditions.

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different from the
original estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying value of inventories and the write-down of inventories
recognised in the reporting period in which such estimate is
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (conTinvED)

Allowance for expected credit loss for financial
assets under HKFRS 9

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables including trade
and bills receivables, deposit and other receivables based on
various factors including the aging of the receivables, historical
write-off experience and forward looking information. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will impact the
carrying amounts of receivables and the allowance for credit

3.

BERgHE M AR @)

RIEBBF BRI BRELERNEIR
TREENRYEEEERRRE

AEERIBRUGRIAMRE: - BEMH
KEMAETEERSEZHREE @ L&
WikiE (BB 5 REFIE R ERE
% FRREMEWRIR) FHEER
B o ERYGRBESZERH
B M bt o MIERERSE AR AR
AEAERBTERWKGAREE
R RIBE BB B REN R FET

losses on receivables is recognised in the years in which IR B FERER o
such estimates have been changed. See note 37 for further

discussion.

Impairment of non-financial assets FEREERE

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets
or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

REBREHR - AKEFEFREER
BEERLBTIRENR - JF2R
BERARRRAREERS KD
FEITRERR - BEESREESL
B MRAEEBSEATRE S5 (R
RAERBERN R EREEMRET
MESE) K - AEFERE- - ARE
BMHERARDRIERUEERFRS
ZEBHRNMHEERZABOEIE
KA BRI ERREHEEERE
ERAMTSE - EtEEREER -
BEEVEGHTRPRKRAEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. BARGHE MfhEt o)
AND ESTIMATES (conTINUED)

Derecognition of factored trade receivables and KRIPRRREE ZREWHRIER
discounted/endorsed bills receivable EER EEERKERE

The Group has entered into arrangements with its bankers in REBERRIZEE 5 EYRIER AR
respect of the factoring of trade receivables and discounting JENW IR EAERITA] S & BE - S ERTT
of bills receivable, or endorsed certain of its bills receivable W E TREEBESE TAEES
accepted by banks to certain of its suppliers in order to settle THER - LEEERZEHERD
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Based on an evaluation B SIS FIA o IRIBE Ll g g
of the terms and conditions of the arrangements and the credit R - UNREBRIEE S EWGIE
quality and settlement pattern of the factored trade receivables REER BEEEERKEENEEER
and discounted/endorsed bills receivable, management has to ZERFBEEFEHNE - BERER
determine whether the Group has retained substantially the risks EEAEEREGEREE TERYIE
and rewards of certain receivables, which include default risks HRBAREBD R RER  BIFHEZS
relating to such receivables. Details of the transfers of financial FEWRIEBBEMELNER - @REE
assets are included in note 35 to the financial statements. B IEH NI ISIRERMFE35
SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEFER

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of goods
or services delivered or provided. This is also the basis upon
which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8

are as follows:

MEEE(NXTELERRE)NER
DERDHRBFEMBENER S
PP SRR AV & fa Sk R A5 1R
B HNAAEEEBLERENE

mE @ AREREFEMBRE
ERIESIRE| DAV 2RO BT -

a.  Retail segment a ZEHH
b.  Manufacturing segment b. HEDE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12431 HILFE
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinueD) 4. pEpERE)
Segment revenues and results DEBRA R ELE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results AT AR EBIZA 2MREE D EE
by reportable and operating segments: DHPARFEEDHT -
Elimination of
Retail segment Manufacturing segment intersegment sales Total
ZE4Y LENY PHEHEHS &t
2022 201 2022 201 2022 2021 2022 2021
202% 2021F 02% W01F plipyk:3 W1F 20202% W1F
RMB'000 R RMB'000: R RIMB'000 RV RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT BNEAM ARETn BNEEVM \RETT BRSO ARETT AR
Segment revenue DA
External sales e 70351 216304 61662 286628 - - 13 502932
Internal sales mEEE 240 - 5641 106,739 (8113)  (106,739) - -

12,823 216,304 67303 393367 (8113) (106739 132,013 502,932

Segment loss AHER (0632) (27583 (170,759 (82,755 - - (191301)  (110338)
Interest income FISHA 133 529
Loss on derivative financia ik At

instruments (293) (78)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBRANE - 8250
Gain on modification of BAITRRERH

convertible loan e 5,507 -
Loss on deregstration of RIBR-HNE

asubsidiary RANER (15) -
Unallocated corporate expenses kAR AFFR (138711) (1552
Unallocated finance costs APERANE (3,578) (3,127)
Loss before tax RiES (203,418)  (120,286)
Segment loss represents the loss from each segment without SDEBEEES D EMEELEE - ML
allocation of interest income, loss on derivative financial EOBRAMBMA - fTESRTAE
instruments, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on B HEWBARME - BT TR
modification of convertible loan, loss on deregistration of a BEReE - RItER—ENHE QR
subsidiary, unallocated corporate expenses and unallocated HIBE KO ARHAZRAD IR
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Board for the B o Tt E RS B R R I FTE
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment. MEFEE2HRMTE -
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. D EBE S E R T ISR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conminueD) 4. DEER )
Segment assets and liabilities SPEEERAE

Consolidated

&8

Retail segment
ZELH

Manufacturing segment
EEDH

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 20214 2022 20214 2022 20216
RMB’000 mHVINi/l RMB'000 YR/l RIVIB'000 RMB'000

INH AT ARETT PNEETMN ARETT PNEETM ARETT
Segment assets NEEE 37,507 48067 300,828 294912 338335 342,979
Unallocated corporate KA B ARIEE
assets 28,569 31,903
Consolidated assets IRREE 366,904 374,882
Segment liabilities AEa%E 40,141 37,241 379304 304,202 419,445 341,443
Unallocated corporate~ AAEARAE
liabilities 78,918 84,610
Consolidated liabilities A B(E 498,363 426,053

REENMRALNES D ZEOE
BR

For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

548 B -

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising certain

of amounts due from related parties, amount due from a

BARNEAREE(ZTZRES
T RE U RRRE 7 FR0E - B —
BRRREREMADERFE

shareholder and other unallocated corporate assets); and E)N MBEEHI LS
oEB R
e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other e BRARNEARAB(FERERE
than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly comprising MR ARIFIA - TESRT
amounts due to related companies, derivative financial B AR ERRE MRS B
instruments, convertible loan and other unallocated NAEIAE)N - FTEAESSE
corporate liabilities). EREDHR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 1231 HIFF/E
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conminueD) 4. DEER )
Other segment information HihoIpER
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Unallocated Total
2ENH £ESS AE Azt
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ANE E ANE WNE NE WNE NE WNE
CUEKOORS  RMB'000 ISGHUEANNS  RMB'000 ESGLUGHUIAS  RMB'000 ESGLTEHUNAS  RMB'000
ARETT BNl ARETT Qv ARETT BNSyll ARETT ENSw
Addition of right-of-use assets ~ FEFBEEE 17,329 - 9217 4637 - - 46,546 4637
Addition of property, plantand ~ FEWE - BRER
equipment Bt 1395 1,444 11,195 1,070 - - 12,590 2514
Depreciation of property, plant 1%+ FER&E
and equipment Vit 688 1,765 2,859 965 - - 3,547 2730
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FFEEENE 8313 8138 2435 844 - - 10,748 8982

Provision/{reversal) against REREERE
obsolete and slow-moving B/ (BE)

inventories (5,176) 57 25,299 (38,454) - - 20,123 (38,397)
Allowance forfreversal of EHRNGERE

alowance for) expected credit ~ EEBREE/

losses in respect of trade (o) =

receivables, net 432 (345) 6917 4931 - - 7349 4586
Allowance for/reversal of BREATE &

allowance for) expected 2 REMRY

credit losses in respect of on BNEREEER
prepayments, deposits and BiE/ (B

other receivables, net &) 9% 9 10,830 (119) 12 @ 18 (94)
Allowance for expected crecit ~~ TEAER T 50BH)

losses in respect of amounts ~ BEEERER

due from related parties, net Ere - - 34 552 = - 3 552
Impairment loss on property, plant 1% - BERR/E

and equipment TEFE - 80 - 4,766 - - - 4,846
Written off of property, plant ~ Hi#9E  BER

and equipment B - - 3378 - - - 3378 -
Impaiment oss onright-of-use ~ FAEEERE

assets B - - - 3821 - - - 381
(Gain)loss on disposal of property, HEHE - BER

plant and equipment SR k) /

Bl (68) 1,080 (2,064) 8 - - (2132) 1,166

Gain on termination of leases SR HAERINE @,011) - (4,449) - - - (8,460) -
Finance costs HENL 1233 977 2,690 18,364 3,578 31 7501 20,468
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 12831 HIFF/E
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conTinuED) 4. DEER )
Geographical information wEER
The following table sets out information about the geographical TREBINFAREBRBINIE S H
locations of the Group’s revenue from external customers Was AR EERBEENHIBLE
during the year and the Group's non-current assets. BEL o
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KEINSBEFH Kz
The geographical locations of the customers are EPHMECETREBEE P
determined based on the locations of customer. EHEEE ©
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFT
People’s Republic of China REARANE(BEES)
(including Hong Kong) 65,764 71,869
The United States of America EFRERBE([EE])
("US"” or “U.S.") 42,952 246,050
Europe (Note (a)) BOM (B 3E@)) 19,018 166,937
Others EHAh, 4,279 18,076
132,013 502,932
Note: BRRE -
(a) Europe mainly include France, Norway, Spain, Ireland and United (a) BN Za4E AR - HhEl -
Kingdom. 7F - ERERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueD)

Geographical information (Continued)

(b) Non-current assets

4. DEPER#)
hEER 2
(b) FFHBEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFTT

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANBE(BEEE)

(including Hong Kong) 49,065 5,068
The U.S. E= - 71
The United Kingdom (“U.K.") W ([HEE]) 1,096 3,570

50,161 8,709

The non-current asset information above is presented

based on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers with did not consist any related

parties of the corresponding year contributing over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group is as follows:

AESERBEEERTIRIEE
ENLEZS

BEEEEFHER

PR 5 A R BB A 10% A b
B BES CRaE AN ) KA
T

2022 2021

20224 20214F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFR AR¥FIT

Customer 1 251 18,607 140,930

Customer 2 BP2 33,891 61,793

Customer 3 EP3 N/ATE R * 52,419

Customer 4 EF4 N/AT 38 i * 65,410
* Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total revenue of the * PN E R RS0 E NN SEE =y

Group. 10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after

allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added tax.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA~ EAB YA B s

WAIRFTIHE & m

MRERE - EHH

HRIRERBERNERFE -

WA~ B AR Y DT T

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREFT
Revenue PN
Recognised at a point in time: R —FF T H R -
Manufacture and sales of sofas, sofa cover 4 ERIHEDEE « DI3tE
and other furniture products NEMEREER 131,725 502,225
Commission income A 288 707
132,013 502,932
Other income and gains Hi A & ez
Interest income F 2 WA 133 529
Gain on termination of leases BRIEMEE R W 8,460 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE K
equipment Bl e 2,132 -
Gain on modification of convertible loan ~ {EF] AT AR E F AU &S 5,597 -
Government subsidies (Note (a)) AT HAERL (3 (@) 4,412 3,057
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERE AR Mk - 8,250
Rental income Ha WA 150 844
Compensation income (Note (b)) HEUA (H7E(D)) 13,370 3,259
Waiver of other payables e H AR FRIR - 7,759
Others Hity 320 196
34,574 23,894
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised local
governments in Zhejiang Province of approximately RMB2,013,000
(2021: RMB3,057,000) in respect of the Group’s contribution to the
industry. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government subsidies of approximately RMB2,399,000 in respect
of Covid-19-related subsidies, of which approximately RMB492,000
related to Employment Support Scheme and Anti-epidemic Fund Retail
Sector Subsidy provided by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, and approximately RMB1,907,000 in respect of the
Employee Retention Credit Scheme provided by the federal government in
United States. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating
to these grants.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received
compensation on factory relocation from Morris Group Co., Ltd. (“Morris
PRC") due to consider possible losses about factories relocation in peak
season. Therefore, the Group recognised compensation on factory
relocation of approximately RMB13,366,000.

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of the

transaction price allocated to the remaining performance

obligation under the Group's existing manufacture and sales of

sofa, sofa covers and other furniture products is approximately
RMB11,052,000 (2021: approximately RMB9,858,000) and the
Group will recognised this revenue in 2023.

6. FINANCE COSTS

HA

2022912 A31H

H W A Mz o)

HZE202F12A31BILEE - A%EH
RN T E 5 RS SAEE AT
1 & ek 8 B 49 A R #52,013,0007T (2021
& AR#¥3,057,0007T) ° B E20224F
12 A31BIEFE - A& EH Covid-1948
8 1 AL R SR BT 1 B 40 A R 62,399,000
gL - B AR B492,000 T L H B
RIFTER R BT R AR B 25T B R P&
MEECTEE/PEHR  ROARK
1,907,000 7T £ 3 B Bt AT 1R B0 (R BB
BIFWNETEEH - MEmEzSHE
BRAMARER ke EEE -

HZE2022F 128310 LLFE - AREE
B ETHRBHATEEEL - AEEK
FRERAEEERAR([HEHE])
M IRRIREHE - At - NEEHERE
EREHELNARE13,366,0007T °

O RERNEE

BEEERBEEDE DEEREAM
REEGETHTENEANRSE
@R #) A AR EE11,052,0007T (2021
& Y AR%59,858,0007T) + MANE
E 72023 F FERIEBULA ©

BLE AR

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERFIE 1,490 15,791
Interest on discount trade bills BLIRE HEEF B 398 2,009
Interest on convertible loan AR E T B 3,578 3,127
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEFE 2,035 1,541
7,501 22,468
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

7. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. BREAIEE
7S B B AT A BTV (5

(crediting): A)TFIRIA
2021
20214F
Notes RMB'000
Bt AREFT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA 109,890 441,673
Provision/(reversal) against obsolete  [RE N FEERI1F S48,
and slow-moving inventories (@) 20,123 (38,397)
Cost of sales SHEA 130,013 403,276
Depreciation of property, plantand ~ #1%  BHE MEETE
equipment 13 3,547 2,730
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 14 10,748 8,982
Expense relating to short-term lease ARG EAEMN T 18,417 19,956
Impairment loss on property, plant W - BB REERE
and equipment E518 13 = 4,846
Written off of property, plant and HEEE - BB &
equipment** B R 13 3,378 -
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets {# FA4E & E R EEIE 14 = 3,821
Loss on disposal of property, plant LEME - BE REERN
and equipment 518 = 1,166
Auditors’ remuneration: ZEE S
Audit and audit related services Bat RE AT BRI AR TS 1,433 1,304
Non-audit services R RTE = 204
1,433 1,508
Employee benefit expenses (excluding & 8 @FIFx (T RiEE
directors’ and chief executives ERFETHRAENS
remuneration (note 8)): (M93E8)) -
Salaries, wages and benefits in kind ~ #& + TEREWFIZE 103,840 63,443
Pension scheme contributions* RIRET B R 7,669 16,388
111,509 79,831
Allowance for expected credit losses & 5 EWFIETESE S
in respect of trade receivables, net BREFE 7,349 4,586
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance  JBINFXIE - & R EMfE
for) expected credit losses in respect W FIEMTE R = E &8
of prepayments, deposits and other 5, (Bm % ) F 58
receivables, net 11,783 (94)
Allowance for expected credit losses  JEUBAES X Bz IEH) FEHA
in respect of amounts due from EEEBEREETE
related companies, net 34 552
Product warranty additional provision = Sh{RIEEEIMEE 461 2,908
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary ,Z.\%gfﬁ’u—%ﬁ {ap=NGIlED)
=18 15 -
Loss on derivative financial MTESRMTAERE
instruments 293 78
Loss on sales of raw materials** SHE RV RLEIE** 11,509 24,093
Exchange losses** FE 34, s 18 > 7,183 456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12431 HILFE
7. LOSS BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED) 7. BRIEIBE®
* At 31 December 2022, the Group had no forfeited contributions available * 20226128318 - AEEWEERK
to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future years (2021: AR FRAT AR R SR T 0 IR R G B
RMBnil). (20214 « f&) °
**  The above items are included in “Other expenses and losses” on the face *x A EIERF AGREER REMEEEE
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive RO HMFHZ REBIA -
income.
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFKFETHAEME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, BiELEmHRA - BERFGEHE
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), 383(1)(a) - (b) ~ (O FBIEA R AT (H
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 EEEFNEER)RANE2E - KFE
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EENFETRABMESEENT ¢
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Fees we 1,767 2,286
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYH = 7,182 4,215
Discretionary bonuses E)IEIE4AL - 6,722
Pension scheme contribution RIRETEIHER 131 229
7,313 11,166
9,080 13,452
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 12831 HIFF/E
8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENMFZTHAEME
REMUNERATION (contivueD) (&)
(@) Independent non-executive directors () BYEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FRAZNTEIERNTEED
during the year were as follows: wmeERIET
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%ET T ARBTTT
Mr. Liu Haifeng (i) 2181 S () 149
Mr. Chu Guodi (i) A B 25 5 A (i) 61 149
Mr. Qian Jun (i) B8 A (i) 56 179
Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent (i) B8 & 75 2085 i) 44 -
Professor Lee Chack Fan (iv) IR IR (v) 31 -
Ms. Chen Jianhua (iii) FeR BB 20 (i) 44 -
Ms. Zhao Hongyan (v) HALEZ (V) 115 -
Mr. Tan Tianhong (v) TERAL A (V) 115 -
Ms. Wu Weixia (v) RIBELZI(v) 115 -
642 477
Notes: Fff5E
(i) Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr. Chu Guodi resigned as independent non- (i) 218 16 5 A IR A B 55 ST HE 0 2022
executive directors of the Company on 16 May 2022. F5 16 H B ER DB LIEHIT
EE
(ii) Mr. Qian Jun resigned on 14 April 2022. (ii) R ER2022F4 148 BHT ©
(i) Professor Kwan Pun Fong Vincent and Ms. Chen Jianhua were (iii) B8 on 5 R I PR e 22 722022
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the Company FI0A7TAEZEARRARE L
on 17 October 2022. JEHITES -
(iv)  Professor Lee Chack Fan was appointed as an independent non- (iv)  FIESHITN2022F11 A0
executive director of the Company on 9 November 2022. ZERADREMIFMITES ©
(v) Ms. Zhao Hongyan, Mr. Tan Tianhong and Ms. Wu Weixia resigned (v) MAELZT BRALERRE
as independent non-executive directors of the Company on 9 B THR2022F 11 A9BBER
November 2022. NRVBNIENITEE
(vi)  There were no other emoluments payable to the independent (i)  BHEEMFANEMNBIIERmITE
non-executive directors during the year (2021: RMBnil). FEZFHM(Q20214F : &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

EHZE2022F12H31HIFF/Z
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENFETHAEMS
REMUNERATION (continveD) (&)
(b) The chief executive officer, non-executive (b) 1THUHEE - FHITEER
directors and executive directors HITES
The remuneration of each of these executive directors and ZEPTEENRIERTESS
non-executive directors are set out below: BRI ETT

Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

A g |
e REWNE  BERL #R He#E
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARETR AR®TR ARMTR

Year ended 31 December 2022 #Z2022512A318 L FE

Executive Directors; HiTES
Mr.Zou Gebing (“Mr. Zou")  SEEEA([B%EE]) 45 5,335 - 49 5,429
Mr. Wu Yueming (i) RABEA() 615 313 - 15 943
Mr. Shen Zhidong () ILEREA() 278 ik = 14 403
Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai EFREE
(Chief Executive Officer) (i (778#3)i) 56 464 - 4 524
Mr. Tse Kam Pang (ii EE] e () 55 445 - = 500
1,049 6,668 - 82 7,199
Non-executive Directors: FHTES
Mr. Tse Hok Kan (i) SEE L) 45 = = = 45
Ms. Wu Xiangfei (iv) BRAZ L) 31 514 - 49 504
76 514 - 49 639
Notes: Fff5E
(i) Mr. Wu Yueming and Mr. Shen Zhidong resigned as executive (i) R AR A RLER 5 A 102022
directors on 9 November 2022. FITAIBFERITES -
(i) Mr. Chong Tsz Ngai and Mr. Tse Kam Pang were appointed as (i) FEF R A R A SRS S £ 72022
executive directors on 17 October 2022. FIOR7EEZ I RNITES -
(i)~ Mr. Tse Hok Kan was appointed as non-executive director on 17 (i)  HEHEER2022F107178E
October 2022. RERFFMTES -
(iv)  Ms. Wu Xiangfei was appointed as non-executive director on 9 (v) B ZTm2022F 11 A9RE
November 2022. ZERIFWITESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

EE2022F 12431 H I F/E
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. BEELFETHAEMS
REMUNERATION (continuED) (&)
(b) The chief executive officer, non-executive (b) 1THHEE - EHITESK
directors and executive directors (Continued) HITES=(®)
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
g4 28 RIRGHE
e  REDIG Wi 173 B @

RMB'OO0  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARRTRE  ARBTT ARBTIR  ARETR  ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2021 EZ2021E12A31AILEE

Executive Directors; WTES:

Mr. Zou (Chief Executive Officer) 8350 (770 485) 1,261 2,751 5,394 68 9,474

Mr. Zeng Jin (i) BEEA() 97 193 - 25 315

Mr. Wu Yueming RABPEE 340 931 1,129 68 2,468

Mr. Shen Zhidong TEREE 111 340 199 68 718
1,809 4215 6,722 229 12,975

Note: fRE -

(i) Mr. Zeng Jin resigned as executive director on 8 June 2022. (i) @S AR202256 ASHEHTHL

TEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 1231 HIFF/E
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IEEZE=%ESR
The five highest paid employees during the year included 2 FNRERSFHIEEBRIEMRE (2021
directors (2021: 2), details of whose remuneration are set out F - WMB)EE FREMESHFE
in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the five highest HRENHES - AZHZRSHREEDN
paid employees are as follows: FEFIFOT
2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Fees e 660 1,601
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYH= 8,616 8,169
Discretionary bonuses BYIBTEAL - 6,523
Pension Scheme contributions RIRETEIHER 118 226
9,394 16,519
The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration fell FHWN Ty EBEN RS HEEHE
within the following bands is as follows: LU
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 TE 1,500,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 523,000,000/ 7T = 2
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7T E6,500,00078 7T 1 -
HK$11,000,001 to HK$11,500,000 11,000,00187C% 11,500,000 7T = 1
5 5
During the year ended 31 December 2022, remuneration REVE2022F12A31HIEFE - K&
was paid by the Group to the Directors or five highest paid EERENESI AL EaHEEY
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the ~EN£ 49 AR 178,5007T © 1EAR
Group or as compensation for loss of office of approximately S| E pn AN & B il A AN 52 [ B A 42
RMB178,500 (2021: RMBnil). There has been no arrangement B EABEREE(2021F « AR
under which a director has waived or agreed to waive any o) c MEEECRENFAERE
emoluments. ER A 25k -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)Y/EXPENSES 10. FTEF(IER),FAxX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity is
calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable

profits above HK$2 million.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% during the year (2021: 25%). Pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
Co., Ltd. (“Fashion home"”) and Zhejiang Apollo Leather
Products Co., Ltd. (“Apollo”), which qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprises (“HNTE”) in November 2018, were
entitled to a reduced enterprise income tax rate of 15%. During
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Fashion Home
an Apollo applied the qualification of HNTE and are entitled to
the reduced tax rate of 15% until the year ended 16 December
2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (conminuED)

The U.S. corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 31
December 2022 in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
The U.S. income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated
at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: a fixed rate of 21%) on the estimated U.S. federal
taxable income and (b) state income tax to calculated at various
state income tax rates for both periods on the estimated state
taxable income for the respective states. The income subject
to tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable income) is calculated
based on the federal taxable income with state tax adjustments,
which is then allocated or apportioned to the respective states
(i.e. percentage of taxable income that should be apportioned
or specially allocated to the respective states in which the Group
operates) based on the apportionment factors provided from
the state tax returns in previous year.

A change to the main U.K. corporation tax rate, announced in
the Budget on 11 March 2020, was substantively enacted on
17 March 2020. The rate applicable from 1 April 2020 now
remains at 19%, rather than the previously enacted reduction to
17%. Deferred taxes are calculated based on the rates enacted
in respect of future periods as at the reporting date. Pursuant
to the income tax rules and regulations of U.K., the subsidiary
comprising the Group in U.K. is liable to U.K. at a tax rate of
19% for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Cambodia, the
tax of the Cambodia subsidiary is 20% during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

10. FISRLGR%R), HX (@)

BB B ER - 8220225
NRAJNBEFEMNEBRCEREA
21% o EBFEH B E QMM E
G PTE T AR E E 20224512
A318 1EFE21% 89 EE H & (2021
F o 21% M EEB ) T E /95 F AT
B (o) M A AR A HE S N &9 (A5
MERFBA - BT RIS B R
HRMFTEH o B M0 8 FERFLUL
A BN FERR B UL A FRAS VE L MR Bt
HHAE(HESRSIREN D RES
) BBt D E SR AR U (BRI L 151 3
S5 Bl 0 Bt 22 AN 5 [ 4K & A AR A
MEOERBRABT D) - BIFSLA
FEMMBEREZRRO B E =M
HiSH -

M2020F3 A1 BHTEEEFR AMHH
EREFERABEEZEHEN202053
R17BEEEN - B2020F4H 11
B AR RIBERN19% - M3k
A THAE17% o ELEFTER
TR B R s B EARL AR SR AR A8 5 &Y
METHE - BIBERBEAGHRLRE
o BHZE2022F K2021F12A318
IEFE  AEBREENKBARZA
1219% BB R BN R B TSR o

RIERIHEMAEER  H22022
FR2021F12A31BILFE - R
EMBRARMNHEEA20% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (conTinuED) 10. FTBERH(ER),FHx @)

2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T T ARBT T
Current — PRC BNER —h
— Charge for the year —FAZH = -
— Over-provision in prior year —BAFEBERE = (1,194)
Current — Hong Kong BIER— &%
— Charge for the year —FRNZH = 255
— Over-provision in prior year — BT FERERE (798) -
Deferred tax (note 25) PEIERE B (BI5E25) (34) 4,055
Tax (credit)/expenses for the year FARBEE), FX (832) 3,116
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSES (conminuED) 10.

A reconciliation of the tax expenses applicable to loss before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the majority
of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

FIsfi (&), @)

B R B AR M A B S AL 7]
ERERADEER R E R AT E 1R
MR RBIAR X B AR B ERR X
HEMTIRR SRR T -

2022 2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
Loss before tax FRA AT ES 18 (203,418) (120,286)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates LB R B AR N iE
applicable to profit in the respective iR A E R IE
jurisdiction (47,132) (28,759)
Adjustments in respect of current tax BLIBT BRI BN EAR IR A A R
previous periods (798) (1,194)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 22,584 24,472
Super-deduction of eligible research A BRI S BERE
development expenditure (213) (4,268)
Tax effect of deductible temporary AR EENRISTE
difference (34) 4,054
Income tax on concessionary rate REBRETERNEH = (2,818)
Income not subject to tax BIERTUA (6,579) (20,363)
Tax reduction for the year FATIER R = (8)
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIAEE 31,340 32,000
Tax (credit)/expenses for the year FARBEER), FX (832) 3,116

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.2% (2021:
23.9%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax
rate was caused by a change in the profitability of certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions.

hn#E ¥ 558 B B K 5 23.2% (2021
F:23.9%) c MEFHERTRE
AR ARRE THBARNEEE
ALEREE M B FIRE B R EFTE -

RAEREEBRERDA 2022 3 183

P78 BN\ e e WY




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A

BA RS R AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

The board of directors did not recommend the payment of
dividend of the year ended 31 December 2022 (202 1: RMBnil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amount for the year
ended 31 December 2022 was based on the loss for the
year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of approximately RMB199,679,000 (2021: approximately
RMB121,508,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,427,475,671 after excluding treasury shares
(2021: 924,188,000) in issue during the year.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no
adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts as

the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue.
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AR EBERTEAE
THERUE R
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REREBEDREBREEARRQA]
TBRERITBEAREBEHNARE
199,679,0007C (20214 : HH AR
121,508,0007T ) WA &R F (N B B 1T
AR /9 hn #E ¥ 19 8001,427,475,671
B (B EF R H %) (2021 F -
924,188,0000%) 1 & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% - BB KRB

Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Motor  Construction
improvements ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HE BER ZA-HH
nxEB BE  RBORG AE ERIR gt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTn  ARMTR
31 December 2022 25128318
At31 December 2021 and R0215128318 R
1 January 2022 0051818
Cost A 19,195 17,364 9,904 3,459 1,331 51,253
Accumulated depreciation ZHRERAE
and impairment (18,955) (17.38) (9,442) (3,115) (1,331) (50,185)
Net carrying amount HEHE 240 0 462 34 - 1,068
At 1 January 2022, net of accumulated 12022E1 818 -
depreciation and impairment MREERAE 240 b)) 462 344 - 1,068
Additions hE 4,964 2,008 5,469 149 - 12,590
Disposal e - - - (213) = (213)
Depreciation charge during the year ~ FMITERR (1,206) (17) (2.264) (60) = (3547)
Written off s = - (3378) - - (3378)
Bichange realignment EH A% (19) @ 1 (5) = (13)
At 31 December 2022, VVEIVEEER
net of accumulated depreciationand % 25 ERFE
impairment 3,979 2,011 300 215 - 6,505
At 31 December 2022: R2022F12/318
Cost A 2.m 15213 13,638 2,022 1328 54472
Accumulated depreciation ZETERAE
and impairment (18,292) (13,202) (13,338) (1,807) (1,328) (47,967)
Net carrying amount EaE 3,979 2011 300 215 - 6,505
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W12 BB M&iE )

(CONTINUED)
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Plant and office Motor  Construction
Buildings  improvements machinery ~ equipment vehicles in progress Total
g BER %A fi
B NEEE BE RELR g fRIE Eh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETRT ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2021 20215128318
At31 December 2020and  #2020F123318 )

1 January 2021 WNE1A1H
Cost i 31,119 2117 20,795 9,640 419 1,21 89,684
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZiFFEREE

and impairment (6,211) (20,798) (16,550) (8.957) (3631) (1,221) (57,368)
Net carying amount REYE 24908 1919 4,45 683 561 - 32,316
At 1 January 2021, netof 20211818

accumulated depreciation  JIB ZAFTERAE

and impairment 24,908 1919 4,245 683 561 - 32316
Additions AE - 1,088 534 590 17 285 2514
Disposaliwritten-off e /M - (1,070) 99) 9) (18) (175) (1,455)
Depreciation charge during ~ ERFERE

the year (257) (1,499) (619) (24 (113) - (2.730)
Impairment loss HEEE - (165) (4,038) (451) (82) (10) (4,846)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ (HEMBRF]

(note 2816) (Miz28(b)) (24452) - - (10) - - (24462)
Exchange realignment B HZ (199) 33 (1) (15) 1) - (269)
At 31 December 2021, R0NE12A318

net of accumulated MRZRERAE

depreciation and

impairment - 240 2 462 344 - 1,068
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A318
Cost A - 19,195 17,364 9,904 3459 1,31 51,253
Accumulated depreciation  ZaHTERFE

and impairment - (18,955) (17,342) (9.442) (3,115) (1,331) (50,185)
Net carrying amount FHFE - 20 2 462 34 - 1,068
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B R M ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

Al - ot

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W%~ W& MR EE
(CONTINUED)
Note: BeE -
Assumptions were used in the value-in-use or fair value less cost of disposal FTE MR ESESEMN2021F12A318 E’JTEE
calculation of the above cash-generating units as at 31 December 2021. The AEERAAERDERAED RS -
following describes each key assumption on which management has based its FREEBENARSRETAETYE - Jﬁﬁ%
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of property, plant and &Eﬁﬁtﬂifiﬁﬁ*E;ﬁixﬂiﬁfﬁ‘\gﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’lﬁﬁf
equipment and right-of-use assets. The annual growth rates of each CGUs are B - SREEEEMNFIEREDERIEH
based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the average %WEE Bl - BENEBIREREITER T REG
long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. Other key assumptions for the E?— ERBEFENEMFTIERRERERE
value-in-use calculations relate to the estimation of cash flows which include fhETER - REREEERENE - BRMGETD
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s past ERBEUMBAERRRERBHTISERATEN
performance and management'’s expectations for the market development. e ©
The pre-tax discount rate applied for the cash flow projections is 10.84 to RenmERAMABRAAER X 51084 F
11.06%. Management believes that any reasonably possible change in any of 11.06% - BERERE - EUZFRENEMNE
these assumptions would not cause the carrying amount of each of the CGUs to AR TEEHSHeEFEUNREE
exceed their respective recoverable amount. ni@ﬁ% BRI SEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. EREEE
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HELT i HEwE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFIT ARETT ARETFT
As at 1 January 2021 720211 A18 7,316 16,133 23,449
Additions B - 4,637 4,637
Depreciation charge during the year ER#rEE A (Mi:E7)

(note 7) (28) (8,954) (8,982)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 28(b)) &M E R 7 (HiFE28(b)) (7,230) - (7,230)
Impairment loss (note 7) WAEEE(MEE7) - (3,821) (3,821)
Exchange realignment HE 5 P (58) (354) (412)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2021612 A318 &

as at 1 January 2022 2022F1H1H - 7,641 7,641
Additions NE - 46,546 46,546
Depreciation charge during the year ER#rEE A (MizE7)

(note 7) - (10,748) (10,748)
Exchange realignment b 5 AR - 217 217
As at 31 December 2022 1R20225612H318 - 43,656 43,656
Lease liabilities of approximately RMB47,452,000 (2021: 72022128310 - HEBELHA
approximately RMB25,002,000) are recognised with related R #47,452,0007T (20214 : HAR
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB43,656,000 (2021: #25,002,0007T ) 7R 72 A8 A (5 A3 4
approximately RMB7,641,000) as at 31 December 2022. The & EH AR 43,656,000 7T (2021
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than F Y ARYT,641,0007T) ° BrHAR
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the AFMBHEEENRERZI  HE
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing WL B AE DR - HEEET
pUrposes. SREBROERR -

Details of total cash outflow of leases are set out in the HEMRE ML BEFBEHNEER
consolidated cash flow statements. EMERK °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (conminueD)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group leased properties for own use. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term
and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable.

Details of impairment assessment on right-of-use assets are set
out in note 13.

14. FRESE®)

REZE20224 %2021 128318 1
FE ASEHREVEEER -HE
BHMETEFHAE—Z2+F - BEK
ST ERER LiHE - vessE
TRIEVER R G o P E R E &Y
R HE RN RER - AEERE
A& HBEERIE TS 4058 6817
RYHEART -

ERFEREEEREMEFEHT
RBIEE13 ©

15. INVENTORIES 15. 78
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Raw materials R 10,070 27,181
Work in progress R m 2,565 22,448
Finished goods BURK i 12,776 33,548
25,411 83,177
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. BHRWEIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Trade receivables from third parties REFE=FTHE S EUGRIA 52,098 51,480
Less: allowance for expected credit losses & : TREAz B EEE (18,956) (11,607)
33,142 39,873

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEBBEERFHNESRBUEER
credit. The credit period for customers of the manufacturing * o EE%E‘B%JE'E’M“E@ Br—
segment is generally one to two months, extending up to ZMER - FZXFPHEEHLERE
three to four months for major customers, the credit period for BZ=ZNEA  MEELHRE~H
customers of the retail segment is within one month. The Group EEMAIR—EARN - REEIWEE
does not hold any collateral over its trade receivables balances. HE S EKFIBLE S A EMIEKE
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. m o ESRKIERTETE -

An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the ARG EIR + R E B EAFINpR
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, HEINE S EYIERR DT
is as follows: N

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Within 3 months @A A 29,777 32,955
4 to 6 months 4%618 A 1,389 6,290
7 to 12 months 721218 A 1,976 628
33,142 39,873

Details of the ECL assessment are set out in note 37. A EERENMEFEEHN M T

37 ¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12431 HILFE
17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 17. TANFIE ~ ime L HAME
RECEIVABLES WKIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Advances to suppliers T R BRI 7,461 6,668
Other prepayments HATAIFRIR 4,920 2,320
Deposits and other receivables (Note (7)) g N H A FE UK IE (B EE()) 52,314 26,121
64,695 35,109
Note: B5E -
(i) As at 31 December 2022, the amount was mainly represented the (i) 20226128318 - ZRBEEEERE
receivable control under the administrator due to the restructuring of two- 48 P i BT B  ) 1 S2 B B Y B LI U 3R
subsidiaries of approximately RMB21,160,000. BHARH21,160,0007T °
Details of the ECL assessment are set out in note 37. ERATEREEEETENFIEENH

5¥37 °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS

18. e MIREFEBWALE
EIFE R

2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBTF T AREBFT
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTH 7,623 28,190
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payment W ENEEHEEFER
(note 19) (BftEE19) (33) (14,705)
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 7,590 13,485
Cash and bank balances denominated in: IR & MIRFTAEERIZAT
BEH¥EHE
RMB AR 2,079 17,638
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") Bo(l#x]) 1,833 3,521
us$ eV 3,421 4,725
British Pound R 290 2,306
7,623 28,190

RBEMR  UARBHENERES

As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash

equivalents denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB2,079,000 (2021: approximately RMB17,638,000). RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

19. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

9. EFRNFIBNENERE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR%T T ARBT T

Trade payables to third parties JENE=ZHHNE S FIE 84,941 91,982
Bills payables N RIE

— arising from intra-group purchases (note) —REEEREEE (M) 58,995 67,348

— arising from third party purchases —-REE=HEE - 19,815

143,936 179,145

Note: The balance represented bills payables which were issued among
subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions whereby the
corresponding bills receivables have been discounted or endorsed to third

parties prior to the maturity dates of the bills.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end

MiET : M RAEENE ARz HHEER
ZHMEBITHRNER - AR A FEU
ERCHRAEETE=TEZRIY
H -

%

RBERKR - HERAHNZINES

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: FERTRIB R EM BN RE S TH
T

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Within 1 month 1ME A A 18,156 15,187
1 to 3 months 12318 A 440 7,772
4 to 6 months 4%26fEA 1,699 60,700
Over 6 months B iRe6(E A 123,641 95,486
143,936 179,145

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade

payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days while

bills payables are settled on a term of 90 to 270 days.

EHEMNZTIBRENEE AT -
EZRENFIBBENI0E180R AL
& mERMZEERAIRE270H A4
=i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z
19. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (conmnuen) 19. B RNFIANENRE
(#&)
Certain bills payables were secured by pledged deposits with ATEMNERHSERTRIEER -
aggregate carrying amounts as listed below: HAaEmESHnT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T

Pledged deposits of the Group (note 18)  ANEBEK D EFFH

(FfF5E18) 33 14,705
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, certain bills payables were 20229 %2021%12A318 - &F
secured by corporate guarantees provided by independent third JENEE BB E = IR RAE
parties. RIEEHA -
20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 20. EfbERFRIB R EETE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES B/ ahatE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Other payables (Note (iii)) L b 5 3R 3E (B (i) 88,277 32,298
Accruals (Note (i) FE&H & R (BEEG)) 11,983 11,022
100,260 43,320
Contract liabilities (Note (ii)) A #a & (HEEGi) 11,052 9,858
Notes: Mz :
(i) As at 31 December 2021, default interest on convertible loan of (i) MH2021F12A318 » ATEBREZRMNED
approximately RMB2,898,000. FEBHARY2,898,0007T °
(i) Contract liabilities represent contract amounts received in advance of (i) ERBEEINEMRIREINEHSE -

delivery of goods.

(i) As at 31 December 2022, redundancy payable due to the suspension (i) 72022128318 - ATHEL - miE
of factories and rental payable was approximately RMB46,009,000 and MHERERENESS A ANARE
RMB 10,770,000 respectively. 46,009,0007T &2 A £#10,770,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ 20. B ESFIE M FEETE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTinueD)

There were no significant changes in the contract liabilities
balances during the reporting period.

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
in the current reporting period relates to brought forward
contract liabilities. There was no revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that related to performance obligations
that were satisfied in a prior year.

The Group’s revenue recognised that was included in the

contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the period:

A/ a#a’Ee

BRBEESRNRE AR EEREE
1t -

TRINRA R & HAFE FE R A0 WA B4
BAOAGENHABEE - AREHE
BMERREBEFRERNBORE
BRAM M -

AEERBMVGAGHNAEGHRNE

2021
2022F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T AREFIT
Amounts received in advance of delivery RS R RTUEEYFUE
of goods 9,858 13,239

Note: Contract liabilities in relation to sales of finished goods are expected to
be settled within one year. The entire amount of contract liabilities as at 1
January 2022 (2021: all) is all recognised as revenue during current year.

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are

normally repayable on demand.

e ERREEFENANBEERSN—
FREE - R20221 718 (20214 -
2EONZBANAEINAFERERR
WA e

RN TR REER AR E ME

H
FBRRERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 12831 HIFF/E
21. LEASE LIABILITIES 21. HEAE
As at 31 December 2022 As at 31 December 2021
R2022512A318 1202112318
Present Present
value of Total value of Total
the minimum T the minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments ENE payments payments
BEHEE BEEE RERE RERE
AREE DB L RRERE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AEETFT ARETT
Within 1 year 1R 25,133 28,319 13,032 14,012
After 1 year but within 2 years 1226R 18,940 20,179 8,977 9,399
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E5FR 3,379 3,502 1,673 1,953
After 5 years HRiB5E - - 1,320 1,383
22,319 23,681 11,970 12,735
47,452 52,000 25,002 26,747
Less: total future interest expenses il 1 RIRF| S FIX %8 (4,548) (1,745)
Present value of lease obligations ~ FAEAIERE 47,452 25,002
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range HRAREEEBEMIEEEZFEN
from 2.99% to 13.06% (2021: range from 2.49% to 7.71%). T2.99% & 13.06% (2021 4F : N F

249%FE7.71%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

EE2022F 12431 H I F/E
21. LEASE LIABILITIES (conmmvuep) 21. HEadEw
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HHEERNDTAT -
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Current liabilities mEaE 25,133 13,032
Non-current liabilities EREEE 22,319 11,970
47,452 25,002
22. AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES 22. FETEBHE A RIFIA
The related parties are companies controlled by the controlling A T BRI IR AR R H BN T] o FE
shareholders. The amounts due to related companies are RTEEBE AR RIEAEIRE 28 NAE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. IRENREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z
23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. T RIRIT M EMEK
BORROWINGS
2022 2021
02F 2021F
Effective Effective
interest rate Maturity AEHIIE  interest rate Maturity RMB'000
BRAI= 38 ARETR BRME HE ARETE
Current - secured - B
Bank loans FITER 45%-6.6%  2022-2023 69,235  45%-6.5% 2022 50,669
Current - unsecured BIE - g A
Other borrowings Ethfgt NilZ - - 49%-9.0% 2022 13,947
69,235 64,616
2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFTT
Analysed into: DITRBATEIE
Bank and other borrowings repayable R—FRNIZEKEED
within one year or on demand IRIT R EMER 69,235 64,616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

Notes:

(a)

= 4= H b .
23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 23. T RIRITMEMER #)
BORROWINGS (continueD)
BeE -
Certain of the Group’s secured bank loans are secured by: (@ AKENETOEFRITERATIE
TR{EIE -

(i) pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings which were (i) R2022F & 2021F 128318 -
provided by Morris PRC, a company controlled by Mr. Zou as at 31 IABBSE AR HI R A R B 1R )
December 2022 and 2021; & TR L3t R B EE YRR

(if) personal guarantees provided by the Mr. Zou as at 31 December (if) B 5 4 702022 4F [ 202112 A
2022 and 2021; 31RRHAEALR

(i) corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC, a company (i) BEAEHEHEERBEN20224F
controlled by Mr. Zou as at 31 December 2022 and 2021; 202112 A31 BRI ARIE

R

(iv)  corporate guarantees provided by Zhejiang Murong Shijia Real vy  BEAEEFOQFNIRAHR
Estate Co., Ltd, a company controlled by Mr. Zou as at 31 HEBR A RIHR20224 £ 20214F
December 2022 and 2021; 12431 BREM A RIER

(v) corporate guarantees provided by independent third parties as at (v) BN E = 20224 ]2 20214612
31 December 2022 and 2021; and A3TERENDEER &

(vi)  pledges of certain properties which were provided by Zhejiang (vi)  ABEEEHOIFNIREA Y
Murong Shijia Real Estate Co., Ltd, a company controlled by Mr. FhE AR A AR 20224F 22021
Zou as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. F12A31 BIRERE T W EMER

o
The Group’s bank and other borrowings were denominated in the (b)y  AEEHRITREMERIZTIE®EE
following currencies: =
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR¥EFTT
RMB AR 39,775 27,520
us$ 7T 29,460 37,096
69,235 64,616
RERKEERER AR 2022 3/ 199
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z
24. WARRANTY PROVISION 24. {RIERHE
2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARMFIT
At beginning of year F3 2,907 3,124
Additional provision (note 7) ROMEE (MH5E7) 461 2,908
Amount utilised during the year FREERAFKIEAE (3,059) (3,055)
Exchange realignment b 3 SR B 146 (70)
At end of year FR 455 2,907
The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers rEBRMRETEPEH -—FHERR
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or BRD  FEIL B RARE RS ESA
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is B Ei - REBHSBBREHEE
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the KB SRR EKTFEITIER o A
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed on SEBREREERELE - WERKE
an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate. HHEET ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ
25. DEFERRED TAX 25. JRIETRIA
Deferred tax assets EEHIEERE
Unrealised Impairment
profit losses on
arising from inventories
intra-group and
transactions receivables Total
SERE FER
RBELEN BE W FRIE
REBERF WEEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTFIT ARETT AR®BTFT
At 1 January 2021 F202141 818 1,645 2,497 4,142
Charged to profit or loss FANEERR
during the year (1,645) (2,497) (4,142)
At 31 December 2021, 20215128318 »
1 January 2022 and 202291 A1H K%20224
31 December 2022 124318 - - -
The Group has unused tax losses arising of approximately REENRSARIBEEH/ARE
RMB364,477,000 (2021: approximately RMB262,510,000) that 364,477,0007T(20214F : X1 B AREE
available for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred 262,510,0007T) - A] AR SR 2R B
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as AR - AREELELEHIBEER
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for WMEARCEE —RERE - RN
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits wAE R AT A e A AR SRl B A H
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BERE U ER SRR

MBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

25. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 25. IRAEFLTE (7)

Deferred tax liabilities

ELERIAEE

2022 2021

2022 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT AREBFIT

At beginning of year F4 123
Credited to profit or loss during the year ~ FRFF A (34) (87)
Exchange realignment M 34 38 B = (2)
At end of year FR - 34

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirements is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, during the year ended 31 December 2022
the applicable rate is 5% (2021: 5%). The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Convertible loan

26. ABRRE R PTHE % Rt
TE

AR ER

2022 2010
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTF T ARBFIT
Liability component of the Convertible loan AR E R & EHD 60,565 69,977
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MEBHE BT
2022 2021
2022F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBFT
Liability component of the Convertible loan: A& E R EEED
Current liabilities mENEE 21,492 69,977
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 39,073 —

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible
loan (the “Convertible Loan 1”) agreement (the “Convertible
Loan | Agreement”) with International Finance Corporation
("IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the
Company agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan | in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the
right to convert all or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Loan | into shares of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
| Agreement). The outstanding principal of the Convertible
Loan | bears interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum above 6
months HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible Loan | shall
be a period of six months in each case beginning on an interest
payment date and ending on the day immediately before the
next following interest payment date.

P78 BN\ e e WY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (conmivuep)

Convertible loan (Continued)

Unless previously converted, the Company shall repay 50% of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan | outstanding
as at fourth anniversary of the date of the Convertible Loan | (the
“First Repayment Instalment Date”).

Subject to any repayment to be made on the First Repayment
Instalment Date as set out above, the outstanding amount of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan | shall be
repaid on the fifth anniversary of the date of the Convertible
Loan | (the "Maturity Date 1”) together with a redemption
premium (the “Redemption Premium”) which is an amount
equal to 3.25% per annum of such portion of the principal
amount of the Convertible Loan | to be repaid or prepaid in
respect of the period beginning on the date of the disbursement
and ending on the day immediately before the date of
repayment or prepayment. Any amount of the Convertible
Loan | which is redeemed by the Company will forthwith be

cancelled.

In the year 2020, the Convertible Loan | was defaulted due
to the Company failed to repay the instalment in accordance
with the repayment schedule. On 29 May 2020, the Company
was granted a temporary waiver by IFC to postpone the
instalments. At the same time, the repayment schedule of the
Convertible Loan | was amended from original Maturity Date
| to on/prior to 28 December 2021. The Company recorded
gain on modification of the Convertible Loan | of approximately
RMB11,503,000. A new Convertible Loan | was recognised with
effective interest rate with 6.99%, where fair value of derivative

financial instruments were Nil.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (conmivuep)

Convertible loan (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Convertible
Loan | was matured and fell due for repayment. The total
outstanding principals amount and related overdue interests
of approximately RMB72,875,000 were not repaid as at 31
December 2021.

On 21 December 2022, the Company entered into a
amendment agreement (the “Convertible Loan 1I”) to amend
the principal terms and conditions of the Convertible Loan I,
pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the Company
agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan Il in an outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Loan Il is approximately
HK$73,439,000. IFC has the right to convert all or any part of
the outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Loan Il into
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22
per conversion share (subject to adjustments as set out in the
Convertible Loan Il Agreement). The outstanding principal of the
Convertible Loan Il bears interest at a rate of 2.75% per annum
above one month HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible
Loan Il shall be a period of one month in each case beginning
on an interest payment date and ending on the day immediately

before the next following interest payment date.

Subject to the rescheduled repayment instalment, the
rescheduled maturity date is 28 June 2025 (the “Maturity Date
I1") together with the accumulated redemption premium which
is an amount of approximately HK$2,192,000.

26. AIHAIRER TSR

T Ew#w)
AR ER E)

HE2021F12A31HIEFE - AJ#
KRERID W EETERE - REE
A RERAHARET2,875,0007TH]
B EA B R2021FE12 A31 8 &

RBE -

R2022%F 1284218 » ARAFIML(E
Al ([AREERN]) - B
A|mBRERINEZBRARGEH B
Baha BRemARREHE
MARNFREBAREBERSOAR
73,439,000 7T #) A #A AR & K o
oA A B RIZSRIRRARN2.22
IR IR R E K 2 Bk o Ak
REZIREEZERNSEE RN AR A
& (AT AR R AT IR AR & R i s P 1
L) - ATMBRERIKEERNSEE
REME275% (@R —EABBR
TREFE)FE - RERBERLT -
MBRERINFEHA—EA - B
NEBAREZET @AM 2B B
—Hik-

RIFEFTMHER - ZEF]2HAA
20256 A28H ([EIHBN])ER R
FTERGEESF4 52,192,000
7T|: °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (conmivuep)

Convertible loan (Continued)

The Convertible Loan | and Il recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group is bifurcated into
two components for accounting purpose, namely the liability
component and the derivative component, and the movements
of these components during the reporting period are as follows:

26. ABRRE R PTHE % Rt
T Ew#w)
AR ERE)
RARE BT A B R R MR A AT 2
fREZIRID AREEstEs - B1E
B D ROTES D - IPEREHIEAZ
FEH &

Liability Liability
component  component Derivative Derivative
of Convertible of Convertible financial financial
Loan| Loanll  instrument| instrument Il Total
AR R
BRI & 14 i
BEFD BEHD ¢RIA SRIAIN -
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTT ARBTT AR®TT  ARBTR
Asat 1 January 2021 202151 A1H 84,356 - - - 84,356
Repayment of Convertible Loan B AR E (11,737) - - - (11,737)
Amortisation of liability component FI¥AIRE & B

of the Convertible Loan g}t 178 - - - 178
Accrual interest JEFIE 371) - - - (371)
Fair value change AREE - - 78 - 78
Exchange difference EREE (2,449) - - - (2,449)
As at 31 December 2021 and R2021512A318 &

1 January 2022 2022F1A1H 69,977* - 78 - 70,055
Repayment of Convertble Loan ~ {BE AR EH (7,163) (2,553) - - (9,716)
Amortisation of liability component FIHIREF & EEHH

of the Convertible Loan igpad 556 35 - - 591
Accrual interest JESTFIE (795) (133) - - (928)
Derecognition of the Convertible  # |- R AT EF

Bonds | (69,434) - (469) - (69,903)
Liabilities component at date of ~ RE:T R EIM & EE 5

modification - 63,837 - 469 64,306
Fair value change INIEL) - - 386 (93) 293
Exchange difference EHER 6,859 (621) 5 (4 6,239
As at 31 December 2022 20225128318 - 60,565 - E77) 60,937
* During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's convertible loan * HE2021F12A31HILFE - REET]

matured and fell due for repayment. The outstanding principal amount of
convertible loan is repayable on demand and according to the Convertible
Loan | Agreement, IFC has the right to convert unless the Company has
repaid the Convertible Loan I'in full.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 1231 HIFF/E
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2022 2021
2022 20216
US$'000 RMB’000 Us$'000 RMB'000
T£R N S FET AREFT
Equivalent Equivalent
£ EfE
Authorised: AT
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,000/% %
of US$0.001 each (2021: FREB0.001ETH)
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of i (2021%F :
US$0.001 each) 10,000,000,000% &%
E{E0.001E LAY
EER) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
2,750,000,000 ordinary shares 2,750,000,000/% &%
of US$0.001 each (2021: EE0.001E LAY
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 3@k (20214 :
US$0.001 each) 1,000,000,0008% Z A%
{E0.001 = THIE@AL) 2,750 19,212 1,000 6,914
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z
27. SHARE CAPITAL (conTinUED) 27. A (#)
The movements in the Company’s issued share capital during RRARRREEARNSETRAEES)
the year are as follows: LU
Number
of ordinary
shares in issue Issued capital
28T
ZEREE ERTELX
RMB’'000
AREFT
Balance as at 1 January 2021, 31 December #2021F1H1H « 20214
2021 and 1 January 2022 12 H31H %20221H18
Y AEER 1,000,000,000 6,914
Share issued upon share subscription IR REBRFEITAR D
(Note (a)) (FtzE@)) 1,300,000,000 9,248
Share issued upon placing (Note (b)) BB R TAR S (FIFE (b)) 450,000,000 3,050
Balance as at 31 December 2022 72022912 A31 HA &5 2,750,000,000 19,212
Notes: Bt eE
(a) On 10 October 2022, the Company was subscribed 1,300,000,000 shares (a) R2022F10H10H » A2 A RE
at a subscription price of HK$0.063 per share. The proceeds will be used 1,300,000,000 f& i 17+ & % R B8 (B 18
to repay indebtedness of the Group under the Convertible Loan and make 0.063%7T » FTISRBER AN EEREE
settlements for the subsidiaries’ indebtedness under the restructuring. RATEREFIA TR EBHARGEN B
AR BAEIE THEL o
(b)  On 23 March 2022, the Company placed 200,000,000 new shares at the (b)  H2022%3H238 - AR AAFDR6ML
placing price of HK$0.12 per placing share to not less than six placees. & ABLE 200,000,000 ¥ A% - A% D
Further details were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 ERMZESEAR012BIT - #E—FFF
March 2022. On 10 October 2022, the Company placed 250,000,000 new BENRARF B EA2022F3 2388
shares at the placing price of HK$0.11 per placing share. Further details N 0 FA2022F 108108 - ARBEIEE
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 10 October 2022. 250,000,000 % - FRRECE ik 2 B

EEAR0INET - E—SFBHRER
AIHEIA2022F10 A 10BHRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 1231 HIFF/E
28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. HEMEBAR]
(a) Disposal of Masia Investment Limited and (a) HEEZDREARLATIR
its subsidiary HE AT
On 9 March 2021, Morris International Group Limited, a R2021%F3A9H » A RAEIZHE
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered BE2ENBARRABKRER
into share purchase agreement with Morris Capital Limited. BRAGERAEARER AR
Pursuant to the share purchase agreement, Morris Capital I RMBE G - RERD
Limited agreed to acquire 100% issued share capital in BEWSE R2EXEBRAF
Masia Investment Limited and its subsidiary held by Morris [@ & A& A K% 35,056,000 7T
International Group Limited at the transfer consideration (FEMS.513EEET) NEE
of approximately RMB35,056,000 (equivalent to US$5.513 REWEZTBEEEEGERA
million). After completion of the above disposal on 9 ARBENEDREERATR
March 2021, Masia Investment Limited and its subsidiary H B A F100% K B 31T
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company. 7R o ;A2021F3 HORFER Lt
LER  ELREAGRATR
HMBRRTBEARRARZH
Bar e
Consideration received PR C1E
2021
20214
RMB'000
AREFT
Cash received FriiiR & 9,538
Amount due from related companies JE LN A B R B 5R0E 25,518
Total consideration received PR BB 35,056
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which DA EZEHRZEER
control was lost BEF
9 March 2021
202153 A9H
RMB'000
AREFTT
Property and equipment LEYN G 24,462
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7,230
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 833
Other payable and accruals H A FERTFRIE R FEET B A (3,741)
Net assets disposed of & EEFE 28,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 12831 HIFF/E
28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (conmmuep) 28. HEMBRAR®)
(a) Disposal of Masia Investment Limited and (a) HEEZZRERBRAAIR
its subsidiary (Continued) HKE AR &)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & —EH1 & 2 7] 2 W22
9 March 2021
202143 H9H
RMB'000
ARBFIT
Consideration received and receivable FT B % FE W R O A (B 35,056
Net assets disposed of FIHECEEFA (28,874)
Exchange fluctuation reserve SN R B i 1,978
Gain on disposal & 2 e 8,250
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEELWREERAFE
Analysis of net cash flow in respect of the disposal of HEMBRARIZRESMEFE
subsidiaries is as follows: AT :
RMB’'000
AR¥EFIT
Cash consideration RERE 9,538
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of W TR ERITHEBERE (833)
8,705
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

29. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions and dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the distributions or dividend payments, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.

(ii) Treasury shares

As at 31 December 2022, 75,812,000 (2021: 75,812,000)
ordinary shares acquired under the Restricted Share Award
Scheme were deem to be held in treasury, representing
2.76% of the shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.
The nominal value of shares held in treasury was
approximately RMB8,992,000 (2021: approximately
RMB8,992,000).

9. R

ASERAFE B EERER
EDPCEEN S e

(i) BHEE
RIEFEHE R RERIER)
ENE - AREBERERAR
AR R B9 AR TE 5 A BB A7 i (B
FE R AR RS 2R S BB,
Bl B2 15k 1 2 BB 0 R S A B
MR - ARFEHINES
REEBIZH B REET -

(i) BEERD

M2022F12831H » ZRHIE
1 $2ENET &I T Y ER975,812,000
% (20214 : 75,812,0000% ) &
BREEAAEFEIRES
B 2022912 A31 B E #17
BN §92.76% ° DAETF 7 %
EHNRMOEAEONAEARE
8,992,0007C (20214 : 9B A
FR#8,992,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

29. RESERVES (conmivueD)

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve

(iv)

(v)

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries with
functional currencies other than RMB.

Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules
and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company'’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the merge effect for acquisition
of additional equity interest in subsidiaries without the
overall change in the control in that subsidiaries and

surplus of investment in subsidiaries before the merging.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. MEEBMEANBEY
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES iR
Change in liabilities arising from financing activities: BEEBMEENBEZE
2022 20224
Interest-
Amounts bearing
due to bank
related Lease  Convertible and other
companies liabilities Loan  borrowings Total
PEfT R RSB
ARHE HEEE ARRER REMER B
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR¥TR AR%TRT AR%TR
As at 1 January 2022 72022118 27,734 25,002 69,977 64,616 187,329
New bank borrowings made ~ FRFEIEITETR = = = 44,760 44,760
during the year
Financing cash inflows BERETA 47,288 - - - 47,288
New lease entered AR kD) = 46,546 = = 46,546
Interest charged MBS = 2,035 591 1,490 4,116
Termination of lease s = = (8,460) = = (8,460)
Repayment during the year ~ FRIEF (13,866) (18,314) (9,716) (43,455) (85,351)
Gain on modification of BETATRRERM
Convertible Loan e - - (5,597) - (5,597)
Interest paid and payable B/ RERFE - - (928) (1,490) (2,418)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR 1,017 643 6,238 3,314 11,212
As at 31 December 2022 #2022%12A318 62,173 47,452 60,565 69,235 239,425
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B E20224F 12831 HIFF/E
30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 30. REABMEARNREY
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (contivueD) BR®)
2021 20214
Interest-
Amounts bearing
due to bank
related Lease Convertible and other
companies liabilities Loan borrowings Total
B SRR
NS HEAR ARER REMER b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NREFTT AREFT ANEETTT NS ANEETTT
As at 1 January 2021 202151718 46,575 38,893 84,356 94,734 264,558
New bank borrowings made FRETERITER - - - 160,915 160,915
during the year
Financing cash inflows BARETA 28,268 - - - 28,268
New lease entered T AY - 4,637 - - 4,637
Interest charged Mz - 1,541 178 15,791 17,510
Repayment during the year FRER (46,166) (19,599 (11,737) (190,540) (268,042)
Interest paid and payable BRI REMNTIE - - (371) (15,790) (16,161)
Exchange realignment R (943) (470) (2,449) (494) (4,356)
As at 31 December 2021 20215128318 27,734 25,002 69,977 64,616 187,329
31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. SWABE
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as RERP AR E BRI BT E R,
at the end of the reporting period. RBE -
32. COMMITMENTS 32. A&IE
The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31 AEER2022F &2021F12H31H
December 2022 and 2021. A AT AR & ARAEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. iR 5
(a) Transaction with related parties (a) EEEABEA IR Z
In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in BRI BmEREME S FiAR
the financial statements, the Group had the following SO - RE B AR G E R
significant transactions with related parties during the FHEITUTERRZ S ¢
year:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREFTT
Morris PRC (note (ii)) ERHE (FREG))
Rental expenses (note (a)) FAEMX (K@) 9,176 15,754
Compensation on factory relocation  BiE B E (Fi5E5)
(note 5) 13,366 -
Morris Capital Limited (note (i) RRERER AR HEG))
Consideration on disposal of LERBARKE
subsidiaries - 35,056
Guangzhou Wanlibao Industrial ~ EMEREEZER
Holding Co., Ltd (note (i)) BRA T (KIFEG))
Sales of product HEEMm 143 -
Wanlibao (Guangzhou) Furniture EFREB(EM)RA
Co., Ltd (note (i) BRA T (FEI))
Purchase of raw materials BERME 8,297 -
The above related parties are companies controlled by LB T S AR SRSk L
Mr. Tse Kam Pang (note (i)) and Mr. Zou (note (ii)). The (P () ) K2 BB P A (B (i) ) 12 46
transactions were conducted on terms and conditions AR - ZER S HIREERH
mutually agreed between the relevant parties. FT )77 48 B 195 TE B R R R A6 1
T o
Note: BT
(@)  These related party transactions also constitute non-exempt (@) ZEBEHHRSIVERK ETHA
continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A BUARTEENTERCHER
of the Listing Rules. R e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conmvueD) 33. B AR S

(b) Amount due from a shareholder (b) FEW—BRERIE
An analysis of the balances with shareholder is as follows: HRER AR DTN T -
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Mr. Zou Bt 345 322
() Amounts due from related parties () FEUREREE S RIE
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had the AR EHAR - AN B 2R
following material balance with its related parties: ZETFENTERESS
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Morris PRC* (note (ii)) FA B (M) 186,343 180,359
Zhejiang Murong Shijia Real Estate AIRER R ERR QA
Co., Ltd (note (ii)) CBREEG) 27 -
Shanghai Murong Digital Intelligence _EEREREERI AR AR
Technology Co., Ltd (note (ii)) (B EEGI)) 34 -
Guangzhou Wanlibao Industrial BMEFEE E R
Holding Co., Ltd (note (ii)) BIR AR (HEEG)) 162 -
Haining Morris Trading Co., Ltd. (note (i) /HEZRAE HER A A
(B &E(i) - 162
Masia Investment Limited (note (i) ~ Fzp&R&EGR A 7 (FIEEi) 21 7
186,587 180,528
Less: allowance for expected credit & : TEEME EE1ER
loss (Note 37) (K&E37) (1,060) (1,026)
185,527 179,502
* The balance was mainly due to prepayment of rental expenses, * EHRETEARENHEERS - &
details please refer to note 33(a). 155 R HIFE33() °
The above related parties are companies controlled by Mr. L EEEE 5 A eR s st A (K
Tse Kam Pang (note (i) and Mr. Zou (note (ii)). Amounts FEG)) B 8 5 A (B (i) ) #2E il BY
due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free and NE] o JEUCREAES 77 RRIE R K
recoverable on demand. - R EREERIKME -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conmvueD) 33. AR S

(d) Compensation of key management (d) mEBFEEEAENS
personnel of the Group [5)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR%T T AREF T
Fees e 1,767 2,286
Salaries, allowances and e RUREMER
benefits in kind 7,373 5,664
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAL - 6,722
Pension scheme contributions RIRETEIHER 135 312
Total compensation paid to key IRTEEEBEAEN
management personnel S e gE 9,275 14,984
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in ExemE—TSHBHNY
note 8 to the financial statements. TEERFIFES ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022

B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z
34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34. AR TSR IA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FHESRMIT ARSI ARNERES
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: TIEAT ¢
Financial assets TRIERE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
REBERATENESREE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Trade receivables B SRR 33,142 39,873
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATENFIE « & R EHA
deposits and other receivables FEUGRIER S RLE & 52,314 26,121
Amount due from a shareholder FEU— BRI 345 322
Amounts due from related parties JE L B ESE 75 SR IE 185,527 179,502
Pledged deposits [mEzg =N 33 14,705
Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 7,590 13,485

278,951 274,008
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34.

(CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBHEBATENERAE

2022 2021

2022F 20214F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFTT

Trade and bills payables B S ENFIERENER 143,936 179,145
Financial liabilities included in AR RIERERTE

other payables and accruals AMeRasE 100,260 43,320

Amounts due to related parties JEAS RERS 5 7B 62,173 27,734

Lease liabilities HEBE 47,452 25,002

Convertible Loan AT E R 60,565 69,977

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings & 83877 & H &K 69,235 64,616

483,621 409,794

Derivative financial
instruments
fTESmMTIA
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT

Derivative financial instruments TEEmITA

372 78
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BHZE2022F12H31HIFF/Z

35. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 35 EESREE
Transferred financial assets that are TEARIEINCEESH
derecognised in their entirety BE

At 31 December 2021, the Group discounted and endorsed
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain banks in order to obtain
additional financing or certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers with carrying amount in
aggregate of approximately RMB73,322,000. The Derecognised
Bills had a maturity of one to nine months at 31 December
2021. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). The Derecognised Bills were
honoured by reputable banks in the PRC, such as China
Merchants Bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
and other reputable banks rating at A- and A respectively by
national credit rating agencies. In the opinion of the directors,
these banks have good reputation and credit quality, and the
risk of default of these bills receivable on maturity is remote,
and therefore, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills since after the
transfer the Group’s exposure to the variability in the amounts
of the net cash flows of the transferred asset is not significant.
Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the
Derecognised Bills and the associated liabilities. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement
in the Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group's Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are
not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and amounts due from/to
related parties approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to the
chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a

forced or liquidation sale.

6. TR ITANARERAR

EER

AEESHTANERERASESR
NAEREREE -

EEECHHRESMREEFEY
BERER  BZRKFARERR
B SHATRNFOR - e MEMER
RENEREE  BHEMNKALE
NERE - T ARMBEMNRALEE
RMERAE « fFERTREMER
KW, FE < REESE 77 R A S E R
HEEEERS  T2aR%EIAE
HAEEA -

AEEET AP HEETRNDEEER
EEFAEREeMIANRAENE
BIEBRREIER - DERBREBBFER
RMEFMEEER RERESAH
CERBREEGOMEMTABER
NEFRAMNMSEN T B ARE -
RECHBERMBEERN ML

TREENBENARENERRS
77 (B BERIEEERINENRS
PR TANARZEEAR °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. Bt TEMARENLARD

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminuep) BEHK @

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value FREMEERERMBER 1 RRE2

measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into WAREEZETEEYR - EE

or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities ASEE 3R (20214F « &) ©

(2021: Nil).

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRIBERVIIEEREIZAEFE

that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, WIRIBARBENAEBREEESERSE

grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair 123N ER T AN -

value is observable.

- Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from — BRAREEERAREE
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical B ERNERMIZHME R
assets or liabilities. RS -

-~ Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from —  E2MAREEEREEAD
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 BR)EkME (B ERTES
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly E)BABB(E1RAFAEEE
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). EXBENABRRERING

&l o

-~ Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from —  FE3RANEIEBEMERM
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or FEF/E HReEREEENSE
liability that are not based on observable market data B FEE R AT B B 5 B (1
(unobservable inputs). ATER ST A SR ) R s A BUR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF = 36. B TAMARENM AT
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conminuep) =),
Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair BARBESTENEREERE
value &
2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R PR 3% @t
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARETT ARET R
Liabilities a8
Derivative financial instruments PTEEBIA - - 372 372
2021 20214
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
1R EvE E3R et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT AREFT
Liabilities =
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMIA - - 78 78

Fair value of financial liabilities that are not measured at fair

REAREHEERFELRLER

value (but fair value disclosure are required): ENeRiaEANE

2022 20224

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F1R 2R 3R #t

RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®TTT AR®TTT ARETT AR¥T

Convertible Loan AMHRRER - - 59,998 59,998
2021 20214F

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

ESFN Eyht E3 5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT

Convertible Loan RIS - - 62,030 62,030
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. Bt TEMARENLARD

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (conmvuep) BER®)
Information about Level 3 fair value BERAEIRAAETENER
measurements
The fair value of derivative and liability component of HREEFITERBEISINAAE
Convertible Loan was valued by an independent valuer. It was BB AHEREE - B BIRmiEF
calculated by discounting the future cash-flow at market rate K REFAZ D A B EE A BURA IR
and including some unobservable inputs. See note 26 for the ARBREREFTE - BEATESHT
detailed information and the movement of the fair value of EMFEERNRAREZS  F2H
derivative financial instruments. MI3E26 o
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the AT s+ e m T A GEMAME
key inputs to the valuation of derivative financial instruments: Fg R Eig AR -
Fair value Valuation Significant
hierarchy technique unobservable inputs 2021
AREEER AERW EXTTREGRARE 20214
Convertible Loan Level 3 Binomial pricing model ~ Risk-free rate 4.12% 0.25%
AHRRER E=R ZEAEEER ERBHE
Volatility 131.89% 112.22%
A
Discount rate 10.67% 11.42%
A%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. i REKBEIEBZE RS

AND POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments comprise trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
shareholder, amounts due from related parties, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts due to related
parties, convertible loan, lease liabilities, interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments is
to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and
bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly

from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing each

of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to variable-rate
borrowings. It is the Company’s policy to keep its borrowings at
fixed rates of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Company has no significant interest-bearing liabilities
except for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities, details of which have been disclosed in notes 23 and

21 respectively.

The Company has no significant interest rate risk during the

year.

FEENTZcHTIAREESRK
IR~ e REMEREOR - B
FRERFOR - RURERE TR - B S
RN RIARENRR - BN TR
REETEM - BRI 30R - AliR
BER  HERAE - T ERITREM
B - RERBEHEMREERF
Ko ZFERTANTIZANIT AN
SENZESRET - ARERZE
ERAEXBEEELNHEMSRE
ERAE B ZRUFIERERE
BAKRE 5 R TR R B R -

AEESRTAEENTIERR AN
KEkg - SNERR - EERBR KRS
BEohlk - BRI MAETEEEE
REBREEER - BRABRBRLT o

BN

RenerieEkEE R TS ERE
B o ARA R BHEREEERE
EMEETE - W ARENXRRERE

ERIE -
BitBRTREMEHRELEESE

(FFED BIRMI 23 X215 8R) 51 - &
REVEEAGFEAE -

ARABREFRALBEE AN RRL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. iR EIE B KIE

AND POLICIES (continueD)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments which arose
from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the exchange rates of currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant operating units, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities). There is no material impact on other components of
the Group's equity.

The Group currently does not have a foreign exchange hedging
policy. However, the management of the Group monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure should the need arises. Under
the forward exchange contract, the financial impact arising
from changes in exchange rates between GBP and US$ is not
expected to be significant and therefore, the corresponding
sensitivity analysis is not prepared.

(#&)

SNEE [ P

SMNERIRIES B T AR R RERARR
BenE R ERSEmKEH R o

AEEAZRZEBAR - ZFER
TR 2 BEAIA BRI NI BEE B LASH
MEBETEEMEL -

TREMEREEMEERFTIEDN
BT - B (HAEKEELMIIEE
BRI EXNAIER BEEEHH A
SEBHAEN(EREREERA
BEORAREES) NGREDN - &
SEEDSNEMET D WEZZEAF
@,

NS H B AT SN E B R - R
- AEEEEEERIMNERR - A
RN A HREE EEHEAIMER
B o IRIBEHISNER L - KR
FHEXTERESHELNP BT EL
TEX - FAp I EREARNSRE
DT

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in exchange in profit
rates before tax
ERLEH RRBEAT R R
(&) i, Cr2)
% RMB’'000
% ARBT T
2022 20224
If RMB weakens against US$ M AREHETE 5 4,457
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARERETHAE (5) (4,457)
2021 20214
If RMB weakens against US$ M AR H =TT A 5 5,367
If RMB strengthens against US$ i AR H ETTAHE (5) (5,367)

226  MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

548 B -

-

RN W71



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continueD)
Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable banks.
The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is assessed
to be close to zero and no provision was made as of 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the
use of the lifetime expected credit loss for all trade receivables
and general model provision for all deposits and other
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses by applied
simplified approach, trade receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and expected credit loss. For the deposits
and other receivables, the Group assessed the expected loss
rate by applying general model. The expected credit loss rate
under general model was determined by referencing of the
market credit rating data and the probability of default rate.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-

looking information.

7. SRR EIE B R REGR

(#)
FEER

AEBNEERR T 2K BRITHALR
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HERT - REHFHATLER
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ERBBOEHREMEERER
B HEARTEATE B S EUGIA
ER2RRREEERRMMERS
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B 5 RYKIAD RIEAREERRE
BETHE - LWEABOATERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES R EIE B2 RIBER
AND POLICIES (conminuED) (%E)
Credit risk (Continued) FERkE)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, trade receivables that
are individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and

past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa
covers and other furniture products and are transacted in cash
or credit. The Group's trade receivables arise from manufacture
and sales of sofa, sofa covers. As at the end of the year, the top
five debtors and the largest debtor accounted for approximately
of 60.5% and 37.2% (2021: 52.6% and 20.8%) of the Group’s
trade receivables balance. In view of the history of business
dealings with the debtors and the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them, management believes that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for the debtor
related to the impaired trade receivables disclosed in the below.
Management makes periodic assessment on the recoverability
of the trade and other receivables based on historical payment
records, the length of overdue period, the financial strength
of the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the
debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. iR EIE B KIE

AND POLICIES (continueD)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

(%)
=EREbE )

EREEEREBERTERA—T
CREENRTPETT - ZEFTHET
R P BB SR A BT 40 8% R IR AR Y
e WERBEARFPREFPK
EMTEREREEANEEER - B
ZEWGRIENEEFE HHRET30£120
HRE|H] o

AEBZAENEHRBEREED
TR EREHRETIANEEER
BRASRERBRERETE - ANA
SENBEEEBBRERL KRBT
REFIHMNERRAFEEANE
£ HWREBEARBELE D HNEREE
WERARE TR TP ERIFE—F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. B EGE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conTinueD) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) FERkE)
Provision of ECL on trade receivables B NS EREEE ARG
On that basis, the provision of trade receivables as at 31 R EAE - R2022F K 2021412 A
December 2022 and 2021 was determined as follows: MBS ENFIBREETENT
31 December 2022 20229%12H31H
More than
1 day but less Credit-
than 1 year impaired
No past due past due (note)
AHEB1E FERE
R BLME (Ffe)
Expected credit loss rate BHEEHEX 2.13% 5.50% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREIAEE(ARETT)
— Trade receivables —B5RIGIE 19,458 14,918 17,722 52,098
Provision for ECL BHEEEBRE (414) (820) (17,722) (18,956)
31 December 2021 2021912 A31H
More than
1 day but less Credit-
than 1 year impaired
No past due past due (note) Total
by ey EERE
ENIE BLR1E (FsE) #Bar
Expected credit loss rate BHEERREX 2.22% 5.26% 100%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  BREAE(ARET L)
~ Trade receivables ~BARWGE 27,524 13,680 10,276 51,480
Provision for ECL EREEHERE 611) (720) (10,276) (11,607)
Note: Trade receivables with more than 1 year past due are considered as credit Mz BB —FALNESERFBER
impaired, with ECL provision of approximately RMB17,722,000 (2021: REERE EHEEBEBRBEEOA
RMB10,276,000) were assessed individually. K #17,722,0007T (20214 : AR

10,276,000t ) EVEERIFT A ©

230 MORRIS HOME HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

"SI B = . QNN V/



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. iR EIE B KIE

AND POLICIES (continueD) (&)

Credit risk (Continued) FERKE)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables (Continued) BN BRI EEERE
(%)

R2022F R2021F12A31BME S
JEWRBTE B SRR ENT

The provision of ECL for trade receivables as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 was as follows:

Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL -
credit- credit-
impaired impaired Total
>HEPEE 2HENEE
BRE-RREE FE-B84
EERE FEERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARETTT AREFT
As at 1 January 2021 M2021F1 418 2,707 4,314 7,021
Provision/(reversal) for FNEE, (B )
the year (1,376) 5,962 4,586
As at 31 December 2021 and 72021512 A31A K
1 January 2022 2022F1H1H 1,331 10,276 11,607
Provision/(reversal) for TR, (BE)
the year (97) 7,446 7,349
As at 31 December 2022 7202212 318 1,234 17,722 18,956
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. B EGE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conminuep) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERBEE)
Provision of ECL on deposits and other receivables BERAEMENNERAIEEE
BRE
The provision for deposits and other receivables as at 31 2022 F 202112 A31BWiZ S
December 2022 and 2021 was as follows: R H A UG IRRAE LA -
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL -
credit- credit-
12m ECL impaired impaired Total

2HREEE 2HRHEE
1288 BR-A%% BFR-BRE

BHEERR EERE =ERHE 4t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFTT ARETTT AREFTT AREFTT

As at 1 January 2021 20211718 184 - - 184

Reversal of provision for the year ~ F B FERE (94) - - (94)
As at 31 December 2021 and R2021%F 128318

1 January 2022 20221 A1H 90 - - 90

Provision for the year FREE 480 - 11,303 11,783

As at 31 December 2022 M20229F12831H 570 - 11,303 11,873
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. iR EIE B KIE

AND POLICIES (conminuep) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) FERKE)
Deposit and other receivables BEREMERE
Deposits and other receivables relating to accounts that are BR HE B B RGRIE - B AE N E
long overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies BEREUHRITE TEL ENES B
or nonresponse to collection activities, they are assessed B © & HAD EUCGRIR - S E R R IE
individually for impairment allowance. The Group recognised WA - AEEFE BT HERAKN
the provision for expected credit losses by assessing the credit EERBEE - ARE RO A EE
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and the likelihood of MG ZE B R AEARR - R TAE
recovery and considering the prevailing economic conditions. EEEERE -
Provision of ECL on amounts due from related FEW B S S B R E B A
parties 2E
The provision for amounts due from related parties as at 31 20226 2021912 A31 HMEUR
December 2022 and 2021 was as follows: R RIBRHE T ¢
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL - not ECL -
credit- credit-
12m ECL impaired impaired Total

2HBAEE 2UENEE
1288 FE-A%%E BE-BRE

BHEEER EERE EEHE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT

As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1A1H 474 - - 474

Provision for the year FRRHE 552 - - 552
As at 31 December 2021 and #2021F 128318 %

1 January 2022 2022F1 718 1,026 - - 1,026

Provision for the year FREE 34 - - 34

As at 31 December 2022 #202212 4318 1,060 - - 1,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (conminuED)

37.

s R ETE B IR MUK
(4)

Credit risk (Continued) FERkE)
Amounts due from related parties BB 7 H
For amounts due from related parties, the management MBS RIEM S - BIEERE

makes periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of
amount due from related parties based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. The management believes that there are no
significant increase in credit risk of these amounts since initial
recognition and the Group provided impairment based on 12m
ECL.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that

the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity

requirements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R SRR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (conminuED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
for its financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates and based on rates at the end of the reporting period) and

the earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

As at 31 December 2022

37. AR EE B ZNBR

More than

Weight  Ondemand one year but

average  orwithin less than

interestrate  oneyear  two years

it BEX  -EUL
PR d-Fn  BFRAE
RMB000  RMB'000

ARBTR  ARBTR

(#)
mEE TR )

TRHAVRAEESREERSHR
TREBEMIEEBTANKRTAL
FEER - BIMREBEAORMBERE
RE(BRERAONERRERS
HIRFERFENFE ) RAE
B AR EREENRFAMMGSH

72022612 A31H

More than More

two years but than Total Total
less than five undiscounted carrying
five years years  cash flow amount

BER

MEUL RenE
BFREE BENE a8 FEAE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARRTR ARETR ARETR

Trade and bill payables EORNFERENRE = 143,936 = = = 143,936 143,936
Financial liabilties included in 3 AZ A0 3B
other payables SRER - 100,260 - - - 100,260 100,260
Amounts due to related ERESATRE
companies - 62173 - - - 62,173 62,173
Derivative financial instruments 474 £ETA - m - - - n m
Lease liailties HERE 9.10 28319 2,179 3,502 - 52,000 47,452
Convertiole loan TARER 202 2,507 26,468 13,234 - 62,209 60,565
Interest-bearing bank and other 3t S BAREMEDR
borrowings 5.55 69,235 - - - 69,235 69,235
426,802 46,647 16,736 - 490,185 483,993
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  37. B EGE IR B 1Z MR

AND POLICIES (conminueD) (&)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBEERERE)
As at 31 December 2021 202112 H31H
Morethan ~ More than More
Weight ~ Ondemand  oneyearbut  two years but than Total Total
average or within less than less than five  undiscounted caming
interest rate one year two years five years years cash flow amount
BYR
i FEX —EhE L RenE

PabE  A-Fh BTRME  BRREF  IFNME % FEARE
%  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBO0D  RMBOOD  RMB'000
% ARRTT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARRTR

Trade and bill payables EORNFERENRE - 179,145 - - - 179,145 179,145
Finandial labilties included in St AEHERZIES
other payables SRER - 4320 - - - 43320 43320
Amounts due to related NG
companies - 21734 - - - 21734 27,734
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T44BTE - 78 - - - 78 78
Lease liabities HEBE 523 14,012 9399 1,953 1383 26,747 25,002
Convertible loan AHRER 699 69,977 - - - 69977 69,977
Interest-bearing bank and other 3t EBAREMED
borrowings 543 64,616 - - - 64,616 64,616
398,882 9,399 1953 1383 411617 409872
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e IR AR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ~ 37.

iRk e IR B AR RBUR

AND POLICIES (continueD)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its

business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the
total debts (comprised of amounts due to related companies,
lease liabilities, Convertible Loan and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings) divided by the total equity. Total equity refers
to equity attributable to owners of the Company. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

()
AEEE

AEBEESEENTZARA/RER
SEMELER - URERISR
BB DR  ASTREE R -

REBERBCEMRTOE (L REEN
FAEEEARLEE - BEFIFARER
e AEEA AR TR AR
BAELFAE - MREREE RS HET
HRRD - B E 20224 22021412 B
3NALLFE  EEEANEE - PR
AR TR R

AEBEERERAARLX(AERHR
B(BRENEBRARZE  HE
&~ IR ER R BRITREME
FOBRA LS B AN - i
RIEADRHA AELER - N &
SHRMEERBHLEROT

2022 2021

2022 20214F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ET T ARETTT

Total debts B4R 239,425 187,329

Equity attributable to owners of RABEE NELER

the Company (127,022) (49,541)
Gearing ratio BEBEBLE N/AT3E F N/AZ 3

.
RAKX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MBRERME(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE ~ 38. A AT B R

COMPANY
BREARRREBE RN BARAR

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: HERINT -
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T AREFIT
Non-current asset FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARIMIEE 6 6
Current assets REEE
Other receivables E b U GRIE 710 18
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B A =58 7,055 7,744
Amounts due from related companies JE LR R B R B 5RIE - 6,451
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEEY 200 204
Total current assets MEEERE 7,965 14,417
Current liabilities REaE
Other payables and accruals H A FERTFRIE R FEET B A 3,224 4,429
Amounts due to related companies FEISREEE A B 5RIE 14,759 -
Other borrowings E g - 10,126
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMIA 372 78
Convertible loan AT E R 21,492 69,977
Total current liabilities mEN B ERRE 39,847 84,610
Net current liabilities REBAEFHE (31,882) (70,193)
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABRRBARS (31,876) (70,187)
Non-current liability FRBAE
Convertible loan AT AR E R 39,073 -
Total non-current liability kBB ELRHE 39,073 -
Net liabilities BEFE (70,949) (70,187)
Equity R
Share capital &N 19,212 6,914
Reserves (note) fEE () (90,161) (77,101)
Total equity MR AARE (70,949) (70,187)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
AR B MR R AR M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 20229F 12431 H 1FFZ

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  38. ANA RIBI Gk R &k (&)

COMPANY (cONTINUED)
Note: MEE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARREERMRAT
Exchange
Share Treasury fluctuation Accumulated
premium shares reserve losses Total
B K E
RDBEE EERG *E RitEE st
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥ETFTT AR¥EFT ARETTT AR¥EFTT
As at 1 January 2021 H2021F1 418 153,071 (8,992) (10,475) (46,329) 87,275
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (150,723) (150,723)
Other comprehensive income  FRE M2
for the year:
Exchange differences on MEBTERERE
translation of financial EHER
statements - - (13,653) - (13,653)
Total comprehensive loss for FREEEEEE

the year - - (13,653) (150,723) (164,376)
As at 31 December 2021 and 72021512 A31H &

1 January 2022 20221818 153,071 (8,992) (24,128) (197,052) (77,101)
Loss for the year FAEE - - - (115,512) (115,512)
Other comprehensive loss for ~ FREMEEEIE

the year:

Exchange differences on HHE B EIHRRE

translation of financial MEH =R
statements - - (3,233) - (3,233)
Total comprehensive loss for FRETEEEERE

the year - - (3,233) (115,512) (118,745)
Placing and subscription of Bl & KRR 1

shares 107,032 - - - 107,032
Transaction costs attributable to  BC & X REE AR 1D FE(S 22

placing and subscription of AR

shares (1,347) - - - (1,347)
As at 31 December 2022 72022412 H31H 258,756 (8,992) (27,361) (312,564) (90,161)

247 +| NN
39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  39. BB #&RZE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue P RARCN2023F3A31HEES

by the board of directors on 31 March 2023. ERE W -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
FFEFERE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
B 220229F 1231 H 1FF/Z

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilites TFXFEARERZIABTEEED A
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the HEEUREERBEZBME - A
audited financial statements, is set out below: KEZBT W

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 20204 20194 20184
GVELO0E  RMB'OO0O RMB'OO0  RMB'0O00  RMB'000
INFLETI ARBTFT ARBTFIT ARETT ARETT

RESULTS E4

Revenue U A 132,013 502,932 606,363 980,298 1,610,043
Cost of sales HERAK (130,013)  (403,276) (547,597) (877,211)  (1,181,999)
Gross profit EH 2,000 99,656 58,766 103,087 428,044
(Loss)/profit before tax BrEiAT(E1R),HF (203,418)  (120,286) (87,840)  (178,943) 100,286

Income tax credit/(expenses)  FriSHi#ER,/(Fi) 832 (3,116) (2,890) 38,253 (13,881)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) 7 (202,586)  (123,402) (90,730)  (140,690) 86,405

Year ended 31 December
BEZ12A31BLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 2020 20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
Nesmn ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE

Total assets 1R E 366,904 374,882 676,852 1,344,964 1,432,152
Total liabilities BaE (498,363)  (426,053)  (600,109) (1,147,997) (1,064,831)

(131,459) (51,171) 76,743 196,967 367,321
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